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Chairman Statement

We are confident that our leading market

positions coupled with strong product

technology and customer base will enable us to

take full advantage of opportunities that arise as

markets recover
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tiadrrre proht rnproved furthe as auto wotive

production schedules ncreased in response

to higher autrmotive sales md restocking by

vehicle manufacturers With the exception of

OftHiehway ill divis ons we profitab in

the fourth quarter

Overall Coup tndrrg margin for 2009 fell to

34 2008 /i8 althc uerh by the fourth

qua tel tf is tad nsen to 65

Restructuring

During the year arou id 3100 employees left

the roup ar tl facilities ceased operations

with fLirtlre three closures an aouini

Restructuring costs in the year amounted

to 11/41 mill on including net irnpairnient

charges 69 millici short time wor kirry

84 milton and 108 million reduridaircy

and reorganisation charges The bene of the

actions to address the permane rt cost base

was etim ited be 80 million in 20d9

Cash spend in 2009 on the 2008 estrr cturine

program nrc amounted to 69 million

final site rationalisatiori acti was including

turf er pOnt closure to he announced

before tf nd of the fir quarter he adcount

reductions and the reduction of short tima

woikirrg in he first Calf of 2010 will result in

20 retri during cfaiges of around

37 millior witf 2010 cash spend est mated

at 67 millio 2010 incremental bei efits ol

60 millio re expected to accrue

The beaefi to annualised operating co ts

esu ting om the total rescructunrng

programnrwa is expected to be 161 in Ilion

Automotive

Automotive activities comprise JKN Driveliire

and Other ALrtorrotive companies which

suppty dnivesl afts torque man rge rient

devices truc tural and engine components

end substrates for catalytir converters

Ia gely to vehc Ic nairufacf mners in the glcibal

and ifit vehicle mrkets

Produtiorr of cars and light vehicles

fell sharply at the becinning of 2009 as

rianufactuiers respoirded fcc the sharp

decline in sales of new vehii les arid hgh

levels of inventory lii addition to overall lower

podu tioi the was hange irr rex to

srraller cars as result of rappage ai tax

inceirtiva schemes in marry iountries

In the second half 2009 production

increased as markets began to recover and

nrcentve schemes boosted de rand For the

year as whole the markets showiirg the

stiongest oduction groc tli were China and

India with production in Bra/il also increas ng

slightly North Anaerica lapin and Europe acre

par ticulaily arlected by the ceo iomic turmoil

with signifirantly lowei produ lion volumes

Overmll arini al elobal prodcnrtion volumes

fell in 200910 59 million vehicles

2008 67 million Exclu Jing China ann cal

production ye lumes tell 22c to 46 million

vefr dr 7008 59 million

Global ight vehicle productwn million untts

Corrpi and Annual Growth 9ate CAGR 1990 2015 24
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GKN Or veUne

GKN Dnvc line is the worlds leading supo icr

of auto notive dnvelinc omponent id

systems As global tier one supplier sc rving

the worlds rn aor vehicle iianulai tu ers

0KB Driverinc develops builds and supple

an extensive range of autom alive drivelri

componc nts 1or use in the smallest ulti

lowcost car through to the most sophisticated

premium veli cft demanding the most

complex driving dynamic OKN Drivc line is

leading global producer of coirtant vel reity

looted VI sideshafts propshafts and

mec hanically and electronically ontrolled

torque management prOducts

618 Drive lires underlying sale fell

in ft firs quartei before eeing gradual

improvemei ts for the rest of the year

Oveiall sales fell 12 in 2009 to 199

mllion 2008 268 million Excluding the

favo rablc impact of currc or Ii irisla io of

352 million nderlyirrg sales reduced by

628 mdli ii 24

by region of ongrn

KB Drivel ic trading piofit was 816 nillion

irludirig first qLiarter million post

employme it benefit curtailment gain

romnmed wth tridg pofit of 88 mliior

2008 including an million post employment

benefit curtailment gain and mihion

charge in respect of abortive acqursitio costs

The impact of translational cui rency was 816

million po itivc with underlying trading piofit

reduced by 188 million due to significantly

lower voic roes In the fret half 018 Driveline

reported trading loss of 32 million Sales

the cc and half were 20c higher tfran in

the first half as custome demand partially

recova ree In addition the benefits of the

estructuring programme came through and

ii tIre second fralf 6KB Drivoline produced

trading ofit of 48 million

As part of the GlN Drivelirre restructunrrg

progranrrne one factory in th UK was closed

and twc otfrers will be nirerged during 010

Tile JOn venture in South Africa was en led

and 688 sold its blot ventcire interest hr lilin

Chin to allow it to oncer trate eftorts in

that country on Sfrangl al 6KB Drive Sf aft

plant closure was ariiour ced in Japan which

will conclude around the end of 2010 In

total around 200 people tell the hr sinress

in 2009 and extensive use of govennrrient

supported short time working was used to

match product on with sales By the year end

as volumes recovered tfie levels ofshort4ime

working had educed consic erably

Charges recognised in 200 in nelatiorr to this

rest ruct tiring amounted to 181 million cif

wfrch redundancy aird ceo ganisation costs

we 63 million short time woricing was 19
mm rllrorr and ret imparnreri reversals were 81

ncr ill ro

KB Dr velure took further steps to build on

its 21 year presence icr th Chrirrese rrrar ket

to extend critical relationships and also itS

footp mt for the future he loirit vent ire

with our partner SAIC Shangfrai 0KB Drive

Shaft was extended for tunther 50 years

vmoesfrant production started at new state

of th art facility at Wuhan and plans are well

advanced for air additional facility in hang

hun northern China Although produ Iron in

hr ra was depressed at the start 01 the year

it macfred record level of on tput by year end

Marragenrent initiated actions 0D9

to protect the ca Ii flow of the businiess

by rcducirig working ipital and capital

espcrditre 1s eslt irmcrrtorhcs were

reduced by 21c at constant cunrercy rites

aird capital expenditure on tangible fixed

assets reduced to 74 rriilhiorr 2008 310

millon the busirress rim ceased its net

prodhLictrve inventory turns to 12 times by tIre

year curd 2008 timest and the ratio of

capital expemrdrture to depre hatiora reduced

to 0.7 times 2008 1.2 times Return on

invested capital was 14 2008 9c
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Powder Metallurgy
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Aerospace

3d ci global ft tt suppler

rita ne and iine so ctLn components

se ibl cs Irat spawn es it nnw ring

rvtcc wld iID of Or raft nd

aig tennco tractorsatio rftstter

if alit petati tires it odLct
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ivH aircraft market 2008 2014

008 7009ac1t3 2010 2014 fact 51
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ohs St thr Lrgi 0112011 and tOe Dctense
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expo tre letett budgets tc am der
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contracts on all Airhur aircraft programmes

foi wmg components and sub-assemblies

in production at Filton at the time which

enhances KNs capability to design and

iranufacture major sub- Essemblies for

large aircraft wings The main intangible

asset recorded on acquisition related to the

ustomei relationship with Airhus GKN also

signed contracts with An bus for significant

work packages to design and produce large

scale composite structures for the wing of

the new AlSO long haul airliner This contract

further exfendo the Gioups market position

in primaiy composite wing stiuctures

The Group expects the Filton acquisit ion

to enable ncw contracts to be secured

with Au bus in the future and to enhance

relationships with other customers

Tiading profit increased by 64 million to

169 nillion 2008 105 million Hlton

contributed 40 million and the impact

from currency on translation of results

was 15 million Excluding these factors

the increase was million including

rst quarter realisation on programme

development costs of million and

second quarter miilion net pension

curtailment gain the fimst half was impacted

by start-up costs on new programmes

disruption costs as mesult of the delays

on the Boeing 787 an the decline in

business jet and general civil aviation and

aftermarket sals part iculaily in engeme

products fhrocgh the second halt of the

year productior volumes stabihised and

operating performance improved as result

of process improvements and the benefit

frcirn restructur rig

Overall thc trailing ma gin increased to

114 2008 10 5o Nith the iii denying

margin from lii cii of above 10% The

underlying margin excludes the impact of

fair value aicol rting and certain foreign

exchange rate ins Rr tur on invested

capital was 24 2008 16 40

As result of so ne oflening in large civil

aircraft production in the second half and

the ongoing ob ective to reduce costs

and improve efhiciency GKN Aerospace

continurd its rr structuring activities with

the loss ol around 600 lobs in 2009 and the

commimencement of fachity closures in the UK

and 1% RE strui turing charges were taken

amounting to 10 million 2008 LI million

Management tions to preserve cash

continued with the emphasis on reduced

working capital result inventories

excluding Filton fell by 12% at constant

currency rates wnich improved invennory

turns by times to times
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Financial performance

Corporate costs

Corporate costs which comprise the costs

of stewardship of the Group and operating

charges associated with the Groups legacy

businesses were 12 million 2008

12 million and included first hatf legacy

post-employment past service credit of

million and also second half legacy and

project related charges amounting to

million

Restructuring and impairment charges

Group restructuring and impairment charges

of 141 million 2008 163 million relate

to the restructuring programme initially

announced in November 2008 and updated

during the course of 2009 The major

elements arose within subsidiaries and

represent redundancy and reorganisation

costs 008 million and short-time working

costs 04 million Net impairment charges

amounted to million and included an

impairment reversal of million in respect

of the jilin joint venture interest The

restructuring measures were put in place in

response to significantly lower production

volumes in the Automotive Powder

Metallurgy and OffHighway businesses

and the general economic decline Further

restructuring charges of around 37 million

including million short-time working are

expected in 2010 as facility rationalisation

and closure actions are concluded

Profits and losses on sale or ctosures of

businesses

million currency surplus arose on the

disposal of the Groups investment in its GKN

Driveline him joint venture

Amortisation of non-operating

intangibles arising on business

combinations

The charge for the amortisation of non-

operating intangibles e.g customer

contracts and relationships trademarks

non-compete agreements and intellectual

property rights arising on business

combinations increased to 24 million 2008

10 million primarily due to the Filton

acquisition

Change in value of derivative and other

financial instruments

The Group enters into foreign exchange

contracts to hedge much of its transactional

exposure At lanuary 2009 the net fair value

of such instruments was liability of 130

million and at the end of 2009 the figure

was liability of 43 million Where hedge

accounting has not been applied the change

in fair value between lanuary 2009 and

31 December 2009 or the date of maturity if

earlier is reflected in the income statement

as component of operating profit and has

resulted in credit of 106 million 2008

175 million charge There was 29 million

charge arising from the change in the value

of embedded derivatives in the year 2008

43 million credit and charge of million

attributable to the translational currency

impact on Group funding balances 2008

million credit There were also changes in

the value of Powder Metallurgy commodity

contracts of million credit 2008

million charge

Operating profit

Operating profit of 39 million compared with

an operating loss of 86 million in 2008

Post-tax earnings of joint ventures

The post-tax earnings of joint ventures in

the year were 21 million 2008 million

which included an impairment reversal of

million 2008 10 million charge Post-tax

earnings on management basis were 18

million 2008 16 million with trading

profit of 23 million 2008 20 million

The 2009 tax charge amounted to million

2008 million with an interest charge of

million 2008 nil Underlying trading

profit declined million as the strong

performance in our Chinese joint venture up

million was offset by underlying trading

losses down million primarily in Emitec

and Chassis System

Net financing costs

Net financing costs totalled 114 million

2008 50 million and include the non-

cash charge on post-employment benefits

of 49 million 2008 million The net

of interest payable and interest receivable

was 64 million 2008 47 million

and arose mainly on the bonds and bank

borrowings The 17 million increase in net

interest payable mainly reflects the absence

of balance sheet translation cover interest

benefits and charges f7 million incurred

when the Group bought back 124 million of

its outstanding bonds The interest income

benefit of the second half rights issue

proceeds is estimated at million Interest

costs attributable to the Groups A350

investment have been capitalised in 2009

amounting to million

The non-cash charge on post-employment

benefits arises as the expected return on

scheme assets of 121 million 2008 163
million was more than offset by interest

on post-employment obligations of 170

million 2008066 million Details of

the assumptions used in calculating post-

employment costs and income are provided

in note 26 to the financial statements

Profit/loss before tax

The management profit
before tax was 83

million 2008 170 million The loss before

tax on statutory basis was 54 million

compared with 130 million loss before tax

in 2008

Management profit before tax of

continuing operations

ii

fm

300

250

200

iso

100

50
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Taxation

The tax charge on management profits of

subsidiaries of 65 miltion 2008 154
mitlion was 11 mitlion 2008 million

charge representing 16.9% tax rate 2008

0.6%

Compared with the weighted average tax rate

for the Group of 31% the 2009 tax rate has

benefited from combination of the release

of provisions for uncertain tax positions

the recognition of previously unrecognised

deferred tax assets and certain tax refunds

Certain other items have tended to increase

the tax rate including the treatment for tax

of exchange variations the reversal of prior

year tax credit in respect of discontinued

operations and the non-recognition of deferred

tax assets arising in the year The reported net

tax rate was 16.9% 2008 0.6%

GKNs tax strategy continues to be aimed at

creating sustainable cash tax charge that

balances minimising tax payments with the

need to comply with the tax laws of each

country in which we operate The cash tax

charge excludes deferred taxes movements

in provisions for uncertain tax positions and

tax relating to those non-trading elements

of operating profit identified separately in

the income statement In 2009 the cash

tax charge was 29% 2008 17% which

exceeds the 20% or below cash tax rate

expected This increase is primarily result of

the unusual profit profile across our trading

markets exaggerated by the low level of

underlying profits in 2009 In the near term

we expect the cash tax rate to revert to an

average of 20% or below as we continue to

make use of prior years tax losses incentives

and deductions in the various countries in

which we operate

For 2010 and beyond the overall reported

tax rate is likely to continue to be volatile

primarily due to movements in provisions for

uncertain tax positions and the recognition

derecognition of deferred tax assets

Unrecognised potential deferred tax assets

principally relate to brought forward tax losses

and pension liabilities in the UK and US

The total effective tax rate of continuing

subsidiaries based on statutory profit before

tax was 20% 2008 7.4% arising as 15

million tax credit on loss of 75 million

Non-controLling interests

The profit attributable to non-controlling

interests was million 2008 million

Earnings per share

Earnings per share on continuing basis

were 3.2 pence 2008 11.7 pence as

restated for the impact of the rights issue

Management earnings per share were

5.5 pence 2008 16.0 pence restated

The reductions are mainly due to lower

profitability of the Group discussed above

Average shares outstanding in 2009 were

1271.7 million and shares outstanding at the

year end were 1552.3 million

Dividend

In view of the continued difficult trading

environment the Board has decided not

to pay final dividend for 2009 2008 nil

pence per share The total dividend for

the year is therefore nil pence per share

20084.5 pence per share 3.0 pence per

share restated The Group intends to pay

dividend on both 2010 interim and final

earnings The level recommended by the

Board will be commensurate with achieved

earnings and take into account the outlook

for our end markets at that time In the

medium term it is the intention to resume

progressive dividend policy based on an

underlying earning cover ratio of around 2.5

times

Cash flow

Operating cash flow which is defined as cash

generated from operations of 288 million

2008 328 million adjusted for capital

expenditure net of proceeds from capital

grants of 153 million 2008 204 million

proceeds from the disposal/realisation of

fixed assets of 35 million 2008 million

and UK Government refundable advances of

28 million 2008 nil was an inflow of

198 million 2008 131 million

management basis

Cash tax rate

154

17%

2009 2008

Tax charge analysis

Weighted average tax rates of major

countries in which GKN operates 31 30

Benefits of GKN tax profile tax losses

and other factors 13
Cash tax rate 29 17

Tax impact of foreign exchange gains

losses on intra-group funding 19
Movement in provisions for uncertain

tax positions 38
Deferred tax on subsidiaries underlying

profit before tax 17

2009

Em

2008

OnComputation of cash tax rate

Tax total 15 10

Adjust for

Deferred tax total 15

Movement in provisions for uncertain

tax positions 25

Tax impact of foreign exchange gains

losses on intra-group funding 29

Current tax on restructuring and

impairment charges

Cash tax charge 19 26

Profit before taxation of subsidiaries

Tax charge as of subsidiaries underlying

profit before tax

65

29%17



www.gkn.com

Cash generated frnm operations adjusted for capital

expenditure proceeds ftom disposal/realisation of fixed

assets gonernment refundable advances and special UK

pension payments

Within operating cash flow there was an

inftow of working capital and provisions of

133 miltion 2008 outftow of mitlion

principally as result of reduced inventory

across the Group

Capital expenditure net of proceeds

from capital grants on both tangible and

intangible assets totalled 153 million 2008

f204 million Of this 139 million 2008

191 million was on tangible fixed assets

and was 0.7 times 20081.2 times the

depreciation charge Aside from the Groups

A350 programme investment commitments

the ratio for 2010 is expected to remain at or

below 0.7 times

Expenditure on intangible assets mainly

initial non-recurring costs on Aerospace

programmes totalled 14 million 2008
13 million including million on the

A350 programme

Net interest paid totalled 61 million

compared with 48 million in 2008 including

million accrued interest relating to the

bond buy-back

Tax paid in the year was 15 million 2008
45 million

As no final dividend for 2008 or interim

dividend for 2009 was paid the cash cost

excluding dividends paid to minorities was

nil 2008f97 million

Free cash flow
Km

Free cash flow which is operating cash flow
250

including joint venture dividends and after

200 interest tax and dividends paid was an

inflow of 136 million 2008 38 million

150

outflow after 99 million 2008 28
100 million of expenditure on the Groups

50
restructuring programmes The year on

year improvement reflects strong focus

on working capital particularly inventory

reduction lower
capital expenditure lower

tax payments and the absence of current

year dividend

Net borrowings

At the end of the year the Group had net

debt of 300 million 2008 708 million

This includes 403 million net proceeds from

the rights issue which were received in
July

2009 and acquisition expenditure including

investments in joint ventures and investment

loans and capital contributions oLE1I2

million 2008 million primarily relating

to the Filton acquisition

Customer advances in the Aerospace

businesses which are shown in trade

and other payables in the balance sheet

amounted to 66 million 2008 79
million The Groups share of net funds in

joint ventures was million 2008 share of

net borrowings million

Net debt

LjtL
Pensions and post-employment

obligations

GKN operates number of defined benefit

and defined contribution pension schemes

together with retiree medical arrangements

across the Group The total charge to

trading profit in respect of current and past

service costs together with curtailments of

defined benefit schemes and retiree medical

arrangements was 22 million 2008 25
million whilst other net financing charges

included in net financing costs were 49
million 2008 million

The decrease in the charge to trading profit

mainly reflects reduction in current service

cost off2 million in the US as result of

closing most pension plans to future accrual

together with changes to life insurance

benefits The 2009 actions in the US also

resulted in total of 12 million in past

service and curtailment credits 2008 12
million Further information including

asset liability and mortality assumptions

used is provided in note 26 to the financial

statements

UK pensions

The UK defined benefit scheme is considered

to be
relatively mature with around 4800 of

its 52000 members currently in service The

UK defined benefit scheme remains open

to new members and is run on funded

basis with funds set aside in trust to cover

future liabilities to members The scheme

specific funding valuation and schedule

of contributions as at April 2007 remains

in force whilst the next triennial scheme

specific valuation will be as at April 2010

The accounting deficit at 31 December 2009

of 499 million 2008 272 million was

significantly higher than that at the end of

2008 This was mainly as result of increased

liabilities from changes in discount rate

and inflation assumptions underlying the

valuation The increase in liabilities was only

partially offset by higher asset values from

higher investment returns

Cash flow from continuing

operations

The charge relating to the UK defined

benefit scheme reflected in trading profit in

600 respect of current and past service costs

curtailments was 20 million 2008 21
400 million whilst other net financing costs

were 23 million 2008 13 million credit

200
Restructuring activities attracted past

service charge of million 2008

million



GKN plc Annual Report 2009

Review of Performance

UK pension accounting deficit

at 31 December

The charge to trading profit in respect of

current and past service costs/curtaitments

was rnittion 2008 million whilst

other net financing charges included in net

financing costs were 23 million 2008 13
million Trading profit benefited from the

one-time curtailment/past service credit of

million largely in the Americas

The reduction of 50 million in the

accounting deficit to 443 million was

principally result of currency movements as

the increase in liabilities from changes in the

discount rate assumptions was largely offset

by increased asset returns

Retiree medical and life insurance

GKN operates retiree medical and life

insurance arrangements in the Americas and

has scheme closed to new members in

the UK

The credit to trading profit in 2009 was

million 2008 nil including million

past service credit resulting from changes to

life insurance arrangements in the US Other

net financing charges included in net financing

costs were million 2008 million

As result of these changes the impact

of currency translation and changes in the

discount rates used to value the liabilities

the obligation in respect of all schemes at the

end of the year was 54 million compared

with 69 million at the end of 2008

Net assets

Net assets of 972 million were 44 million

higher than the December 2008 year end

figure of 928 million The increase was

mainly due to rights issue net proceeds of

403 million offset by currency movements of

160 million and actuarial changes in respect

of post-employment obligations of 190

million

Shareholders equity

Shareholders equity at the end of 2009 was

948 million compared with 905 million at

the end of 2008

Financing

The following section describes the way in

which the Group manages and controls its

treasury function and ensures it is financed in

an appropriate and cost-effective manner

Treasury management

All treasury activities are co-ordinated

through central function Group Treasury

the purpose of which is to manage the

financial risks of the Group and to secure

short and long term funding at the

minimum cost to the Group It operates

within framework of
clearly

defined

Board-approved policies and procedures

including permissible funding and hedging

instruments exposure limits and system

of authorities for the approval and execution

of transactions It operates on cost centre

basis and is not permitted to make use of

financial instruments or other derivatives

other than to hedge identified exposures

of the Group Speculative use of such

instruments or derivatives is not permitted

Group Treasury prepares reports at least

annually to the Board and on monthly

basis to the Finance Director and other senior

executives of the Group In addition liquidity

interest rate currency and other financial risk

exposures are monitored weekly The overall

indebtedness of the Group is reported on

weekly basis to the Chief Executive and the

Finance Director The Group Treasury function

is subject to an annual internal and external

review of controls

Funding and liquidity

The Group funds its operations through

mixture of retained earnings and borrowing

facilities including bank and capital markets

borrowings and leasing The relative

proportions of equity and borrowings

are governed by specific Board-approved

parameters These are designed to preserve

prudent financial ratios including interest

dividend and cash flow cover whilst also

minimising the overall weighted average cost

of capital to the Group

The Groups borrowing facilities are arranged

by Group Treasury and the funds raised

are then lent to operating subsidiaries on

commercial arms length terms In some

cases operating subsidiaries have external

borrowings but these are supervised and

controlled centrally

The Groups objective is to maintain balance

between continuity of funding and
flexibility

through borrowing at range of maturities

Wherever practicable pooling netting or

concentration techniques are employed to

minimise gross debt of the Group

At 31 December 2009 there were 13 million

of drawings against the 709 million of the

Groups UK committed credit facilities The

709 million of committed facilities include

an 80 million eight year facility from

the European Investment Bank agreed in

December 2009

Following the bond buy-back capital market

borrowings reduced to 551 million and

include unsecured issues of 201 million

7% bonds maturing in May 2012 and 350

million 6.75% bonds maturing in October

2019

In total the Groups bank committed credit

facilities have maturities ranging from 2010

Summary

At 31 December 2009 the funded post

fm
employment obligations of the Group totalled

600
610 million 2008 435 million whilst

500 unfunded post-employment obligations of

400 the Group totalled 386 million 2008 399
million details of which can be found in note

26to the financial statements
300

200

100

Overseas pensions

Overseas pension obligations arose mainly in

the US Germany and lapan
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to 2017 The weighted average maturity

profite
of the Groups committed borrowing

facilities was 4.5 years This leaves the Group

well placed in the short term to withstand

sudden changes in liquidity
in the financial

markets although the tightening of available

credit means that it may be more expensive

to refinance the Groups borrowing facilities

as they mature

Alt of the Groups committed credit facilities

have single financial covenant requiring

EBITDA of subsidiaries to be at least 3.5

times net interest payable EBITDA of

subsidiaries is before restructuring and

impairment charges amortisation of

non-operating intangible assets and other

non-cash charges arising on business

combinations profit
and losses on sale or

closures of businesses and the change in

the value of derivative and other financial

instruments Net interest payable excludes

costs For the 12 months to 31 December

2009 this ratio stood at 5.2 times 5.9 times

excluding the million cost of the bond

buy-back

Financial resources and going concern

At 31 December 2009 the Group had net

borrowings of 300 million In addition it

had available but undrawn committed UK

borrowing facilities totalling 696 million

Of the Groups total committed borrowing

facilities 350 million is due to expire in

July 2010

The Directors have assessed the future

funding requirements of the Group and

the Company and compared them to the

level of committed available borrowing

facilities The assessment included review

of both divisional and Group financial

forecasts financial instruments and hedging

arrangements for the 15 months from the

balance sheet date Major assumptions

have been compared to external reference

points such as global light
vehicle volumes

build schedules from aircraft assemblers and

market forecasts from major manufacturers

of agricultural and construction machinery

Recognising the remaining uncertainties

around our end markets sensitivity

analysis has been performed on our forecasts

to assess the impact of different scenarios

on facility headroom and banking covenants

The Directors also considered what mitigating

actions the Group could take to limit any

adverse consequences

Having undertaken this work the Directors

are of the opinion that the Group has

adequate committed resources to fund its

operations for the foreseeable future and

so determine that it is appropriate for the

financial statements to be prepared on

going concern basis

Rights issue raised 403 million net

UK revolving credit facilities

repaid 228 million

2012 bond buy-back 124 million

Secured funding on A350

709 million of committed UK

facilities 13 million drawn

UK cash balance of 186 million

350 million revolving credit facility

expiring July 2010

201 million bonds maturing

May 2012

the finance element of post-employment
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Key Performance ndicators

Management earnmgs foi the Group as set out in note to achieve absolute growth in PS each year and in the

8b to the finan al statements divided by the weighted longer term recogni ing the nature and cyclicalty our

average numbei of ordinary hares issue major markets to ac tieve average annu compound

growth of at east

Amount declared as payable by way of dividend chvided

by the number of ordinary shares in issue ext luding

treasury shares

10 eturn to progressive divide policy aligning

dividends with the 1mg te trend earnines whi st

achieving sustainable earnings to dividend cove

ratio of around tiles

lo achieve giowtli es at both Group and divisi mat

level in absolute Icr irs and an underlying tsi ir excess

of the growth ii our inaio automotive aerospace md

off highway markets

To achieve medium in trading margins of betwe

and 10 for GKN Driceline and Powder Metallurgy

to t0 in Offhighway ai to to 12 in Aeropace

giving an overall Group tridi ig maigin of between

and 10c

Sales growth Management sales meast red both in absolute terms

and on an ur denying basis i.e excluding the effects of

cu rency translation acquisitions and divestrnents

relative to the prior year

Manageine rt Ind ng profit as percentage of

management sa es

Environmental

performance

Accident fiequency rate AIR and accident severity

rate ASR

Energy consumption and asociated emissions waste

generation waste recycled and water usage nreasured

on divisional basis

Earnings per

share EPS

Divdends

per share

Trading

margins

Return on

average

invested

capital ROK

Ratio of management trading profit to average total

net assets including the appropriate share of joint

ye itu es but excludng ui rei and deferred tax

cash boi rowings post ci iployment obligations and

derivative financial instiunments

Free cash flow

before dividend

io achieve ROK at both Group and divisional levl

which exceeds thc weighted cost of capital of tire

Group 12 as pre tax thrc sheld and between

and 20c on post tax basis

To geneiate positive lice cash flow sufficient to coaei

dividend payments provide fundi mg resources to

support organic and acquisitive earnings growth or

above thc growth ii our maar carkets

Cash generated fror operations excluding special

contributions to UK pensio schemes aftei capital

expenditure net interest and tax payments and the cash

cost of strategic resti ucturing progra nrnes and including

fixed asset disposal proceeds joint venture and minority

div dends

Health and

safety

performance

Zero pieventable accidents

Improved performai cc across all KPI5

Mn giac er 11dg cm aew cc aei2
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Ai ci lot ii iii OffHglrw ny
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Potential liabdities for defects in products warranty

claims or product recalls Product quality issues could

acversely affect rotils and damage GKNs reputation

Inability to attract and retain qualified personnel

particularly engmeering professionals the absence

or adequate talent and lack of contin rity ri manageme it

and leadership could result in an inability to execute the

strategic plan and deliver linanc al pertornrance

Acquisitions Inability to realise expected benefits of acquisitions

lack of suitable acquisibon targets aligned with planned

strategy failc re to integrate acquired businesses

successfully or an inability to capture value from them

could impact operations and prevent successful

deliveiy of GKNs strategic objectives

Pensions Pension deficit levels are affected by changes in asset

values discount rates inflation and longevity

assumptions Ac counting valuations of post employnicnt

oh igations can cause volatility ii hnancial reporting

Additional Company ensio rontrihuhons could restrict

irvcstnrcrit iii uc sirresea

nnual succession plani ng and pc dorm rnce

development process

Competitive reward packages and Gro widet din
rig

and developmcnt programmes

locused revicws to ensure strategi alignrne it of

acquisitions

xtensive pie acquisition due diligence

Careful management of the integration plans by

experienced on site iranagemei

Active rnanagemer of pension scheme asscts and lung

ter 11 view of liabdity assuinpti sos

Contiruing cv ow of the level of benefits ovdecl

Alternative funding arid deficit reduchon pla is

implemcnted where appiopriatc

Exchange rates Currency nsks Iransactional subsidi ny sales or

purchases iii irrencies other than thcii funct onal

cc rrency rid ranslational exchange rate wcmeirts

investme its in werscas operation iii KNs balair

shi Gr or ps fiirancial statements sill fluctuate

as result of movements in exchange rat ft

Hedging of tra isaitio exposures thiougl forwi

foregr exchange co itrar ts

Balance sheet translatior al cdyi ig po ii rrentlv

suspended du to oiitinuing olat lity toi oigrr

ur end e5 aa 1st ster ling

Taxation GKN is subject to complex tax Laws and audit

procedures Actual tax liabilites could differ from

accruaL which aie based or rranagenrent udgenient

Ongong iion turing of tax devers imerit riiajor

jurisclictior

roup wide tax coi pla icc pro tramnie

Actions taft icr uti set ix os

If oup irrsu es rq or st he
nit

act of inge of ir prod ct los es as ial nil svth hot ut busir ess as ets and al 1k es GlNs risk

in rig rte gy is based un ignificant lesel of ippe ni If insci retentior tho Group level vithi GKNs ovn aptive rsuiance

ma iy Ip ey lrrr or td wI ic fr ioes 01 insu the isks of ai other cot ty arid iii ch lower ret itio it sub ii iry level ougi

edc lib es Cal Arc p1 insu nine is ftren irchasecl th ommc ial earkel over air above tie levels of rete it on ps ey curnen

part ipafi uuiu GlN on inc
pal nsura progiamn is 10 riillion

pci
cident capped it 10 illion ai orre yea Due to nCr aturc the

sk Gin pA aviat on pro crs liability ii ura is lilac so clv rr the .wimerc ial oral en

Product quality

nimi ii ml ui

People

High levels of quality assurance and man factuiing

syste ins

Product liability insurance although does ot

generally insure against product warranty oi recall
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2009
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wet aware of any tssttes id told provide

15 ts ane re appropriate we we

rot ttiung work body with
tt supplters

as we trade thtoctph 2010

WE descrtbe ott pagc 45 to 49 the

tv rn tttt and rotitrot ptoredures we hay

adopted to ettsure that strong otewardship

Ci the iroup ontt th ttes to the sustainabittty
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strate gy attd for provdt ty overotght

at direct on ttt matters relating to
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Ott custc ttters Each plan must ronform to
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sutltttott with coy ttttet it ard external
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At the very rote oft ow we operate In GlKN

tore Ok ottttnuous itoprove itent mlii it
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re tired to develop attnuat ititmt tus
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in dt ivittg tlte flow ctt value througlt the
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itittg 2009 there

was strong focus
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liscrim nat 10 lIt fr or arm to of conduct

Nhich 01 II be considered to be ssr lg

roc trwe or eruptive togethrr with vorking

or rtror which re ca and healthy

ii loyee related iclic es are cle or ed to

pr rage in do Is to report aid ctrscuss

prohl mc ccitt len rat has ct provide

oxpec rtrcus nd confident at grieva ice

moc cturc GKN opelate interrlatroiral

teblow 1l hotlrnes ru by extc rral

and ndepc ndent third par whic Ii are

lv rlable 24 hours day the hotl IlCS

crc ha eniplr yr cc carl make on an

Il
or vnrou basis pre erred crlf cli ntral

do cc ire abcc ci fI cted npruprety

rod icr gdoing hr pc liCy re tuires that

lop cyer care able to make sLrrh dnsrlccunes

thout fc cf rem rrinr atnon Amy matte

courted ire nvestgateCl and esca atoll to

leA drt or mit rca apprcprkte tnitr it

Ic cd ar Ic grvc tcn th mc evIct employee

vith II t/ day

We cogn secr tsta rd ng or trnbu ions

Ol cli ilcyeC th cugf tInc anr ual

ccl en Awards ccvcnrrg ductrcn

md Busnncss rcccs Product Or at ty

cc cilogy ustCl ci ServICe ecp

lIar an ci Itety tO Ccv mc inc it 011Cr

tom nurr Cot rib rticr

Nn IC IC lute Ito ccr tiric Ills

irprccemc nt
ri

hal safety and

ilclllllc lit it
per

to nance regard

to tic tli and alety our gc
at rs zcmc

prevent ib cc rder ts ill Inlmltmerit tC

tI 14 el yOU 1111111 Is both

ci iii rir irs the ifaCt cit cur operations

lid mitirga on tr bu ion towards

sti nabli future thrccrgh the dcngn if

0dm 1110C1OCt5 amplia ice with applicab

he Ii atety amlcl en vrrci imental iws and

rego at is tc nc Inerta oblIgation for

II cur bnslllc

aCh cvii ertifnc stIcIl to bot standarCls

all our locations wulldwidc its lccaticns

representing over 92 of the workforCc

have arhneved certifrcatron to SO 14002

Over 50 of locatron have eIther achieved

ane awai rig formal certnfncatron to OIISAS

y800t

The Spc cia sIc to ml formed in 2008 th

ro dlvrsiorlal menmbe ship continues

to share best practice Identify oergng

rssues and proc de mpport for cc itiricrous

Inlprovelnent ill safety and eriv rorlmental

performance In 2009 focus cf actIvIty was

the expar .sno of ADAR Ristc Ac arc ness

Detecticn Actloll arid Revnewi hehaviocrr

based safety programme launched Group

wIde rn 2008 to encompass ervironmental

bet aviuurs Durlng 2010 alt employers will

rec erve RADAR trainllig this revised for iiat

Other areas of act vty fcr tIre Fcl um durrng

the yea wIn del the woniotro of elilianced

Ils assessm its fol all machInery to redure

tte rumber of acc dents mosmdrvismo mm

idit programme iriiprove sharing of best

practice alid the use of Lean Enterprise

teChnlclues id drrve ene gy eft lIen

provemerrts

tie ope lallsts Ccl 11 also part pates II

torrrral irlcident Investigation loot camme

ma ysis ton iy serious alcnde Or inrcident

GKN and rc findIngs together with

csn Itant ac horns are ominurmi ated to all

GKN Icc atior

Ocr pertorlmranCc lgalnst the kcy health

nd safety ard ivrronniie ital ilidicato

eas red cli egcmlar baGs wit reports

rad0 oo5eo PIll and RyE 80b

Comroittec the LxecLrtive Corn nrttee aid tu

the Board Signific or health anrd safety ar

iv ronrier tat rlcidents are reported

to Exec crOve Committee rr embers wittiirr

24 hours arid revewed at the Ccnrrnittees

ne meetr lg

Accident frequency rate AFR
Na nber of lost tIme accidents

per

1000 employees

Accident seventy rate ASR
mber of days shtty lost duo accider Is

rd cnccupational nIl Ii alttn

per 1010 err ployees

our serious irltury rate SIR has improved

by 8/ Extem nat berch iarking of our IER

perfon mince mid ratEs that we continue to

iutperfo sigrmrt cantly agrinist indus

erages lilt 01 Ccnmarny aid the JO

1511

20

ccli busincss is ectuired to target aggress ye

annual perfonma ice
nnpn

vcment Ta gets

arm primarIly at plaInt level on ide they can

best clc the prt ulr needs rislc aid

prior tIes of lch ste In 2009 79 of plants

rnmintanned or mpr ved their excellent AFR

performa ce and riret thenr AFR targets

For ASR pe fcrmance was ma rltained or

irnrproved by 79 of ptantc arid 77 mnef

tI ha rgets

hem are two nntc itic ia ly reccgnnsed

tanmlamrls chiich nanragement systems fol

fet and oivimcnmnen at perforn anrce arc

mssessed OFISAS 1800 for safety md ISO

mOOt for nv ronmc ntal perfc mar cc We

cntrnue to mike progress towards our goal

Accndent fre quericy male AFR and accndent

seveCty rate 4SR are Icey health arid

safety oenformance indicator for If

Group 2009 is the ccItt consec live year

of perfor nce nniiorovememrt Over that

pe iod our AFR and ASR performancc have

Durn 2009 theme were seven health lid

tfety enfoicement acticrrc against IKN

companies cdli In icc toTalling $54520

lssdmed by tEe relevint authorities There were

no fatalities of employees or cortractoms on

GlN sites

nproved by 94 annd respectively arid
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ocono Ily ic tt crc cdL ce CO oft dor

xarnp rn of tdese arc frm ro ghout ft ft

ir report

Our hearts of Cold pojcct which omployl cc

cc ri OW aged to mal contr bi tion

to ft Jr Ic il cor iv unity cont nued

OO provid ng rn nv examplcs throughout

ii oo ip it activ.t er that have made

ust nat he fferei to th hivc of pc ople hi

ftc con sties of whi we are it

Oar can pra ects ii cit iker cc Ito

ito ia charty lobal Thge Is ii whirr

corn ierrnd 200/ is part oftw GKN

Misioii Lvi ret en Jeavour are close to

final cation dvi ral we to 10 sone US

ho to prog its ciya Moza rnbiq ue

and er Leon tid so provided oject

iana vent kilt help isr ro their success

The elects ilVO ved lb pruvision ft

dor mit Ins school bLcitdngs tresh water

ippli protectroir ago nst malaria

md ott ci ceases and ai infant care

program ne

In 2009 as part of our 25th anniversary

elbrations we aunctiecl thc Evolve

colipctition Designed to foter long tens

stainable links in ocal edui ation ii

establ shrnents child at the same tone

cc ortng an ccv oii iental thcrne

olve en ouraged employc cc to dc lign

and prom Ito science and cngmeering

tiased tear Lii arid lea
ring legacy in our

communities woildwide

Although ftc co ii etrtion coincided wtli

period of challenging economic conditions

for number of GKN busincsses the high

quolity of oject proposals submitted

de rnonstrates the commitir cot cit rnpboyees

to develop an understanding of the issues

opportunities sit their ornrnu irties

fcc forge special relationships with

erIc catonal pa toe is

the funding of the hme rizes which will

used to support the implementatio of

the winnrlg projects was provided lay the

GKN Mllennru ii Tm ust charitable trust the

mc pal object of which tie advam cerre it

engmr coring cdu ation tic award winning

projects are described below
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2009 marked the 250th anniversary of GKNs founding in Dowlais South Wales From single blast

furnace fuelling tiny iron works on the Welsh hillside GKN has evolved over two and half centuries to

hold its place at the forefront of the engineering industry

From its earliest days GKN has been proud company and throughout 2009 employees from around

the world joined with their families friends and local communities to celebrate GKNs heritage and

achievei lents of the past 250 years

he variety and number of events held which also raised funds for local charities is testament to the

enthusiasni and comm tm nt of our employees Without this GKN would not be where it is today
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opoin ed tot re Bo ird March 2008

is extenove ccper encc of the automotive

idust havE ir woi kcd fo the ford Motor Corn sany

toE 38 years atteily as oroup Vice 5resl lent Global

ioduct Development and Group Cf ief echneal

Otflcer i-ct ow of the Royal Academy of Engined

fc slit ion of Mccl tIf Leg neer and the

koyal Society of Stat steal brIe icc

hall nan of he WetsI Assembly Govel iment

MInisterial Ads sory Group Vis ng Professor wIthIn

tic Dc artm ntof Acm iautii stand AutomoHve

ngneer rg at Lougliho 011gb In Versity sEnt

hri in nf he As omotive Co ci

Chief Executive

Apo ted to the Board ii lone 200/

ned 1KN in 2002 as Mana Dnector

Operitiot rope for the Groups Drivellne

cv 51011 Ir 200 he bccame Cr Lxer me of GKN

ntc Mst tic owed the Executive Cottito tte

sin iry 200C and bccanie Cl Lxccutiec Pomdc

Meta lirgy Offttigf way ard Industrial Services in

ne iDOl to GKN he Id vi mc geneiat

ia act ment and II titlE onal positions at ngei sol

Rand cb ulc nov nae isys plc md ielphi

71 tomotive Cystem

sun an of he CBI Mali ifactuii ig Coorcll and

ii eribei oft ic Ministerial Advlsoiy Cio for

in ficturino

Ftnance Director

Apooil edt he Board Ill Se plembm 20

Ii lied GKN in 200t as Senro VIce es dent

edt Itet flitanclal Oflll ecot GKN Ac rospace

inc 200/ io hers se ii cniber oft se cxecutive

Co iinilttc as es dnt arid ChIef Exec It ye

iopul 100S stems air Special
Products Appointed

Flnanc erto Scpi mher 200/ Pi to GK3
ic he Id flu ibm of ccii or fiance pontions at TRW

SI iiil ovci 20 ye is atteily as Vice esident

na al Plai
ng

and Anal SI

Appointed tot ie Board Ii December 2004

former Gio tinanre Director of fohnson Mattfiey

plc from 3995 to 2009 Pr or to
ioioing lohnson

Matthey ii 1990 he mas Gioup easurer of fhe

BOb Group plc He is also former non execut ye

DIrector ot APi Group p1 Fellow of the Assoc 0111011

of Coiporate reasclters and fcliom of the Charteted

istitoto cif Managenieni Arroon ants

DivisIonal Chief ExecutIve

Appointed to the Board in August 2003

lOlreO 0Kb in t994 ano ian OeM range ot

commercial genera rianagement and riia ire

roles including finance Director Appointed

Cf ief Lxecutlve Automotive in lone 200/ Prloi

to GKN lie gaIned expeiience in the coiimerc at

vehicle and manulactuil ig sectoi and held senior

Ilnancia
POSE

ions with La Ed Group plc and Hesta

Duple Ltd Membel of the InsI tute of Chartered

Acrountarts of Scotland

Non execui ye Diiector ot Wolseley plc sod Directoi

of The Society of Motor Manulai turets and Fladers

lid Member of the Auton otive CouncIl

Non executive Director

AppoInted to ttrc Board Ii Septei iber 2009

Has extensive expei lence of the aerospace End istry

havi ig worlced foi BAL Systems plc for ovei 40
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Substantial shareholders

As at 24 February 2010 the Company had been notified of the fottowing holdings of voting rights in its shares under Rule of the Disclosure

Rules and Transparency Rules of the Financial Services Authority

See footnote on page 44

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company

wilt be held at 2.00 pm on Thursday May

2010 at the Cavendish Conference Centre

22 Duchess Mews London WiG 9DT The

notice of meeting which includes the special

business to be transacted at the meeting is

included within the AGM circular The circular

also contains an explanation of all the

resolutions to be considered at the AGM

Dividend

No interim dividend was paid and as noted in

the Chairmans statement on page no final

dividend will be paid in respect of 2009

Directors

Membership of the Board and biographical

details of the Directors in office at the date

of this report are shown on pages 40 and

41 Further details relating to Board and

Committee composition are disclosed in the

corporate governance statement on pages

45 to 49

The articles of association provide that

Director may be appointed by an ordinary

resolution of shareholders or by the existing

Directors either to fill vacancy or as an

additional Director Further information

on GKNs internal procedures for the

appointment of Directors is given in the

corporate governance statement on pages

47 and 48 in the section on the Nominations

Committee and on GKNs website

The Board of Directors which is responsible

for the management of the business may

exercise all the powers of the Company

sublect to the provisions of relevant legislation

and the Companys memorandum and articles

of association The powers of the Directors set

out in the articles include those in relation to

the issue and buy-back of shares

With the exception of Sir Christopher Meyer

and Sir Peter Williams both of whom will

retire from the Board following the conclusion

of the AGM all Directors who were serving

at the time of GKNs rights issue completed

in July 2009 will retire and offer themselves

for re-election at the 2010 AGM This is

in accordance with guidelines issued by

the Association of British Insurers on the

allotment of shares in connection with

rights issues Michael Turner having been

appointed to the Board in September 2009

is retiring and offering himself for re-election

in accordance with the provisions of the

Companys articles of association

The Directors remuneration report is set out

on pages 52 to 62 This contains details of

Directors interests in GKN shares pages 60

to 62

Pursuant to the articles of association

the Company has executed deed poll of

indemnity for the benefit of the Directors

of the Company and persons who were

Directors of the Company in respect of

costs of defending claims against them

and third party liabilities These provisions

remain in force The indemnity provision in

the Companys articles of association also

extends to provide limited indemnity in

respect of liabilities incurred as director

secretary or officer of an associated company

of the Company

copy of the deed poll of indemnity together

with the service contracts of the executive

Directors and the letters of appointment of

the non-executive Directors are available

for inspection at the Companys registered

office during normal business hours and will

be available for inspection at the Companys

AGM

5hareholder Nature of interest of issued capital held

Standard Life Investments Ltd Direct 7.80

Indirect 5.24

Total 13.04

Lloyds Banking Group pLc Direct 0.57

Indirect 6.56

Total 7.13

BlackRock Inc Indirect 3.92

Contracts for difference 1.08

Total 5.00

Legal General Group plc Direct 3.65

Deutsche Bank AG Direct 3.24

Indirect 0.02

Total 3.26

Ignis Investment Services Ltd Indirect 2.69

Contracts for difference 0.32

Total 3.01
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Donations

Charitable donations made by Group

companies around the world totalled

482400 in 2009 of which 191400 was

to UK registered charities Further details of

the Groups community activities are given on

page 37

In addition the GKN Millennium Trust UK

charitable trust established in 1995 donated

total of 137000 to the Engineering

Development Trust and Young Enterprise in

2009 The GKN Foundation an independent

US charitable body established in 1951

supported more than 200 organisations in

the United States in 2009 with contributions

totalling over $670000

In January 2010 the Company donated

25000 to the Disasters Emergency

Committee to support victims of the

earthquake in Haiti

In accordance with the Groups policy

no political donations were made and no

political expenditure was incurred during

2009

The Groups US Aerospace business has

Political Action Committee PAC which

is funded entirely by employees and their

spouses No funds are provided to the PAC

by GKN and any administrative services

provided to the PAC by the US Aerospace

business are fully charged to and paid for by

the PAC and the Company does not therefore

consider these to be political donations

Employee contributions are entirely voluntary

and no pressure is placed on employees to

participate Under US law an employee-

funded PAC must bear the name of the

employing company

Payments to suppliers

It is Group policy to abide by the payment

terms agreed with suppliers provided that

the supplier has performed its obligations

under the contract Given the nature and

diversity of the Groups international

purchasing arrangements and contracts it is

not Group policy to follow any specific code

or standard in relation to payment practice

GKN plc as holding company did not have

any amounts owing to trade creditors at

31 December 2009

Corporate governance

The Boards statement on corporate

governance is given on pages 45 to 49 and

is incorporated into this Directors report by

reference

Auditors

Resolutions to reappoint

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors of

the Company and to authorise the Directors

to determine their remuneration will be

proposed at the AGM

Audit information

Each of the Directors who held office at the

date of approval of this Directors report

confirms that so far as he is aware there

is no relevant audit information of which

the Companys auditors are unaware Each

Director has taken all the steps that he

ought to have taken as Director in order

to make himself aware of any relevant

audit information and to establish that

the Companys auditors are aware of that

information

On behalf of the Board

Judith Felton

Company Secretary

24 February 2010

As at 28 February 2010 the Company had not been advised

nf any changes nr additions to the notifiable interests set

out on page 43
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Corporate Governance

In accordance with the Listing Rules of the

Financial Services Authority GKN is required

to state whether it has complied with all

relevant provisions set out in Section of

the 2008 Combined Code on Corporate

Governance the Code and where the

provisions have not been complied with to

provide an explanation GKN is also required

to explain how it has applied the main

principles set out in the Code The Code

is published by the Financial Reporting

Council and is available on its website at

www.frc.org.uk

This statement together with the Audit

Committee report on pages 50 and 51

and the Directors remuneration report on

pages 52 to 62 provide description of

how the main principles of the Code have

been applied within GKN during 2009 The

Directors statement of compliance with the

Code is given on page 49

This statement complies with sub-sections

2.1 2.20 2.30 2.5 2.7 and 2.10 of Rule

of the Disclosure Rules and Transparency

Rules of the Financial Services Authority

The information required to be disclosed

by sub-section 2.6 of Rule is shown in the

Directors report on pages 42 and 43 and is

incorporated into this corporate governance

statement by reference

The Board of Directors

The Board is collectively responsible for the

success of the Company Its role is to provide

entrepreneurial leadership of the Company

within framework of prudent and effective

controls which enables risk to be assessed

and managed The Board sets the Companys

strategic aims ensures that the necessary

financial and human resources are in place

for the Company to meet its objectives and

reviews management performance It also

sets the Companys values and standards and

ensures that its obligations to its shareholders

including reporting to shareholders on

the Boards stewardship and others are

understood and met Specific responsibilities

reserved to the Board include

setting Group strategy and approving

an annual budget and medium term

projections

reviewing operational and financial

performance

approving major acquisitions

divestments and capital expenditure

reviewing the Groups systems of

financial control and risk management

ensuring that appropriate management

development and succession plans are

in place

reviewing the activities of the three sub

committees of the Executive Committee

reviewing matters relating to corporate

social responsibility including the

environmental health and safety

performance of the Group

approving appointments to the Board

to the Executive Committee and to the

position of Company Secretary and

approving policies relating to Directors

remuneration and the severance of

Directors contracts and

ensuring that satisfactory dialogue

takes place with shareholders

The Directors responsibility for the

preparation of financial statements is

explained on page 63 their confirmation that

they consider it appropriate to prepare the

accounts for 2009 on going concern basis is

given on page 27

description of the role of the Board

together with that of the Chairman Chief

Executive Senior Independent Director and

Company Secretary is available on GKNs

website and further details of the Boards role

in relation to the Groups systems of internal

control and risk management are given on

pages 48 and 49 Descriptions of the specific

responsibilities which have been delegated

to the principal Board Committees are given

on pages 47 and 48

Following the appointment of Michael Turner

on September 2009 the Board currently

comprises five executive and seven non-

executive Directors including the Chairman

Biographical details of the Directors are given

on pages 40 and 41 With the exception of

the Chairman who is presumed under the

Code not to be independent all the non-

executive Directors are regarded by the Board

as independent and the Board does not

consider that there exist any relationships or

circumstances likely to affect the judgement

of any Director

The Board meets formally at least eight times

year usually with at least one meeting at

Group operating company 12 month rolling

programme of items for discussion by the

Board is prepared to ensure that all matters

reserved to the Board and other key issues

are considered at appropriate times During

the year there are sufficient opportunities for

the Chairman to meet with the non-executive

Directors without the executive Directors being

present should this be deemed appropriate

The Company maintains appropriate

insurance cover in respect of legal

proceedings and other claims against its

Directors Details of indemnities in place

between the Company and the Directors can

be found in the Directors report on page 43

Chairman and Chief Executive

Whilst collectively the Chairman and Chief

Executive are responsible for the leadership

of the Company the Chairmans primary

responsibility is for leading the Board and

ensuring its effectiveness and the Chief

Executive is responsible for running the

Companys business

The other significant current commitments

of the Chairman Roy Brown are listed in his

biography on page 40 The Board is satisfied

that his commitments do not unduly restrict

his availability to GKN and in particular

would not do so in the event of GKN being

involved in major corporate transaction or

other action

Information and professional

deveLopment

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that

Directors receive accurate timely and clear

information The provision of information to

the Board was reviewed during the year as

part of the performance evaluation exercise

referred to below

Comprehensive briefing papers are prepared

and circulated to all Directors one week prior

to scheduled Board meetings Directors

are continually updated on the Groups

businesses the markets in which they
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operate and changes to the competitive

and regulatory environment through

briefings to the Board and meetings with

senior executives The Chairman usually

arranges for the Board to visit at least one

of the Groups business locations each year

to enable the Directors to meet with local

management and employees and to update

and maintain their knowledge and familiarity

with the Groups operations

On ioining the Board Director receives

comprehensive induction pack which

includes background information about

GKN and its Directors and details of Board

meeting procedures Directors duties and

responsibilities procedures for dealing in GKN

shares and number of other governance

related issues This is supplemented by

briefing with the Company Secretary who

is charged with facilitating the induction of

new Directors both into the Group and as to

their roles and responsibitities as Directors

The Director meets with the Chief Executive

and with relevant senior executives to be

briefed on the general Group strategy and

each individual business portfolio Plant visits

and external training particularly on matters

relating to the role of Director and the role

and responsibilities
of Board Committees are

arranged as appropriate

Ongoing training is provided as and when

necessary and may be identified in annual

individuat performance reviews or on an

ad hoc basis The suitability of external

courses is kept under review by the Company

Secretary Training and development of

Directors in 2009 included visits to GKN

plants on an individual basis completion of

the first phase of the Mastering Continuous

Improvement Leadership MCI programme

by certain executive Directors and

attendance at external seminars for members

of the Remuneration Committee

AtI Directors have direct access to the advice

and services of the Company Secretary who

is tasked with ensuring that the Board is

fully briefed on all legislative regulatory

and corporate governance developments In

addition Directors may in the furtherance of

their duties take independent professional

advice at the Companys expense

Performance evaluation

The Board has undertaken its annual formal

evaluation of its own performance and that

of its Committees The evaluation process

was based on questionnaire which covered

issues such as Board composition role

and remit strategy operational reporting

stakeholder engagement and controls and

risk management number of Directors

provided their responses to the questionnaire

through one-to-one discussions with the

Company Secretary whilst others completed

it online The results of the evaluation and

recommendations for improvements were

reported to the relevant Committees before

the Board as whole agreed appropriate

changes These included

change in frequency of scheduled

Board and Executive Committee

meetings

disbanding of the Chairmans Committee

review of arrangements for the

provision of externat advice to the

Remuneration Committee

extending circulation of Audit Committee

papers to executive Directors

the addition of standing item on Board

agendas to enable Committee Chairmen

to brief the Board on discussions and

decisions at Committee meetings and

the identification of further training

opportunities on matters of relevance to

Directors in that role and as members of

Board Committees

The individual performance of the Directors

was also evaluated through one-to-one

interviews with the Chairman To assist this

process number of assessment areas

were identified in advance and used as

framework for conducting the appraisal

interviews Sir Peter Williams as Senior

Independent Director led the review by the

non-executive Directors of the Chairmans

performance which took into account the

views of the executive Directors Similarly

the views of the other Directors were taken

into account by the Chairman in his review ol

the Chief Executives performance No action

were considered necessary as result of any

of these evaluations

Re-election of Directors

The Companys articles of association require

Directors to seek re-election by shareholders

at least once every three years In addition

all Directors are subject to re-election by

shareholders at the first AGM following their

appointment by the Board Any non-executive

Directors who have served for more than

nine years are subject to annual re-election

Details of the Directors retiring
and seeking

re-election at the 2010 AGM are given in the

notice of meeting circular

Relations with shareholders

GKN is committed to ongoing engagement

with shareholders and has wetl-established

communication programme based on the

Groups financial reporting calendar This

programme enables the Directors to gain

an understanding of the views and opinions

of its shareholders In its communications

with shareholders GKN aims to present

balanced and understandable assessment of

the Group

Communication with major institutional

shareholders is undertaken as part of GKNs

investor relations programme in which

non-executive Directors are encouraged to

participate This includes presentations of

the full and half year results and meetings

between institutional investors both in the

UK and overseas and the Chief Executive

Finance Director Head of Investor Relations

and External Communications and other

executive Directors Periodic meetings

with representatives of major institutional

shareholders other fund managers and the

financial press are atso hetd

Feedback is sought by the Companys brokers

after meetings and presentations to ensure

that the Groups strategy and performance is

being communicated effectively and to develop

further an understanding of shareholder

views This feedback is included in twice

yearty report to the Board which also provides

an update on investor relations activity

highlights changes in holdings of substantial

shareholders and reports on share price

movements In addition external brokers

reports on GKN are circulated to all Directors
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The Chairman offers major shareholders

the opportunity to meet with him to discuss

matters relating to governance and strategy

Feedback to the Board is provided by the

Chairman on any issues raised with him The

Senior Independent Director is also available

to discuss issues with shareholders where

concerns cannot be addressed through

normal channels of communication

Shareholders who attend the AGM are

invited to ask questions during the meeting

and to meet with Directors after the formal

proceedings have ended Details of the

level of proxy votes received are advised

to shareholders at the meeting and are

published on GKNs website

Written responses are given to letters or

email received from shareholders and

all shareholders receive or can access

electronically copies of the annual and half

year reports The investor relations section of

GKNs website provides further detail about

the Group including share price information

webcasts and presentations of annual and

half year results other presentations made

to the investment community and copies of

financial reports

Directors conflicts of interest

Under the Companies Act 2006 Directors

have statutory duty to avoid conflicts of

interest with the Company As permitted by

the Act the Companys articles of association

enable Directors to authorise actual and

potential conflicts of interest

Formal procedures for the notification and

authorisation of such conflicts have been

implemented These procedures enable

non-conflicted Directors to impose limits

or conditions when giving or reviewing

authorisation and require the Board to review

the register of Directors conflicts annually

and on an ad hoc basis when necessary Any

potential conflicts of interest in relation to

newly appointed Directors are considered by

the Board prior to appointment

Board Committees

The full terms of reference of the following

Board Committees are available upon request

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is tasked with

leading overseeing and directing the

activities of the Group It is responsible for

reviewing divisional and Group strategy

plans approving and leading the consistent

implementation of business and operational

processes and identifying evaluating and

monitoring the risks facing the Group and

deciding how they are to be managed The

Committee meets formally at least eight

times year

The Committee consists of the executive

Directors the Group Human Resources

Director the Chief Executive OffHighway

and the Company Secretary under the

chairmanship of the Chief Executive

The Executive Committee has three sub

committees consisting of members of senior

management

the Lean Enterprise Sub-Committee is

responsible for driving operational best

practice globally through the application

of Lean business processes

the Group Technology Strategy Board is

responsible for development of the Groups

technology plan driving the development

of appropriate technologies across the

Group and the strengthening of external

relationships including access to sources of

funding and

the Governance and Risk Sub-Committee

has responsibility for developing strategy

for and providing oversight and direction

on all matters relating to governance

and compliance risk management and

corporate social responsibility

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee ensures the integrity of

financial reporting and audit processes and

the maintenance of sound internal control

and risk management system The Committee

meets at least four times year and consists

of all the independent non-executive

Directors under the chairmanship of John

Sheldrick report by the Committee on its

activities is given on pages 50 and 51

The Remuneration Committee is responsible

for approving the terms of service and setting

the remuneration of the executive Directors

and the Company Secretary in accordance

with remuneration policy which is approved

annually by the Board It is also responsible

for determining the fees of the Chairman

and the terms upon which the service of

executive Directors is terminated having

regard to severance policy adopted by the

Board and for monitoring the remuneration

of senior managers just
below Board level

It also prepares for approval by the Board

the annual report on Directors remuneration

pages 52 to 62

The Committee has access to such

information and advice both from within

the Group and externally at the cost of

the Company as it deems necessary It is

responsible for appointing any consultants in

respect of executive Directors remuneration

The Committee meets periodically when

required and consists of the independent

non-executive Directors under the

chairmanship of Sir Peter Williams

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee leads

the process for identifying and makes

recommendations to the Board on

candidates for appointment as Directors of

the Company and as Company Secretary

giving full consideration to succession

planning and the leadership needs of the

Group It also makes recommendations to the

Board on the composition of the Nominations

Committee and the composition and

chairmanship of the Audit and Remuneration

Committees It keeps under review the

structure size and composition of the Board

including the balance of skills knowledge

and experience and the independence of

the non-executive Directors and makes

recommendations to the Board with regard to

any changes

The Nominations Committee follows Board

approved procedures available on GKNs

website in making its recommendations It

has access to such information and advice

both from within the Group and externally

Remuneration Committee

and on GKNs website



GKN plc Annuat Report 2009

Corporate Governance

at the cost of the Company as it deems

necessary This may include the appointment

of external executive search consultants

where appropriate

These procedures were used by the

Nominations Committee in recommending

the appointment of ludith Felton as Company

Secretary as of May 2009 and Michael

Turner as non-executive Director as of

September 2009 The Committee engaged

the services of an external search consultant

in relation to the latter appointment

The Committee meets periodically when

required and consists of the non-executive

Directors and the Chief Executive under

the chairmanship of the Chairman except

when the Committee is dealing with the

appointment of successor as Chairman

when the Senior Independent Director chairs

the Committee

Internal control

The Board attaches considerable importance

to and acknowledges its responsibility

for the Groups systems of internal control

and risk management and receives regular

reports on such matters The Boards policy is

to have systems in place which optimise the

Groups ability to manage risk in an effective

and appropriate manner

The Board has delegated to the Executive

Committee responsibility for identifying

evaluating and monitoring the risks facing the

Group and for deciding how these are to be

managed In addition to formal reviews of risk

management by the Executive Committee

members are expected to report to the

Committee as necessary the occurrence of

any material control issues serious accidents

or events that have had major commercial

impact or any significant new risks which

have been identified Such matters are

reported to the next Board meeting and/or

Audit Committee meeting as appropriate

As part of its remit the Governance and

Risk Sub-Committee develops strategy for

and provides oversight and direction on

all matters relating to risk management It

Roy Brown

Sir Kevin Smith

Marcus Bryson

Helmut Mamsch

Sir Christopher Meyer

Andrew Reynolds Smith

Richard Parry-Jones

William Seeger

John Sheldrick

Nigel Stein

Michael Turner

Sir Peter Williams

reports formally on an annual basis to the

Executive Committee and to the Board

GKNs enterprise risk management

programme facilitates common Group-wide

approach to the assessment of risks and the

way in these are monitored managed and

controlled Risk profiling is undertaken at

plant divisional and corporate levels using

software tool which provides consistent

set of risk definitions and common

approach to probability and impact broad

spectrum of risks are considered including

those relating to strategy operational

performance financial including credit risk

risk financing and fraud product engineering

and technology business reputation

human resources health and safety and

the environment Consolidated risk maps

are reviewed by divisional management the

Executive Committee the Audit Committee

and the Board

summary of those risks which could have

material impact on the Group is given on

pages 30 and 31

The Group also has in place systems

and procedures for exercising control

and managing risk in respect of financial

reporting and the preparation of consolidated

accounts These include

10

12

11

12

12

12

3/4 0/1 3/4 3/4

12

the formulation and deployment of Group

accounting policies
and procedures

supported by regular bulletins from the

central and divisional finance teams on

the application of accounting standards

Group and divisional policies governing

the maintenance of accounting records

transaction reporting and key financial

control procedures

proprietary internal control monitoring

system GKN Reporting and Integrity

Procedures GRIP to assess compliance

with key financial controls on monthly

quarterly and annual cycles

monthly operational review meetings

which include as necessary reviews of

internal financial reporting issues and

financial control monitoring and

ongoing training and development of

financial reporting personnel

Each year all Group businesses are required

formally to review their business risks and

to report on whether there has been any

material breakdown in their internal controls

This formal review is supplemented by an

interim review conducted at the half year

Companies also have to confirm annually

whether they have complied with statutory

and regulatory obligations as well as with the

policies
which support the GKN Code

Directors attendance record

The attendance of Directors at relevant meetings of the Board and of the Audit Remuneration

and Nominations Committees held during 2009 was as follows

Audit

Board Committee

Director 12 meetings 14 meetings

Remuneration Nominations

Committee Committee

18 meetings meetings

12

12

12

11

Actual attendance/mauimum number of meetings Director could attend based on date of appointment
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The Groups systems and procedures are

designed to identify manage and where

practicable reduce and mitigate the effects

of the risk of failure to achieve business

objectives They are not designed to

eliminate such risk recognising that any

system can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss

The review process

The Board reviews the Groups systems of

internal control and risk management on an

ongoing basis by

setting the strategy of the business at

both Group and divisional level and

within the framework of this approving

an annual budget and medium term

projections Central to this exercise is

review of the risks and opportunities

facing each business and the steps being

taken to manage these

reviewing on regular basis operational

and financial performance and

updated forecasts for the current year

Comparisons are made with budget

and the prior year and appropriate

action plans put in place to optimise

operational and financial performance

retaining primary responsibility for

acquisition and divestment policy and

the approval of major capital expenditure

major contracts and financing

arrangements Below Board level there are

ctearty defined management authorities

for the approval of capital expenditure

major contracts acquisitions investments

and divestments together with an

established framework for their appraisal

which includes risk analysis and

post.implementation plan and where

appropriate post-acquisition review

keeping under review the Groups

pension fund arrangements and receiving

reports on the Groups treasury activities

having approved the operating policies

and controls for this function and on

matters relating to taxation

performing at least annually review

of the Groups insurance and risk

management programmes

receiving an annual report following its

review by the Executive Committee on

corporate social responsibility matters

which includes the environmental health

and safety performance of the Groups

operations and

reviewing an annual management

development and succession plan

The Executive Committee also reviews

management development issues at

least annually

The Board receives an annual report from the

Audit Committee concerning the operation

of the systems of internal control and risk

management This report together with the

reviews by the Board during the year of the

matters described above enables the Board

to form its own view on the effectiveness of

the systems

The Audit Committee is responsible for

reviewing the ongoing control processes and

the actions undertaken by the Committee to

discharge this responsibility are described

in the Audit Committees report on pages 50

and 51

To assist it in this role the Committee liaises

closely with the corporate audit department

which using risk-based audit programme

reviews and tests the systems controls

processes procedures and practices across

the Group The Head of Corporate Audit

who reports directly to the Finance Director

meets regularly with the Chairman of the

Audit Committee the Group Chairman and

the Chief Executive The departments reports

are seen by the relevant members of the

Executive Committee and are summarised

quarterly for the Audit Committee The

resolution of any control issues raised by

Board members or in reports reviewed by the

Audit Committee is discussed in Committee

with management

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness

of the Groups systems of internal control

and risk management during the period

covered by this annual report It confirms

that the processes described above which

accord with the guidance on internal control

appended to the Code the revised Turnbull

Guidance have been in place throughout

that period and up to the date of approval of

the annual report The Board also confirms

that no significant failings or weaknesses

were identified in relation to the review

Compliance with the Code

It is the Boards view that throughout 2009

GKN was in compliance with all relevant

provisions set out in Section of the Code
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Composition

The Audit Committee comprises the fottowing

independent non-executive Directors

biographical details of whom are set out on

pages 40 and 41

John Sheidrick Chairman

Helmut Mamsch

Sir Christopher Meyer

Richard Parry-Jones

Michael Turner since his appointment to the

Board on September 2009

Sir Peter Williams

The Company Secretary acts as secretary to

the Committee

number of Committee members have in the

Boards view recent and relevant financial

experience as required by the Combined

Code on Corporate Governance In particular

John Shetdrick was Group Finance Director

of lohnson Matthey plc
from 1995 until

his retirement in September 2009 and has

chaired GKNs Audit Committee since 2004

Role

The primary role of the Audit Committee

which reports its findings to the Board

is to ensure the
integrity

of the financial

reporting and audit processes and the

maintenance ofa sound internal control and

risk management system The Committee is

responsible for monitoring and reviewing

the integrity of the Groups financial

statements and the significant reporting

judgements contained in them

the appropriateness of the Groups

relationship with the external auditors

including auditor independence fees and

provision of non-audit services

the effectiveness of the external audit

process making recommendations to the

Board on the appointment of the external

auditors

the activities and effectiveness of the

internal audit function Corporate Audit

the effectiveness of the Groups internal

control and risk management systems

and

the Groups policies and practices

concerning business conduct and ethics

including whistleblowing

In the performance of its duties the

Committee has independent access to

the services of Corporate Audit and to the

external auditors and may obtain outside

professional advice as necessary Both the

Head of Corporate Audit and the external

auditors have direct access to the Chairman

of the Committee outside formal Committee

meetings

The Committee has written terms of reference

that outline its authority and responsibilities

These are considered annually by the Audit

Committee and any proposed changes

are referred to the Board for approval The

Committees current terms of reference are

available on GKNs website

Comprehensive briefing papers are prepared

and circulated to Committee members in

advance of each meeting and made available

to other Directors In order that the Board is

kept fully appraised of the Committees work

the Committee Chairman reports formally on

its proceedings at the next following meeting

of the Board

Activities

Meetings and attendance

The Committee met on four occasions in

2009 timed to coincide with the financial and

reporting cycles of the Company Members

attendance at these meetings is set out in the

table on page 48

The Group Chairman Chief Executive

Finance Director Head of Corporate

Audit the engagement partner of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP PwC and other

members of senior management attended

meetings by invitation The Head of Corporate

Audit and PwC had the opportunity to

discuss matters with the Committee without

any executive management being present

at two and three meetings respectively In

addition the members of the Committee

met separately at the start of each meeting

to discuss matters in the absence of any

persons attending by invitation

Financial reporting

The Audit Committee considered wide

range of financial reporting and related

matters in respect of 2009 published results

For both the half and full year the Committee

reviewed any significant areas of judgement

that materially impacted reported results

key points of disclosure and presentation

to ensure the adequacy clarity and

completeness of the financial statements

and the content of results announcements

prior to their submission to the Board It also

considered reports from PwC on their review

of the 2009 half year report and in respect

of the full year PwCs audit of the financial

statements and other items in the 2009

annual report Analysis to support the going

concern judgement given on page 27 was

also reviewed

External auditors

Independence

The Audit Committee is responsible for

the development implementation and

monitoring of the Companys policies on

external audit The policies designed to

maintain the objectivity and independence

of the external auditors regulate the

appointment of former employees of the

external audit firm to positions in the Group

and set out the approach to be taken when

using the external auditors for non-audit

work

As general principle the external auditors

are excluded from consultancy work and

cannot be engaged by GKN for other non-

audit work unless there are compelling

reasons to do so Any proposal to use the

external auditors for non-audit work must

be submitted to the Finance Director via

the Group Financial Controller for approval

prior to appointment The Finance Director

who is permitted to delegate approval to the

Group Financial Controller for amounts below

20000 will depending on the nature of the

service seek the prior authorisation of the

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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The Committee receives annual confirmation

from PwC as to their independence and

objectivity within the context of applicable

regulatory requirements and professional

standards as well as management

confirmation of compliance with the Groups

policies on the employment of former

employees of the external auditors and the

use of the external auditors for non-audit

work

Effect iveness and reappointment

The Committee has undertaken its annual

review of the qualification expertise

resources and independence of the external

auditors and the effectiveness of the external

audit process by

reviewing and approving PwCs plans

for the audit of the Groups 2009 financial

statements the terms of engagement for

the audit and the proposed audit fee

considering the views of Directors senior

management and the PwC engagement

partner on PwCs independence

objectivity integrity audit strategy and

its relationship with the Group obtained

by way of interview and

taking into account information provided

by PwC on their independence and

quality control procedures

In making its recommendation to the Board

that PwC be reappointed for further year

the Committee took into account their tenure

as auditors and considered whether there

should be full tender process There were

no contractual obligations restricting the

Committees choice of external auditors

Internal control

In 2009 the Committee reviewed the results

of the audits undertaken by Corporate

Audit and considered the adequacy of

managements response to the matters

raised including the implementation of any

recommendations made It also reviewed

and approved the 2010 Corporate Audit

programme including the proposed audit

approach coverage and allocation of

resources The effectiveness of Corporate

Audit was formally reviewed taking

into account the views of Directors and

senior management on matters such as

independence proficiency resourcing and

audit strategy planning and methodology

The Committee reviewed regular reports on

control issues of Group level significance

including details of any remedial action being

taken It considered reports from Corporate

Audit and PwC on the Groups systems of

internal control and reported to the Board on

the results of its review The Committee also

examined reports detailing the Groups actual

or anticipated material
litigation monitored

compliance with the Groups policy for the

appointment of agents and consultants

which is available on GKNs website

and reviewed the Directors and Company

Secretarys expenses

Further information on the Groups systems

of internal control and risk management is

given on pages 48 and 49

Whistleblowing

To support the Groups Employee

Disclosure Procedures Policy which is

available on GKNs website GKN operates

international whistleblowing hotlines Run

by external and independent third parties

the hotlines facilitate the arrangements

whereby employees can make on an

anonymous basis if preferred confidential

disclosures about suspected impropriety

and wrongdoing Any matters so reported

are investigated and escalated to the Audit

Committee as appropriate Statistics on the

volume and general nature of all disclosures

made are reported to the Committee on an

annual basis

Performance evaluation

During the year the Committee undertook

formal evaluation of its own performance

further details on which can be found on

page 46

On behalf of the Committee

John Sheldrick

Chairman of the Audit Committee

24 February 2010

Details of the fees paid to PwC in 2009 can

be found in note 3aiv to the financial

statements
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The Remuneration Committee

Composition

The Committee comprises the following

independent non-executive Directors

biographical details of whom are set out on

pages 40 and 41

Sir Peter Williams Chairman

Helmut Mamsch

Sir Christopher Meyer

Richard Parry-lones

John Sheldrick

Michael Turner since his appointment to the

Board on September 2009

The Company Secretary acts as secretary to

the Committee

Role

The Remuneration Committee formulates the

Groups policy for the remuneration of the

executive Directors of GKN plc It reviews

the
policy annually and recommends any

changes to the Board for formal approval

Within the framework of the agreed policy the

Committee has responsibility for

determining the detailed terms of

service of the executive Directors and

the Company Secretary including basic

salary incentives and benefits and the

terms upon which their service may be

terminated

determining the fees of the Chairman

and

monitoring the level and structure

of remuneration of the most senior

executives immediately below Board

level

The Committee appointed Hewitt New Bridge

Street HNBS in 2006 as its independent

consultants to provide advice on executive

Directors remuneration and incentive

arrangements for senior executives below

Board level HNBS also provide the total

shareholder return monitoring service in

connection with the Groups long term

incentive arrangements role it has

performed for the Group since 2004 HNBS

did not provide any other services direct to the

Group during the year

review of arrangements for the provision of

external advice is currently being undertaken

The Committee also receives input from

the Chief Executive when considering the

remuneration of other executive Directors

and of the Company Secretary

Written terms of reference that outline the

Committees authority and responsibilities

are available upon request and on GKNs

website The terms which are reviewed

annually under the Boards performance

evaluation procedures described on page

46 comply with the best practice provisions

of the Combined Code on Corporate

Governance

Activities

The Committee met on eight occasions in

2009 to consider range of issues including

review of the Directors remuneration

and severance policies

proposals for and payments under

the short term variable remuneration

scheme

review of the awards to be made

under the Groups long term incentive

arrangements

the adjustment to long term incentive

awards and share options following the

rights issue and

formal evaluation of its own performance

Members attendance at meetings of the

Committee in 2009 is set out in the table on

page 48

As reported in the business review 2009 proved to be challenging

year for GKN with the severe recessionary conditions impacting Group

earnings particularly in the first six months The Committee in turn

has faced challenges in applying the remuneration policy to ensure the

executive Directors are appropriately rewarded and incentivised in such

circumstances Against this background the Committee believes it has

applied the remuneration policy prudently and with clear alignment

to the interests of shareholders

In light
of these factors and also that several Directors chose to take

reduced salary for the majority of the year the Committee believes

that remuneration levels are justified and wilt incentivise growth and

reward Directors appropriately for their contribution

am therefore pleased to present the Remuneration Report for

2009 which sets out in more detail the remuneration policy for

Directors and how it has been applied including disclosures on

directors remuneration required by law

In particular notwithstanding the strong leadership of the Directors

in managing the business through the recession no salary increases

were awarded to Directors in 2009 In addition the maximum

potential payment under the short term variable remuneration

scheme was reduced with targets geared towards profit progression

margin recovery and cash generation The long term incentives

awarded to Directors in the year focus on strong earnings growth

following the recession as well as increasing returns to shareholders

It should also be noted that no long term incentives were awarded in

2008

Sir Peter Williams

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

24 February 2010
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Executive Directors

Remuneration policy

GKNs remuneration poticy for executive

Directors is designed to attract retain and

motivate executives of the high catibre

required to ensure that the Group is managed

successfutty to the benefit of shareholders

To achieve this an internationally competitive

package of incentives and rewards linked to

performance is provided

In setting remuneration levels the Committee

takes into consideration the remuneration

practices found in other multinational

companies and also ensures that the

remuneration arrangements for executive

Directors are compatible with those for

executives throughout the Group

It also considers the most recent pay awards

in the Group generally when reviewing the

basic salaries of the executive Directors

On the basis of the expected value of long

term incentives and achievement of on

target performance for the purposes of the

short term variable remuneration scheme

the total annual remuneration excluding

pension benefits of each executive Director

under the Groups remuneration policy is

weighted between performance.related and

non performance-related elements valued as

at the time of award of long term incentives

at around 55% and 45% respectively The

Committee believes that these proportions

represent an appropriate balance between

certainty of income and incentive-based

remuneration linked to the achievement of

GKNs operational and strategic objectives

Elements of

remuneration

Basic salary and

benefits in kind

Short term

variable

remuneration

Longer term

incentives

_____I

Purpose and Policy

Purpose to recognise an individuals

experience responsibility and

performance

Policy to maintain salaries at

around median level of the relevant

employment markets

Purpose to drive and reward the

achievement of short term financial

targets relevant to GKNs long term

strategic objectives

Policy to make annual awards

based on one year measurement

period which deliver cash payments

but see Directors shareholding

requirement on page 57

Purpose to drive and reward

achievement of longer term objectives

aligned closely to shareholders interests

Policy to make annual awards over

three year measurement period which

deliver shares on vesting

Purpose to provide benefits which

reward long term performance

through seniority and loyalty through

long service

Policy to provide competitive

arrangements

Basis of delivery

Salaries are reviewed annually with any

increase usually effective from july

The Committee undertakes an annual review

of benchmark data provided by external

consultants and takes into account Group

profitability prevailing market conditions and

recent pay awards in the Group generally

Performance of Directors is reviewed to ensure

that payment of salaries in accordance with the

stated policy is
entirely justified

Structure of plan is reviewed annually

Stretching financial targets are set each year

reflecting business priorities which underpin

Group strategy and align with financial key

performance indicators

Structure of plans is considered annually

as part of the award process

Current plans target EPS growth and relative

TSR performance

Combined maximum potential annual award

under plans is 25O/o of basic salary

Benefits are provided dependent on

individual circumstances through the GKN

Group Pension Scheme and/or

supplementary cash allowance

Retirement

benefits



GKN plc Annual Report 2009

Directors Remuneration Report

Basic salary

Individual salaries of executive Directors are

reviewed annually by the Committee taking

into account Group profitability prevailing

market conditions and benchmark data

on remuneration provided to it by external

consultants No salary increase was awarded

in 2009

The basic salaries payable in respect of

executive Directors as at 31 December 2009

were

Sir Kevin Smiths salary has remained

unchanged since 2007 he chose not to

take an increase in 2008 Due to prevailing

conditions in the Groups markets and their

impact on Group profitability Sir Kevin Smith

and Nigel Stein waived 20% of their basic

salary entitlement and Andrew Reynolds

Smith waived 15% of his basic salary

entitlement for the period lanuary to

31 August 2009

The average basic salary of those executives

in the most senior executive grade below

Board level whose remuneration is monitored

by the Remuneration Committee was

261815 as at 31 December 2009 all non-

sterling amounts have been translated into

sterling at the year end exchange rate for this

purpose

Benefits in kind

Benefits in kind comprise principally

car and healthcare benefits The level of

benefits provided to executive Directors is

consistent with that provided by other major

companies These benefits do not form part

of pensionable earnings

In addition under the terms of William

Seegers service agreement under which he

was required to relocate to the UK in 2008

additional reimbursement was made by the

Company in 2009 in respect of final expenses

relating to his relocation

Due to the complicated interaction between

the UK and the US tax regimes tax and

social security equalisation is applied

to Mr Seegers remuneration Additional

taxes which arise in excess of the monthly

contribution deducted from Mr Seegers

salary are settled by the Company in order to

ensure that he is not disadvantaged by his

global tax position

and where appropriate individual portfolio

profit and cash flow performance and

Group net debt were applied Achievement

of on target performance would result in

payments of approximately 37.5% of an

executive Directors salary 47.5% for the

Chief Executive Aerospace and payments

were capped at 80% of salary 90% of

salary for the Chief Executive Aerospace

This compares with potential payment of

approximately 78% of salary in 2008 for on

target performance and cap of 1100/c

The Remuneration Committee has

discretion to alter targets to reflect changed

circumstances such as material changes

in accounting standards or changes in the

structure of the Group Payments to Directors

are based upon percentage of basic salary

received during the year and do not form part

of pensionable earnings

Long term incentive arrangements

These currently comprise the GKN Long Term

Incentive Plan which targets earnings per

share EPS growth and the GKN Executive

Share Option Scheme which is based on total

shareholder return TSR The Committee

believes that these arrangements aligned

to the Groups growth strategy and
reflecting

performance relative to the external market

provide meaningful incentive package for

the motivation and retention of executive

Directors which is linked directly to

shareholders interests

The combined maximum potential annual

award under the GKN Long Term Incentive

Plan and the GKN Executive Share Option

Scheme is 250% of basic salary

Under both plans the number of shares that

vest will depend on the Groups performance

against the relevant targets during the

three years commencing on January in

the year of award and on satisfaction of

personal shareholding requirement see

page 57 In addition before any shares

become eligible for release or exercise the

Remuneration Committee must be satisfied

that this is justified by the underlying

financial performance of the Group over the

measurement period There is no provision

for the retesting of awards

Neither the GKN Long Term Incentive Plan

nor the GKN Executive Share Option Scheme

contains provisions for the automatic release

of unvested awards on change of control of

GKN plc

GKN Long Term Incentive P/on LTIP

Each executive Director may be awarded

annually right to receive GKN shares up to

maximum value of 150% of basic salary

The value of shares for this purpose is

calculated by reference to the average of the

daily closing prices of GKN share during the

preceding year

For awards made between 2004 and

2007 which were based on relative TSR

performance over three year measurement

period the comparator group comprised

tailored peer group representing GKNs

major competitors and customers worldwide

Where comparator companys shares are

listed on an overseas market the TSR of

that company is calculated in local currency

The Committee believes this method of

measurement provides true indication of

companys performance without potential

distortions brought about by windfall

movements in currency Details of the

comparator groups are set out on page 58

Director

Performance-related short term variable

remuneration scheme STVRS

For the 2009 financial year stretching

Salary
targets related to combination of Group

Sir Kevin Smith

Marcus Bryson

Andrew Reynolds Smith

William Seeger

Nigel Stein

747579

375000

400000

400000

487500
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Following shareholder approval new

performance condition based on compound

annual growth in EPS normalised for tax

and excluding exceptional items other net

financing charges and volatile IFRS charges

or credits was introduced to replace relative

TSR for awards granted after the 2008 AGM

In the light of the impact of the severe

recessionary conditions on the Groups

earnings performance the Remuneration

Committee considered that the performance

condition that would normally be applied

to LTIP awards as set out in the first table

below which would have measured EPS

growth from 2008 i.e pre-recession base

was inappropriate for the 2009 awards

Exercising its power under the rules of the

plan and taking account of the performance

of the Group in the first half of 2009 as well

as market expectations of earnings growth

applied performance condition which aims

to incentivise earnings recovery following the

recession The Committee considers that this

performance condition is no less challenging

than that which would normally have applied

GKN Executive Share Option Scheme ESOS

Each executive Director may be awarded

annually an option to acquire number of

GKN shares The Remuneration Committee

decides the level of awards in each year

Annual award levels are not specifically

capped under the ESOS but when combined

with awards under the which are capped

at 150% of basic salary they cannot exceed

250% of basic salary Options granted under

the ESOS are normally exercisable between

the third and tenth anniversary of the date of

grant The exercise price is fixed at the market

price of GKN share at the time of grant

Performance is measured by comparing

the TSR from GKN shares with the TSR

from shares of companies in comparator

group comprising the constituents of the

FTSE 350 Index at the start of three

year measurement period commencing

on January in the year of award The

Remuneration Committee believes the

FTSE 350 Index to be appropriate as it is

broadly based index which contains more

manufacturing and engineering companies

than the FTSE 100 Index

In 2008 changes were made to the ESOS to

reduce from 50% to 35% the percentage

of shares that vest if GKNs TSR ranks at the

median level in the comparator group see

the second table below

over the measurement period the Committee

Vesting levels under the rules of the are as follows

vesting level

100%

300/

Straight line basis

Pre-2008 awards

TSR ranking in comparator group

Upper quartile

Median level

Below median level

Between median and upper quartile

Post-2008 awards

compound annual EPS growth

l2%or more

6%

than 6%

Between 6% and 12%

Following vesting awards are not released to the Director for at least one further year other than in the specific circumstances set out in the rules

of the Dividends are treated as having accrued from the beginning of the third year of the measurement period on any shares that vest and

the equivalent cash amount will be paid to the Director on release of such shares

Vesting levels under the rules of the ESOS are as follows

TSR ranking in comparator group

Upper quartile

Median level

Below median level

Between median and upper quartile

Vesting level

20042007

awards

Post-2008

awards

100% 100%

50% 35%

Straight line basis

The TSR data and ranking information is obtained from HNBS to ensure that the comparative performance is independently verified
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Retirement benefits

Prior to April 2006 certain executive

Directors were subject to the UK restrictions on

pensionable earnings in the Finance Act 1989

the earnings cap Retirement provision is

secured by the Company by supplementary cash

allowances paid to each Director or in certain

cases dependent in part upon the individuals

salary level at commencement of employment

by membership of the executive section of

the GKN Group Pension Scheme which is

defined benefit scheme and supplementary

allowance The retirement provisions are made

in order to assist each Director towards securing

overall retirement benefits comparable in value

with those available under the pension scheme

had it not been for the operation of the earnings

cap some members have specific individual

earnings caps

GKNs defined benefit pension scheme

provides executive Directors with pension

of up to two-thirds of basic annual salary

up to their earnings cap on retirement at

age 60 after 20 or more years service and

proportionately less for shorter service or for

retirement before pension age An employee

contribution of 7.9% of salary up to their

earnings cap is required under the scheme

Executive Directors with non-UK service

agreements typically receive retirement

benefits consistent with local practice In

particular in accordance with standard

practice in the US GKN makes total annual

contribution equivalent to 11% of William

Seegers basic salary and any STVRS payment

made in the relevant year to his qualified and

non-qualified defined contribution pension

arrangement The amount contributed by

GKN is deducted from the supplementary

allowance that would otherwise have been

payable to him maximum of 40% of salary

Following changes in the taxation of pensions

introduced by the UK Government from April

2006 for those Directors previously affected

by the limit on annual pensionable earnings

notional limit has been maintained beyond

April 2006 so that overall the existing

pension and salary supplement arrangements

are broadly unchanged for some members

specific
individual earnings cap has been

introduced No compensation is offered for

any additional tax suffered by the individual

in the event that the value of their pension

exceeds the new Lifetime Allowance

From September 2007 the GKN Group

Pension Scheme adopted Career Average

Revalued Earnings CARE approach rather

than Final Salary basis However as

earnings are capped and all the Directors can

complete more than 20 years service this

will have no impact on the retirement benefit

for these individuals

Service agreements

The Boards current policy is that unless local

employment practice requires otherwise the

service agreements of its executive Directors

will be terminable on one years notice

William Seeger has US service agreement

also terminable on one years notice which

terminates in any event on 31 December

2016 unless extended by prior agreement

with Mr Seeger

There is no contractual provision for

predetermined compensation payable upon

early termination of an executive Directors

service agreement other than in the event

of early termination following change of

control of GKN plc In the event of such an early

termination other than on change of control

the Remuneration Committee would apply

the
principles

of the severance policy adopted

by the Board Under this policy which may

be varied in individual cases an immediate

lump sum severance payment will be made

to the Director equivalent to one years basic

salary plus one years pension contributions

Consideration would be given to the inclusion

in the severance payment of additional

elements relating to short term variable

remuneration and major benefits in kind

However such additional elements will not

normally be included where the severance is

as result of underperformance Consideration

would also be given to making the severance

payment in 12 equal instalments which will

only be paid to the extent that the Director has

not been able to mitigate his loss by the date

of the relevant payment

In the event of the service agreement

coming to an end by mutual consent the

Remuneration Committee will approve such

termination arrangements as are appropriate

in the particular circumstances

If in breach of its terms termination of

Directors service agreement occurs on

less than due notice within 12 months

following change in control of GKN plc

predetermined amount is payable to

the Director equivalent to one years basic

salary pension contributions benefits

in kind and loss of entitlements under

performance-related short term remuneration

arrangements No right to such payment

arises simply by virtue of change in control

An enhancement to the pension rights of

an executive Director upon early retirement

will only be considered in exceptional cases

and full costing would be provided to

the Remuneration Committee at the time

of its deliberations In any event such

enhancement would not be considered

unless objectives set for the Director had

been met or it was otherwise merited in the

opinion of the Remuneration Committee

It is also the Boards policy that at the time

of consideration of proposed appointment

of an executive Director the Remuneration

Committee will take into account the
likely cost

of severance in determining the appropriateness

of the proposed terms of appointment In

accordance with the relevant provisions of the

Companies Act 2006 no payment will be made

to Director for loss of office or employment

with the Company in excess of the Directors

contractual obligations without the prior

approval of shareholders in general meeting
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External appointments

The Board recognises the benefit which

GKN can obtain if executive Directors of GKN

serve as non-executive directors of other

companies Subject to review in each case the

Boards general policy is that each executive

Director may accept one non-executive

directorship with another company but not

the chairmanship of FTSE 100 company from

which the Director may retain the fees

Nigel Stein is non-executive director of

Wolseley ptc He retains the fee payable

in respect of this appointment currently

61800 per annum

Chairman and non-executive

Directors

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy for the Chairman

and the other non-executive Directors is

for recompense by way of fees in tine with

those paid by other UK listed companies of

comparable size and complexity Such fees

may include additional payments in respect

of the chairmanship of Board Committees to

reflect the significant extra responsibilities

attached to these positions

The fees of the non-executive Directors

other than the Chairman together with

any additional fees payable to the Chairmen

of Board Committees are determined by

the Board upon the recommendation of

the Chairman and Chief Executive and

are set at level that the Board believes

will attract individuals with the necessary

experience and ability to make substantial

contribution to the Groups affairs The fees

received by the Chairman are determined by

the Remuneration Committee No Director

participates in deliberations concerning his

own fee Current fee levels which remain

unchanged from 2008 are as follows

Fee

Position f000

Chairman

Non-executive Director

Senior Independent Director

Audit Committee Chairman

Remuneration Committee Chairman

In the light of prevailing conditions in the

Groups markets and their impact on Group

profitability Roy Brown Chairman waived

10% of his fee from January to

31 August 2009

Neither the Chairman nor the other non-

executive Directors participate in the Groups

short term variable remuneration or long

term incentive arrangements or in its pension

scheme nor do they receive benefits in kind

Terms of appointment

The terms of service of the Chairman and

other non-executive Directors are contained

in letters of appointment

Roy Brown became Chairman in May 2004

for an initial period of three years this term

being subsequently extended to 2010

terminable at any time upon 12 months

notice by either party In 2009 by resolution

of the Board his term was further extended

until the date of the Companys AGM in 2012

The current policy for other non-executive

Directors is to serve on the Board for nine

years with interim renewals after three and

six years subject to mutual agreement and

annual performance reviews Appointments

may be terminated upon three months notice

by either party and there are no provisions

for compensation in the event of termination

Roy Browns letter of appointment provides

for the payment of fees up to the date of

the 2012 AGM in the event that his service

is terminated by the Company other than in

accordance with his letter of appointment

Shareholding requirement

In order to reinforce the alignment of

their interests with those of shareholders

generally all Directors are subject to

shareholding requirement Details of

Directors shareholdings are given on

page 62

by Director from an award made under

the LTIP and ESOS is conditional upon the

shareholding requirement being met on

the third anniversary of the grant of the

award For these purposes any vested but

unexercised rights under the be

counted as shares

Each executive Director must acquire the

minimum required shareholding by adding to

any existing shareholding using performance-

related rewards which may be received under

the GKN short term variable remuneration

and long term incentive arrangements

Until the required shareholding level is reached

an executive Director must apply in the

purchase of GKN shares 30% of that amount

of the gross i.e before tax payment under

the STVRS which exceeds 50% of the Directors

gross basic salary at that time and must retain

such number of shares received under the

and ESOS as represents at least 30% of

the gross gain which the Director would have

realised on the exercise of such an award had

the shares been sold on the day of exercise

Non-executive Directors

It is the Boards policy that non-executive

Directors will normally be expected to acquire

holding of GKN shares of value equivalent

to 30% of one years basic fee within three

years of appointment

Rights issue

Following the rights issue completed in July

2009 the Remuneration Committee approved

adjustments to share-based options and

awards granted under the Groups incentive

arrangements in accordance with the rules

of the relevant schemes The adjustments

were based on the theoretical ex-rights price

TERP formula and ensured that the value

of outstanding options and awards remained

the same as the value of the options and

awards when originally granted The number

of shares the subject of options and awards

was multiplied by TERP factor of 1.4816

and where applicable the exercise price

of options was multiplied by factor of

0.6749 The adjustments where necessary

were approved by HM Revenue Customs

Following the capital reorganisation effected

immediately prior to the rights issue all

outstanding share-based options and awards

are over GKN ordinary shares of lOp each

300
Executive Directors

50
Under policy adopted by the Remuneration

Committee executive Directors are required

11
to establish and maintain an investment in

10
GKN shares equivalent to at least 1O0% of

their basic salary The receipt of any shares
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Historical TSR performance

Percentile

ranking in

comparator group

rank no.1 100

LTIP11 ES0S

For the measurement period usder rhe Lilt endirrg on 31 December 2005 rhe comparator group was based on the FrSE 100 lodev less the telecommunications nredia technology and

financial services sectors and comprised 64 cnmpunieo including GKN For the measurement periods ending on 31 Decenrber 2006 2007 2008 and 2009 they comprised tailored peer

groups of 3837.41 and 40 companies respectively including GKN listed in the table below

Ib The ESOS comparator groups comprised the FTSE 350 lndev constituent companies vol lanuary in the first year of the relevant measurement period

Total shareholder return sterling

GKN and FTSE 350 Index 2004 to 2009

160

t40

04 05

FTS GKNTSR

The chart above is prepared itt accordance with Schedute to the Large and

Medium-sized Companies and Groups Accounts and Reports Regulations 2008 the

Regulations It shows the Companys TSR and that of the FTSE 350 Index based on

an initial investment of 100 over the five-pear period to the end of 2009 The ETSE

350 Index was chosen for this chart as it is broadly based index which contains more

manufacturing and engineering companies than the FTSE 1100 Index

Total shareholder return

GKN and median for comparator group for completed three year

measurement periods under the LTIP and ESOS

-6v-v-40%-2nz v-v 20-v unv ov- ot- ron-

09 ESOS comparator group median TSR

GKN TSR

LTIP comparator group median TSR

The LTIP uses differenI comparator groups
and for both the LTIP and the

TSR calculation methodology required is different from that required by the

Regulations The chart above illustrates GKNs TSR compared to the median TSR

of the relevant comparator group under the and ESOS in respect of the five

most recently completed measurement periods

The companies making up the comparator groups for LTIP awards granted between 2004 and 2007 are as follows

Torch Investment Co Ltd

Toyota Motor Corporation

TRW Automotive Holdings Corp

Valeo SA

Visteon Corporation

Volkswagen AG

Wagon plct

Aerospace companies

BAE Systems plc

Cobham plc

Finmeccanica SpA

General Dynamics Corporation

Goodrich Corporation

Lockheed Martin Corporation

Meggitt plc

Raytheon Company

Rolls-Royce plc

Smiths Group plc

United Technologies Corporation

Zodiac SA

Period TSR

January 2003 December 2005 3.59 22 n/a n/a

January 2004 December 2006 49.81 37 24

January 2005 December 2007 70.78 46 47

January 2006 December 2008 5.71 34 30

January 2007 December 2009 51.90 22 20

of award

vested

LTlP ESOS151

80

60

40

20

0709

0608

05 t7

0406

06

0305

07 08

Automotive companies Fa recia SA

American Axle Manufacturing Inc Fiat SpA

ArvinMeritor Inc Ford Motor Company

Autoliv Inc General Motors Corporation

BMWAG HaldexAB

Borg Warner Inc Johnson Controls Inc

Continental AG Magna International Inc

DaimlerChrysler AG Mayflower Corporation plc

Dana Corporationt NGK Spark Plug Co Ltd

Delphi Corporationt NTN Corporations

Denso Corporation Scania AB Boeing Company

Eaton Corporations Tomkins plc
Bombardier Inc

2004 comparator group only t2004 and 2005 comparator groups osiy 020042005 and 2006 comparator groups only 2006 and 2007 comparator groups only
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With the exception of the dates shown in the first table below and in the first table on page 60 note to the table on page 61 and the section

headed Share interests on page 62 the information set out on pages 59 to 62 represents the auditable disclosures required by Schedule to

the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups Accounts and Reports Regulations 2008

The remuneration of the executive Directors in 2009 excluding pension benefits and long term incentives was as follows

Date of Performance- Car Other Total Total

service Salary related allowance benefits 2009 2008

agreement
000 000 000 000 000 000

Sir Kevin Smith 24.01.03 648 299 14 968a 894

Marcus_Bryson
01.10.07 353 275 15 26bl 669 576

Andrew Reynolds Smith 14.11.07 350 150 12 516a 498

William Seegerlrl 11.02.08 400 160 12 82 654a 549

Nigel Stein 22.08.01 413 195 12 594

2164 1079 65 123 3431al 3111

Payments of sapplementary allowances to certain execative Directors to assist them towards secaring retirement benefits are included in the cash allowances for pension benefit parposes

disclosed in the second table on page 62 The following allowances have therefore been excluded from the total remaneration shown in the table above although they are part of the

Directors aggregate emoluments for the purpose of disclosure under Schedule to the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups Accounts and Reports Regulations 2008 Sir Kevin

Smith 299031 2008 299031 Ml Bryson 44160 2008 37320 Reynolds Smith 112960 2008 109920 Seeger 107225 2008 83382 NM Stein 147960
2008 145420

total of 21000 of this amount relates to subsistence allowance to which Mr Bryson was entitled following the relocation of GKNs operational headquarters The payment is subject to

normal tax and national insurance deductions

Under the terms of his service agreement Mr Seegers emoluments are paid semi-monthly in US$ converted at the exchange rate published in the UK Financial Times on the first business

day of the relevant month Mr Seeger is US National who relocated to the UK in 2008 in the role of Finance Director additional reimbursement was made by the Company in 2009 in respect

of expenses relating to his relocation Mr Seeger had full US Federal and State hypothetical tax withholding through the US payroLl in 2009 As result of the complicated interaction of the

UK and US tax regimes an additional payment of 244160 was made by GKN In the UK and US tao authorities on his behalf in ordet to avoid period of double taxation All subsequent

tax refunds resulting from the tax paid by GKN will be refunded to the Company in due course figure of 60858 is contained within the benefits figure shown being the best estimate of

the amount which is not expected to be refunded based on information available to date An amount totalling 58023 relating to an element of UK tax paid but not reported in 2008 is not

included in the above figures

The 2009 performance-related payments made under the STVRS were triggered by the achievement of number of Group and where

appropriate individual portfolio targets relating to profit and cash flow performance and Group net debt The maximum amount that an

individual could receive and actual total payments to executive Directors under the 2009 STVRS were as follows

Etement Maximum Actual

Profit S0OG 10.0 to 43.4

Cash flow

--

12.5 10.0 to 12.5

Group net debt 17.5 17.5

80O 37.5 to 73.4

al 60% fur the Chief Eoecxtive Aerospace

90% for the Chief Executive Aerospace
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The remuneration of the non-executive Directors in 2009 was as follows

Date of current Expiry of current 2009 2008

letterof appointment termw 000 000

Roy Brown 28.04.09 2012 AGM 280 300

HetmutMamsch 24.11.09 30.11.12 50 50

Sir christopher Meyer 03.08.09 2010 AGM 50 50

Richard Parry-Jones 26.02.08 01.03.11 50 42

John Shetdrick 05.12.07 19.12.10 61 61

Michael Turnerw 31.07.09 01.09.12 17

Sir Peter Williams 0706.07 2010 AGM 65 65

573 568

Appointed September 2009

Subject to re-election at the AGM following their appointment and subsequently at intervals of no more than three
years

Directors aggregate emoluments for 2009 amounted to 4.7 million 2008 4.4 million

LII

Awards over GKN shares under the LTIP held by the executive Directors at 31 December 2009 and lanuary 2009 together with awards made

and lapsed during the period were as follows

Awards held Awards held

Date of 31 December Rights issue Awards Awards lanuary

grant 2009 adjustment made Iapsed 2009

Sir Kevin Smith 11.04.06 247560 247560

02.04.07 346398 112598 233800

12.08.09 400000 130021 269979

Marcus Bryson 11.04.06 63370 63370

02.04.07 30400 9881 20519

12.08.09 200647 65221 135426

Andrew Reynolds Smith 11.04.06 80268 80268

02.04.07 37794 12285 25509

12.08.09 214024 69569 144455

WiltiamSeeger 11.04.06 54410 54410

12.08.09 214024 69569 144455

Niget Stein 11.04.06 147542 147542

02.04.07 206447 67106 139341

12.08.09 260841 84787 176054

Outstanding awards were subject to an adjustment following the rights issue to reflect the dilutive effect of the transaction For further information see page 57

bThe closing mid-market price of GKN share on the date of award was 109.6p The measurement period relating to these awards ends on 31 December 2011 rrd the performavce condition

is described on page 55

Since 31 December 2009 the LTIP awards granted on April 2007 have lapsed

Doring 2009 no awards vested and no shares were released to Directors
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ESOS

Options over GKN shares under the ESOS hetd by the executive Directors at 31 December 2009 and January 2009 together with options

granted and tapsed during the period were as follows

Rights

Sir Kevin Smith 15.03.02 15.03.05 14.03.12 207.87p57 147196 47846

19.03.03 19.03.06 18.03.13 IIO.O4pbl 940481 305707

11.04.06 11.04.09 10.04.16 334.05p

02.04.07 02.04.10 01.04.17 256.66pbl 323605 105188

12.08.09 12.08.12 11.08.19 110.O8p 1154509 1154509

Marcus Bryson 15.03.02 15.03.05 14.03.12 2O787pbl 22638 7358

19.03.03 19.03.06 18.03.13 IIO.O4plbl 45489 14786

11.04.06 11.04.09 10.04.16 334.05p

12.08.09 12.08.12 11.08.19 110.08p 579124 579124

20787plbl 33957 11037

l1O.O4pr 87095 28310

334.05p

12.08.09 12.08.12 11.08.19 110.08p 617732 617732

11.04.06 11.04.09 10.04.16 334.05p 43378 43378

12.08.09 12.08.12 11.08.19 110.08p 617732 617732

Nigel Stein 15.03.02 15.03.05 14.03.12 207.87p1 129878 42217

19.03.03 19.03.06 18.03.13 1lO.04p1b1 359834 116965

11.04.06 11.04.09 10.04.16 334.05p

02.04.07 02.04.10 01.04.17 256.66p 192864 62691

12.08.09 12.08.12 11.08.19 110.08p 752861 752861

Represents the earliest exercise date assuming satisfaction of the relevant performance condition and personal shareholding requirement and latest eupiry date of options held by the

Director during the year The performance condition is described on page 55

Ib Outstanding options were subject to an adjustment following the rights issue to reflect the dilutive effect of the transaction For further information see page 57

Ic Since 31 December 2009 the ESOS awards granted on April 2007 have lapsed

Id The closing mid-market price of GKN share on 31 December 2009 was 117p The price range
of ordinary SOp shares prior to the capital reorganisation and rights issue was S6.75pto

140.25p The price range
of ordinary lop shares following the capital reorganisation and rights issue was 92p to 127.Sp

Ic During 2009 no options were exercised by Directors

jf At 31 December 2009 the total number of GKN shares which had been issued on fhe exercise of options granted by the Company or were the subject of such options remaining outstanding

under the ESOS and the Save As You Earn SAYE share option scheme was 17.1 million and 7.8 million respectively This represents approximately 1.1% of the issued share capital of the

Company at that date in
respect of discretionary i.e executive schemes and 1.6% of the issued share

capital
of the Company at that date in

respect
of all i.e both eaecutive and all

employee schemes

Awards held by the executive Directors under the GKN Profit Growth Incentive Plan PGIP as at 31 December 2009 and January 2009 as

adjusted for the rights issue are as follows Sir Kevin Smith nil Marcus Bryson 30199 Andrew Reynolds Smith 37543 William Seeger

10790 Nigel Stein nil Directors are prohibited from participating in the PGIP awards were granted prior to the relevant individuals

appointment as Director of the Company

Under the PGIP the shares which are the subject of the awards would be capable of release dependent on the extent to which profit growth

targets were satisfied by the Group over three year measurement period which commenced on January 2007 the Groups reported profit for

2006 formed the baseline for this performance measure and the satisfaction of personal shareholding requirement Since 31 December 2009

the above PGIP awards have lapsed

The exercise of options under the and SAYE share option scheme will normally be satisfied by the issue of new shares or alternatively

through the transfer of shares held in treasury In respect of awards that vest under the the Company intends to obtain the relevant number

Date of Eoercisable11

grant From To

Shares

under option

2009

toercise 31 December issue Options Options tarruary

price 2009 adjustmentlbl granted lapsed11 2009

Shares

under option

Andrew Reynolds Smith 15.03.02

19.03.03

11.04.06

William Seeger

15.03.05

19.03.06

11.04.09

99350

158694 793468

236816 236816

218417

15280

7676 38379

33677 33677

22920

14697 73482

42658 42658

14.03.12

18.03.13

10.04.16

87661

60718 303587

141138 141138

130173

of shares through market purchase up to the date of release of shares which are the subject of awards that vest
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Retirement benefits

The first table below shows the total amount paid as money purchase contribution paid only in respect of those Directors who are not members

of GKNs defined benefit pension scheme and supplementary allowances to all executive Directors under the Groups pension arrangements The

second table below shows pension amounts for those Directors whose pension arrangements are either wholly or partly of the defined benefit type

cash allowances

for pension

benefit parposes

2009 2008

000 000

Sir Kevin Smith 299 299

Marcus Bryson 44 37

Andrew Reynotds Smith 113 110

William Seegerlal 160 146

Nigel Stein 148 145

Transfer natae at

Transfer value of Transfer salue of 31 December 2009

Accraed annual Accrued annaal accrued annual accrued annual Increase of increase

pension at pension at pension at pension at change in in annaal in annual

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December transfer ealue in pension in pension in

2009w 20081bl 2009 2008 2009 2009w 2D09

000 000 000 000 000 000 000

Marcus Bryson 149 134 2911 2663 248 12 221

AndrewReynoldsSmith 25 21 301 241 60 48

Niget Stein 60 53 1085 976 109 92

The difference between the Directors pension cost shown in this table and the sapptementary allowance amoont disclosed in note on page 59 represents GKNs contribution to the

Directors qoalified and non-qualified defined pension arrangement eqainalent to 11% of Mr Seegers gross earnings

The accrued annoal pension includes entitlements earned as an employee prior to becoming Director as well as for qualifying seraices after becoming Directoc

Increase user the year in accrued pension in encess of inflation to which the Director woald hane been entitled on leaning sernice

transfer nalae represents the present natue of accrued benefits It does not represent an amount of money which the indinidaal is entitled to receise The change in transfer nalue oner the

year reflects the additional pension earned and the effect of changes in stock market conditions during the year The transfer nalues bane been calculated in accordance with the method

and assumptions used to calcalate transfer satues ftom the GKN Group Pension Scheme These assumptions were adopted by the Trastees with effect from April 2008 in order to meet the

requirements of new transfer nalue legislation which came into effect on October 2008

Share interests

The beneficial interests of the Directors including connected persons in GKN shares at 31 December 2009 and January 2009 are set out below

All the Directors who were eligible to do so took up their entitlements in full under the rights issue completed in July 2009

31 December january

2009 2009

Roy Brown 80780 26264

Sir Kevin Smith 1204401547456
Marcus Bryson 161725 73512

Helmut Mamsch 16500 7500

Sir Christopher Meyer 13479 3500

Richard Parry-Jones
_______________

20000

Andrew Reynolds Smith
________________ _______________ _____________

283123 83238

William Seeger
___________________

100000 38626

John Sheldrick
-_____________

20000 5000

Nigel Stein
_____________

460398 209272

Michael Turner
__________ _______________

100000 100000

Sir Peter Williams 33000 15000

On appointment to the Board on September 2009

There were no changes in the Directors interests in shares or options between 31 December 2009 and 24 February 2010 other than in respect

of the lapse of awards under the ESOS and PGIP disclosed on pages 60 and 61

As at 28 February 2010 there were no changes to the beneficial and non-beneficial interests of the Directors
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Statement of Directors Responsibilities

The Directors are responsibte for

preparing the annual report the Directors

remuneration report and the Group and

Company financial statements in accordance

with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to

prepare Group and Company financial

statements for each financial year Under

that law the Directors are required to

prepare the Group financial statements

in accordance with applicable law and

International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

EU and have elected to prepare the

Company financial statements in accordance

with applicable law and United Kingdom

UK Accounting Standards UK Generally

Accepted Accounting Practice

The Group financial statements are required

by law and IFRS5 as adopted by the EU to

present fairly the financial position and

performance of the Group the Companies

Act 2006 provides in relation to such financial

statements that references in the relevant

part of that Act to financial statements giving

true and fair view are references to their

achieving fair presentation The Company

financial statements are required by law

to give true and fair view of the affairs of

the Company and of the
profit or loss of the

Company for that period

In preparing each of the Group and Company

financial statements the Directors are

required to

select appropriate accounting policies

and apply them consistently

make judgements and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent

for the Group financial statements state

whether they have been prepared in

accordance with IFRSs as adopted by

the EU

for the Company financial statements

state whether applicable UK Accounting

Standards have been followed subject

to any material departures disclosed

and explained in the Company financial

statements and

prepare the financial statements on

going concern basis unless it is

inappropriate to presume that the

Group and the Company will continue in

business

The Directors are responsible for keeping

proper accounting records that disclose

with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the Group and the

Company and which enable them to ensure

that the financial statements and the

Directors remuneration report comply with

the Companies Act 2006 and as regards

the Group financial statements Article

of the lAS Regulation They have general

responsibility for taking such steps as are

reasonably open to them to safeguard

the assets of the Company and the Group

and to prevent and detect fraud and other

irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the

maintenance and integrity of the corporate

and financial information included on the

Companys website Legislation in the UK

governing the preparation and dissemination

of financial statements may differ from

legislation in other jurisdictions

The Directors as at the date of the annual

report whose names and functions are set

out on pages 40 and 41 confirm that to the

best of their knowledge

the Group financial statements prepared

in accordance with IFRS5 as adopted

by the EU give true and fair view of

the assets liabilities financial position

and profit or loss of the Company

and the undertakings included in the

consolidation taken as whole and

the management report which

comprises the Directors report

including the business review includes

fair review of the development and

performance of the business and

the position of the Company and

the undertakings included in the

consolidation taken as whole together

with description of the principal risks

and uncertainties that they face

Approved by the Board of GKN plc and signed

on its behalf by

Roy Brown

Chairman

24 February 2010



Group Financial Statements

Independent Auditors Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Changes

in Equity 68

Consolidated Balance Sheet 69

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 70

Notes to the Financial Statements

Accountng pohces aid prescntat on

Segmental analysi

Opei at ng profit
81

Net financnig costs 85

laxatc 86

Discontinued operaho is 89

Larnings per share 90

Adiustod perforrnanc measu es 90

Divi2eids 01

10 Err ployees ncluding Dvi dory it

it Shire hasid payec its It

12 Goodwi id othei intanglo assets 95

65 13 Property plant and eq upm nt

66
14 vestnre its in lonrt cc itu Cs

Other mci iv ibles aid nvestmer Is

16 iventores

17 ace and other eivablr

18 Dade and othei payable

19 Net boirowings

20 Fina icial ira agen ent

ii Derivat ye tin incia isti nit

22 Provisions

21 Siaecapita

24 Sip aisitions

25 as flow reconc hat ors

Pos
ramp iy ire it obligations

27 Contingent assets ai ala ties

28 Opeiatng ease cc ni nt
ii

nts

Toni ease pay lion

29 Cap lal cx endtr re

30 Pelited
pai ty transactions

31 Post balance shert cvcnts

Company Financial Statements

Independent Auditors Report

Balance Sheet of GKN plc

Notes to the Financial Statements

Sinifirant acro rung pour es and baais

of preparation

Profit and oss account

119 riced asset invest ne

120
Peae

Recoirciliat of movomenta

sb tic rol funds

121

22

122

122

98

99

00

1110

to

tot

102

to

18

10

It

ill

112

115

118

Ill

118

118

121



www.gkn.com

Independent Auditors Report to the Members of GKN plc

We have audited the Group financiat

statements of GKN plc for the year ended

31 December 2009 which comprise the

Consolidated Income Statement the

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Income the Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity the Consolidated

Balance Sheet and the Consolidated Cash

Flow Statement and the related notes

These consolidated financial statements

have been prepared under the accounting

policies set out therein The financial

reporting framework that has been applied

in their preparation is applicable law and

International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of

Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the statement of

Directors responsibilities on page 63 the

Directors are responsible for the preparation

of the Group financial statements and for

being satisfied that they give true and fair

view Our responsibility is to audit the Group

financial statements in accordance with

applicable law and International Standards

on Auditing UK and Ireland Those

standards require us to comply with the

Auditing Practices Boards Ethical Standards

for Auditors

This report including the opinions has been

prepared for and only for the Companys

members as body in accordance with Chapter

of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for

no other purpose We do not in giving these

opinions accept or assume responsibility
for

any other purpose or to any other person to

whom this report is shown or into whose hands

it may come save where expressly agreed by

our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial

statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about

the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements sufficient to give reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are

free from material misstatement whether

caused by fraud or error This includes an

assessment of whether the accounting

policies are appropriate to the Groups

circumstances and have been consistently

applied and adequately disclosed the

reasonableness of
significant accounting

estimates made by the Directors and

the overall presentation of the financial

statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the Group financial

statements

give true and fair view of the state of

the Groups affairs as at 31 December

2009 and of its loss and cash flows for

the year then ended

have been properly prepared in

accordance with IFRS5 as adopted by the

European Union and

have been prepared in accordance with

the requirements of the Companies Act

2006 and Article of the lAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed

by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in

the Directors report for the financial year

for which the Group financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the Group

financial statements

Matters on which we are required to

report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the

following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are

required to report to you if in our opinion

certain disclosures of Directors

remuneration specified by law are not

made or

we have not received all the information

and explanations we require for our

audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to

review

the Directors statement on page 27 in

relation to going concern and

the part of the corporate governance

statement relating to the Companys

compliance with the nine provisions of

the June 2008 Combined Code specified

for our review

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Company

financial statements of GKN plc for the

year ended 31 December 2009 and on the

information in the Directors remuneration

report that is described as having been audited

Roy Hodson

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Birmingham
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Notes

2009 2008

Sales 4223 4376

Trading profit
129 201

Restructuring and impairmentcharges 144 153

Amartisation of non-operating intangible assets arising on business combinations 24 10

Profits and lasses on sale or closures of businesses

Change in value of derivative and other financial instruments 76 124

Operating profit/loss 39 86

Share of post-tax earnings of
joint

ventures 14 21

Interest payable 67 66

Interest receivable 19

Other net financing charges 50

Netfinancingcosts 114 50

Profit/loss before taxation 54 130

Taxation 15 10

Profit/loss from continuing operations 39 120

Profit after taxation from discontinued operations 13

Profit/loss after taxation for the year 34 107

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

Profit/loss attributable to equity shareholders 36 109

34 107

Earnings per share restated

Continuing operations basic 3.2 11.7

Continuing operations diluted 3.2 11.7
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Profit/loss after taxation for the year

Other comprehensive income

Currency variations

Subsidiaries

Arising in year

Reclassified in year

Joint ventures

Arising in year

Rectassified in year

Derivative financial instruments

Transactional hedging

Arising in year

Reclassified in year

Translational hedging arising in year

Actuarial gains and losses on post-employment obligations

Subsidiaries

Joint ventures

Tax on items taken directly to equity

2009 2008

Notes Em Em

34 107

154 529

12 36

213

26 190 386

17 23

326 65

Total comprehensive income/expense for the year 360 172

Total comprehensive income/expense for the year attributable to

Equity sharehotders 362 178

Non-controlling interests

360 172
67
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Other reserves

Share

Share premium

capital account

fm

Share-

Retained Currency Hedging Other holders

earnings reserve reserve reserves equity

Total comprehensive

income/expense

for the year

Sale of treasury shares 23

Share-based payments

492 535 221 178 172

Investment by non

controtling interests

Transfers

Dividends paid to

68 shareholders

Dividends paid to non-

Other reserves include accumulated reserves where distribution has been restricted due to legal or fiscal requirements and accumulated

adjustments in respect of piecemeal acquisitions

Notes

Non-

controlling

interests

Total

equity

AtlJanuary2009 372 29 290 499 204 81 905 23 928

Total comprehensive

income/expense

for the year 213 156 362 360

Rights issue 23 85 338 423 423

Rights issue costs 20 20 20
Share-based payments

Transfers 352 352

Dividends paid to non-

controlling interests

At31 December2009 457 431 343 197 95 948 24 972

At January 2008 372 29 834 34 17 41 1177 19 1196

42 40

97 97 97

controlling interests

At 31 December 2008 372 29 290 499 204 81 905 23 928
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Restated

2009 2008

Em

Ht

Consolidated Balance Sheet

31 December 2009

Notes

Assets

Non-current assets

Goodwitl 12 338 367

Other intangible assets 12 187 153

Property ptant and equipment 13 1636 1797

Investments in joint ventures 14 112 119

Other receivabtes and investments 15 24 23

Derivative financial instruments 21 16 42

Deferred tax assets 71 52

2384 2553

Current assets

Inventories 16 563 718

Trade and other receivables 17 644 645

Current tax assets 13 17

Derivative financial instruments 21 20

Other financial assets 19 20

Cash and cash equivalents 19 316 114

1562 1514

Total assets 3946 4067

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Borrowings 19 72 97
Derivative financial instruments 21 14 56
Trade and other payables 18 873 972
Current tax liabilities 79 115

Provisions 22 84 49

1122 1289

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 19 564 725

Derivative financial instruments 21 51 136

Deferred tax liabilities 57 63
Trade and other payables 18 97 38
Provisions 22 87 54

Post-employment obligations 26 996 834

1852 1850

Total liabilities 2974 3139

Net assets 972 928

Shareholders equity

Share capital 23 457 372

Share premium account 29

Retained earnings 431 290

Other reserves 51 214

948 905

Non-controlling interests 24 23

Total equity 972 928
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The financial statements on pages 66 to 118 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24 February 2010 They were

signed on its behalf by

Sir Kevin Smith William Seeger Directors
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2009 2008

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 25 288 328

Interest received 18

Interest paid 68 66

Tax paid 15 45

Dividends received from joint ventures 15 24

227 259

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property plant and equipment 140 192

Purchase of intangible assets 14 13

Receipt of government refundable advances 28

Receipt of government capital grants

Proceeds from sale and realisation of fixed assets 35

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired 24 99

Proceeds from sale of joint ventures continuing/discontinued 3d 18

Investment in joint ventures

Investment loans and capital contributions 11

201 180

Cash flows from financing activities

Net proceeds from rights issue 23 403

Net proceeds from other ordinary share capital transactions 23

Net proceeds from borrowing facilities 148 112

Bond buy-back including buy-back premium 131

Repayment of other borrowings 241 33
Finance lease payments

Settlement of forward foreign currency contracts for net investment hedging 230

Dividends paid to shareholders 97

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

177 259

Currency variations on cash and cash equivalents 24

Movement in cash and cash equivalents 194 156

Cash and cash equivalents at January 94 250

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 25 288 94
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Accounting policies and presentation

The Groups key accounting policies are summarised below

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements the statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS as endorsed and adopted for use by the European Union These statements have been prepared under the historical cost method

except where other measurement bases are required to be applied under IFRS as set out below

These statements have been prepared using all standards and interpretations required for financial periods beginning January 2009 No

standards or interpretations have been adopted before the required implementation date

Standards revisions and amendments to standards and interpretations issued and adopted

As outlined in the statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 IFRS Operating segments and lAS 23 Amendments Borrowing

costs were identified as standards likely to impact the reporting of the Groups 2009 results assets and liabilities with lAS Presentation of

financial statements Revised impacting the presentation of financial results These standards were adopted on January 2009

The adoption of IFRS requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports used to assess performance and allocate

resources by the chief operating decision maker The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Executive Committee led by

the Chief Executive The adoption of this standard has not resulted in any change to the segments reported previously with management

trading profit maintained as the reportable measure of profit or loss The main change has been the inclusion of the Groups share of sales

and trading profit of joint ventures within the segmental disclosure and disclosure of management based asset measures Management

trading profit includes an allocation of costs incurred by central functions in providing operational and regulatory support to the operating

segments with the basis of such allocations applied consistently Inter segment sales are not significant In order to provide comparability

with previously reported margins inter segment sales disclosure is included by way of footnote Comparable information has been re

presented accordingly

71

lAS 23 requires the capitalisation of borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets The standard has been applied prospectively During

the year one Aerospace investment programme has been identified as qualifying asset This programme is in its initial stages and as result

there has been no material impact on the results of the Group from the adoption of this standard

In terms of the presentation of the financial results the main impacts have been the adoption of AS Presentation of financial statements

Revised with the main presentational changes arising from this standard being the new primary statements Statement of comprehensive

income and Statement of changes in equity and the amendment to lAS
clarifying the classification of derivative financial instruments as

current or non-current The Group had previously classified derivative financial instruments as current they are now classified according to

their maturity profile with no impact on total assets total liabilities results or cash flows Comparative data has been restated

The Group also adopted the following relevant amendments to standards with no material impact on its results assets and liabilities

lAS 38 Intangible assets regarding the acceptability of the units of production amortisation method IFRS Financial instruments

disclosure including disclosure of the fair value measurement hierarchy and IFRS Share-based payment regarding vesting conditions and

cancellations

Basis of consolidation

The statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries together the Group and the Groups share of the

results and equity of its joint ventures

Subsidiaries are entities over which either directly or indirectly the Company has control through the power to govern financial and operating

policies so as to obtain benefit from their activities Except as noted below this power is accompanied by shareholding of more than 50% of

the voting rights The results of subsidiaries acquired or sold during the year are included in the Groups results from the date of acquisition

or up to the date of disposal All business combinations are accounted for by the purchase method Assets liabilities and contingent

liabilities acquired in business combination are measured at fair value

In single case the Company indirectly owns 100% of the voting share capital of an entity but is precluded from exercising either control

or joint control by contractual agreement with the United States Department of Defense In accordance with lAS 27 this entity has been

excluded from the consolidation and treated as an investment Further details are contained in note 15
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Accounting policies and presentation continued

Intra-group balances transactions income and expenses are eliminated

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of shareholders earnings and equity attributable to third party shareholders

Joint ventures

loint ventures are entities in which the Group has tong term interest and exercises joint control with its partners over their financial and

operating policies In all cases voting rights are 50% or lower Investments in joint ventures are accounted for by the equity method The

Groups share of equity includes goodwill arising on acquisition

The Groups share of profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and joint ventures are eliminated

Foreign currencies

Subsidiaries and
joint ventures account in the currency of their primary economic environment of operation determined having regard to

the currency which mainly influences sales and input costs Transactions are translated at exchange rates approximating to the rate ruling

on the date of the transaction except in the case of material transactions where actual spot rate may be used if it more accurately reflects

the underlying substance of the transaction Where practicable transactions involving foreign currencies are protected by forward contracts

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date

Material foreign currency movements arising on the translation of intra-group balances treated as part of the net investment in subsidiary

are recognised through equity Movements on other intra-group balances are recognised through the income statement

The Groups presentational currency is sterling On consolidation results and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries and joint ventures are

translated to sterling at average exchange rates except in the case of material transactions where the actual spot rate is used if it more

accurately reflects the underlying substance of the transaction Assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the

balance sheet date

Profits and losses on the realisation of currency net investments include the accumulated net exchange differences that have arisen on the

retranslation of the currency net investments since january 2004 up to the date of realisation

Presentation of the income statement

IFRS is not fully prescriptive as to the format of the income statement Line items and subtotals have been presented on the face of the

income statement in addition to those required under IFRS

Sales shown in the income statement are those of continuing subsidiaries

Operating profit is profit or loss before discontinued operations taxation finance costs and the share of post-tax profit
of

joint ventures

accounted for using the equity method In order to achieve consistency and comparability between reporting periods operating profit is

analysed to show separately the results of normal trading performance and individually significant charges and credits Such items arise

because of their size or nature and in 2009 comprise

charges relating to the Group-wide restructuring programmes announced in 2004 and 2008

the impact of the annual goodwill impairment review

asset impairment and restructuring charges which arise from events which are significant to any reportable segment

amortisation of the fair value of non-operating intangible assets arising on business combinations

profits or losses on businesses sold or closed which do not meet the definition of discontinued operations or which the Group views as

capital rather than revenue in nature and

changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments between the opening and closing balance sheets and material currency

translation movements arising on intra-group funding transactions

The Groups post-tax share of joint venture profits is shown as separate component of profit before tax Material restructuring and

impairment charges are separately identified

Net finance costs are analysed to show separately interest payable interest receivable and other net financing charges Other net financing

charges include the net of interest payable on post-employment obligations and the expected return on pension scheme assets and unwind

of discounts on fair value amounts arising through business combinations
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Accounting policies and presentation continued

Revenue recognition

Sales

Revenue from the sate of goods is measured at the fair vatue of the consideration receivable which generally equates to the invoiced amount

exctuding sates taxes and net of allowances for returns early settlement discounts and rebates

Invoices for goods are raised when the risks and rewards of ownership have passed which dependent upon contractual terms may be at the

point of dispatch acceptance by the customer or in Aerospace certification by the customer Revenue from royalties and the rendering of

services is not significant

Certain businesses principally those in Powder Metallurgy recognise an element of revenue via surcharge mechanism The surcharge

invoiced or credited is generally based on prior period movement in raw material price indices applied to current period deliveries In

those instances where recovery of such increases is guaranteed irrespective of the level of future deliveries revenue is recognised or due

allowance made in the same period as the cost movement takes place

Other income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method Revenue from dividends is not significant

Sates and other income is recognised in the income statement when it can be reliably measured and its coltectability is reasonably assured

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges

Cost

Cost comprises the purchase price plus costs directly incurred in bringing the asset into use Where freehold and long leasehold properties

were carried at valuation at 23 March 2000 these values have been retained as book values and therefore deemed cost at the date of the

IFRS transition

Where assets are in the course of construction at the balance sheet date they are classified as capital work in progress Transfers are made to

other asset categories when they are available for use

Depreciation

Depreciation is not provided on freehold land or capital work in progress In the case of all other categories of property plant and equipment

depreciation is provided on straight line basis over the course of the financial year from the date the asset is available for use

Depreciation is applied to specific
classes of asset so as to reduce them to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which are

reviewed annually

The range of main rates of depreciation used are

Years

Freehold buildings Up to 50

Steel powder production plant 18

General plant machinery fixtures and fittings to 15

Computers to

Commercial vehicles and cars to

Property plant and equipment is reviewed at least annually for indications of impairment Impairments are charged to the income statement

Similarly where property plant and equipment has been impaired and subsequent reviews demonstrate the recoverable value is in excess

of the impaired value an impairment reversal is recorded The amount of the reversal cannot exceed the theoretical net book amount at the

date of the reversal had the item not been impaired Impairment reversals are credited to the income statement against the same line item to

which the impairment was previously charged

Costs attributable to leasehold properties are written off to profit by equal annual instalments over the period of the lease or 50 years

whichever is the shorter
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Accounting policies and presentation continued

Leased assets

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement as incurred over the lease term Finance leased assets are not significant

Discontinued operations

The profit or loss on discontinued operations comprises the trading results up to the date of disposal or discontinuance and the profit or loss

on the disposal or closure where businesses are sold or closed by the date on which the financial statements are approved discontinued

operation is business or businesses that have either been disposed of or closed or satisfies the criteria to be classified as held for sale

and that represents either material line of business within the Group or within one of its reported segments or primary geographical area

of operation Where businesses fall to be treated as discontinued in the current year the comparative data is reclassified to reflect those

businesses as discontinued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised as cost on qualifying tangible and intangible fixed asset expenditure qualifying asset is an asset or

programme where the period of capitalisation is more than 12 months and the capital value is more than 10 million For general borrowings

the capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs outstanding during the period For specific funding the amount

capitalised is the actual funding cost incurred less any investment income on the temporary investment of those funds

Financial assets and liabilities

Borrowings are measured initially at fair value which usually equates to proceeds received and includes transaction costs Borrowings are

subsequently measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and overdrafts together with highly liquid investments of less than

90 days maturity Other financial assets comprise investments with more than 90 days until maturity Unless an enforceable right
of set-off

exists and there is an intention to net settle the components of cash and cash equivalents are reflected on gross basis in the balance sheet

The carrying value of other financial assets and liabilities including short term receivables and payables are stated at amortised cost less

any impairment provision unless the impact of the time value of money is considered to be material

Derivative financial instruments

The Group does not trade in derivative financial instruments Derivative financial instruments including forward foreign currency contracts

are used by the Group to manage its exposure to risk associated with the variability in cash flows in relation to both recognised assets or

liabilities or forecast transactions and ii changes in the value of the Groups net investment in overseas operations All derivative financial

instruments are measured at the balance sheet date at their fair value

Where derivative financial instruments are not designated as or not determined to be effective hedges any gain or loss on remeasurement is

taken to the income statement Where derivative financial instruments are designated as and are effective as cash flow hedges any gain or

loss on remeasurement is held in equity and recycled through the income statement when the designated item is transacted

Remeasurement gains and losses on derivative financial instruments held as net investment hedges are recognised in equity via the

statement of comprehensive income to the extent it is effective until the instrument and the underlying hedged investment are sold when the

profit or loss arising is recognised in the income statement

Gains or losses on derivative financial instruments no longer designated as effective hedges are taken directly to the income statement

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are recognised at their fair value when the nature characteristics and risks of the

derivative are not closely related to the host contract Gains and losses arising on the remeasurement of these embedded derivatives at each

balance sheet date are taken to the income statement

Goodwill

Goodwill consists of the excess of the fairvalue of the consideration overthe fairvalue of the identifiable intangible and tangible assets net of

the fair value of the liabilities including contingencies of businesses acquired at the date of acquisition

Goodwill in respect of business combinations of subsidiaries is recognised as an intangible asset Goodwill arising on the acquisition of

joint venture is included in the carrying value of the investment



www.gkn.com

Accounting policies and presentation continued

Where negative goodwilt arises fotlowing reassessment of fair values it is credited to the income statement in the period in which the

acquisition is made

Goodwill is not amortised but tested at least annually for impairment Impairments are charged to the income statement Goodwill is carried

at costless any recognised impairment losses that arise from the annual assessment of its carrying value To the extent that the carrying

value exceeds the recoverable amount determined as the higher of estimated discounted future net cash flows or recoverable amount on

fair value less cost to sell basis goodwill is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment charge is recognised in the income

statement

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment charges

Computer software

Where computer software is not integral to an item of property plant or equipment its costs are capitalised and categorised as intangible

assets Cost comprises the purchase price plus costs directly incurred in bringing the asset into use Amortisation is provided on straight

line basis over its economic useful life which is in the range of three to five years

Development costs

Where development expenditure results in new or substantially improved product or process and it is probable that this expenditure will

be recovered it is capitalised Amortisation is charged from the date the asset is available for use In Aerospace amortisation is charged over

the assets life up to maximum of fifteen years either on straight line basis or where sufficient contractual terms exist unit of production

method is applied In Automotive amortisation is charged on straight line basis over the assets life up to maximum of seven years

Capitalised development costs are subject to annual impairment reviews Impairments are charged to the income statement
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Research expenditure is written off as incurred

Assets acquired on business combinations non-operating intangible assets

Non-operating intangible assets are intangible assets that are acquired as result of business combination which arise from contractual

or other legal rights and are not transferable or separable On initial recognition they are measured at fair value Amortisation is charged on

straight line basis to the income statement over their expected useful lives which are

Years

Marketing related assets brands and trademarks 3050

agreements not to compete Life of agreement

Customer related assets order backlog Length of backlog

other customer relationships 215

Technology based assets 510

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value with due allowance being made for obsolete or slow-moving

items Cost is determined on first in first out or weighted average cost basis Cost includes raw materials direct labour other direct costs

and the relevant proportion of works overheads assuming normal levels of activity Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less

estimated selling costs and costs to complete

Taxation

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the income statement unless they relate to items recognised directly in equity when the related

tax is also recognised in equity

Full provision is made for deferred tax on all temporary differences resulting from the difference between the carrying value of an asset

or liability in the statements and its tax base The amount of deferred tax reflects the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the

carrying amount of the assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be

recovered against future taxable profits
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Accounting policies and presentation continued

Deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted profits of joint ventures No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted profits
of overseas

branches and subsidiaries except to the extent that it is probabte that such earnings witl be remitted to the parent in the foreseeable future

Pensions and post-employment benefits

The Groups pension arrangements comprise various defined benefit and defined contribution schemes throughout the world In the UK and

in certain overseas companies pension arrangements are made through externally funded defined benefit schemes the contributions to

which are based on the advice of independent actuaries or in accordance with the rules of the schemes In other overseas companies funds

are retained within the business to provide for retirement obligations

The Group also operates number of defined contribution and defined benefit arrangements which provide certain employees with defined

post.employment healthcare benefits

The Group accounts for all post-employment defined benefit schemes through full recognition of the schemes surpluses or deficits on the

balance sheet at the end of each year Actuarial gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income Current and past

service costs curtailments and settlements are recognised within operating profit Returns on scheme assets and interest on obligations are

recognised as component of other net financing charges

For defined contribution arrangements the cost charged to the income statement represents the Groups contributions to the relevant

schemes in the period in which they fall due

Government refundable advances

Government refundable advances are reported in Trade and other payables in the balance sheet Refundable advances include amounts lent

by Government accrued interest and directly attributable costs Refundable advances are provided to the Group to part-finance expenditures

on specific development programmes The advances are provided on risk sharing basis i.e repayment tevels are determined subject to the

success of the related programme Interest is calculated using the effective interest rate method

Share-based payments

Share options granted to employees and share-based arrangements put in place since November 2002 are valued at the date of grant or

award using an appropriate option pricing model and are charged to operating profit over the performance or vesting period of the scheme

The annual charge is modified to take account of shares forfeited by employees who leave during the performance or vesting period and in

the case of non-market related performance conditions where it becomes unlikely the option will vest

Standards revisions and amendments to standards and interpretations issued but not yet adopted

The Group does not intend to adopt any standard revision or amendment before the required implementation date The following standards

and amendments are likely to impact the reporting of the Groups results assets and liabilities

IFRS Revised Business combinations effective for annual periods beginning after July 2009 This standard is to be applied on

prospective basis and will change the recognition of goodwill acquisition costs and contingent consideration

The Group is assessing the impact of the following revisions and amendments to standards and interpretations

IFRS Amendment regarding classification of Group arrangements

lAS 32 Amendment regarding presentation on classification of rights issues

IFRIC 18 Transfer of assets from customers

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments

lAS 24 Amendment regarding related party transactions

lAS 39 Amendment regarding eligible hedged items

IFRS Financial instruments

lAS 27 Revised regarding transactions with non-controlling interests

lAS 38 Amendment regarding measurement of intangible assets acquired in business combinations

IFRS Amendment including disclosures required in respect of non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale or

discontinued operations

AS Amendment regarding settlement of liability by the issue of equity

IFRIC 17 Distribution of non-cash assets to owners
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Accounting policies and presentation continued

Significant judgements key assumptions and estimates

The Groups significant accounting policies are set out above The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the

use of estimates subjective judgement and assumptions that may affect the amounts of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date

and reported profit and earnings for the year The Directors base these estimates judgements and assumptions on combination of past

experience professionat expert advice and other evidence that is relevant to the particular circumstance

The accounting policies where the Directors consider the more complex estimates judgements and assumptions have to be made are those

in respect of acquired non-operating intangible assets business combinations note 24 post-employment obligations note 26 derivative

and other financial instruments notes 3e and 21 taxation note and impairment of non-current assets note 12 The details of the

principal estimates judgements and assumptions made are set out in the related notes as identified

Segmental analysis

The Groups reportable segments have been determined based on reports reviewed by the Executive Committee led by the Chief Executive

The operating activities of the Group are structured according to the markets served automotive aerospace and off-highway Automotive is

managed according to product groups driveline structural and other components and powder metallurgy Reportable segments derive their

sales from the manufacture of products Revenue from services inter segment trading and
royalties

is not significant

Sales

Automotive

Other

Driveline Automotive

Powder

Metallurgy Aerospace OffHighway

fm

Total

fmEm

2009

Subsidiaries 1817 52 512 1486 356 4223

joint ventures 175 65 245

Management sales 1992 117 512 1486 361 4468

2008

Subsidiaries 2123 84 618 1002 549 4376

Joint ventures 145 92 241

Management sales 2268 176 618 1002 553 4617

77
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Automotive

Other

Driveline Automotive

Lw

Total

Lm

No income statement items between trading profit and profit before tax are allocated to management trading profit which is the Groups

segmental measure of profit or loss

Trading profit in 2009 includes million surplus on realisation of Aerospace fixed assets As result of changed customer contract

requirements trading profit included million credit 2008 million credit from the release of unutilised provisions established on

acquisition in an Aerospace business Credits included within trading profit in respect of changes to US retiree benefit arrangements net of

expenses arose as follows Driveline million 2008 million Powder Metallurgy million 2008 million Aerospace million

2008 nil and Corporate million 2008 nil In 2008 trading profit included million charge in respect of abortive acquisition costs

in Driveline

EBITDA is subsidiary trading profit before depreciation impairment and amortisation charges included in trading profit

Segmental analysis continued

Trading profit

Powder

Metallurgy

fm

Aerospace OffHighway

Lm LmLm

2009

EBITDA 102 24 217

Depreciation and impairment of property plant and equipment 108 30 41 14

Amortisation of operating intangible assets

Trading profit/loss subsidiaries 170 12 141

Trading profit loss joint ventures 25 23

Managementtradingprofit/loss 16 169 12 164

Corporate costs 12

Management trading profit including corporate costs 152

Less joint venture trading profit 23

Income statement Trading profit 129

2008

EBITDA 168 31 136 53

Depreciation and impairment of property plant and equipment 92 32 25 12

Amortisation of operating intangible assets

Trading profit loss subsidiaries 73 106 40 213

Trading profitIoss joint ventures 15 20

Management trading profit/loss 88 105 40 233

Corporate costs 12

Management trading profit including corporate costs 221

Less joint venture trading profit 20

Income statement Trading profit 201

Restructuring and impairment disclosures including segmental analysis are included in note 3b
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876 27 313 374

82 65 80

958 32 378 454

78 28 294

748

110 1700

31 263

141 1963

56
_____

456

197 2419

Segmental analysis continued

Goodwill fixed assets and working capital subsidiaries only

Automotive

Other Powder

Driveline Automotive Metallurgy Aerospace OffHighway

Lm Lm Lm Lm

2009

Property plant and equipment and operating intangibte

fixed assets

Working capital

Net operating assets

Goodwill and non-operating intangible fixed assets

Total

Net investment 1036 32 406

2008

Property plant and equipment and operating intangible

fixed assets 994 30 366 357 131 1878

Working capital 133 73 116 46 372

Net operating assets 1127 34 439 473 177 2250

Goodwill and non-operating intangible fixed assets 79 32 250 72 433

Net investment 1206 34 471 723 249 2683

Fixed asset additions joint venture investments and other non-cash items

Automotive

Other Powder

Driveline Automotive Metallurgy Aerospace OffHighway Corporate Total

Lm Lm Lw Lm Lm Lm Lm

2009

Fixed asset additions and capitalised borrowing costs

property plant and equipment 62 45 122

intangible assets 14 15

Joint ventures 86 24 112

Other non-cash items share-based payment

2008

Fixed asset additions

property plant and equipment 108 33 31 18 192

intangible assets 13

Jointventures 90 27 119

Other non-cash items share-based payment

79
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Segmental analysis continued

Other sales information

Other Total

USA Germany countries Non-UK

Em Em Em Em

Subsidiary segmental sales gross of inter segment sales are Driveline 1829 million 2008 2143 million Other Automotive 52

million 2008 84 million Powder Metallurgy 515 million 2008 621 million Aerospace 1486 million 2008 1002 million and

OtfHighway 366 million 2008 558 million

In 2009 and 2008 no customer accounted for IO% or more of subsidiary sales or management sales

Management sales by product are Driveline driveshafts 75% 2008 73% propshafts 6% 2008 7% torque management products

11% 2008 13% and other goods 8% 2008 7% Other Automotive structural components and chassis 49% 2008 53% engine

cylinder liners 12% 2008 10J and substrates for catalytic converters 39% 2008 37% Powder Metallurgy sintered components 85%

2008 85% and metal powders 15% 2008 15% Aerospace aerostructures 65% 2008 52% engine components and sub-systems

27% 2008 36% and special products 8% 2008 12% OffHighway driveline products 38% 2008 34% wheels 35% 2008 43%

and aftermarket 27% 200823%

Reconciliation of segmental property plant and equipment and operating intangible fixed assets to the Balance Sheet

2009 2008

Em

Segmental analysis Property plant and equipment and operating intangible fixed assets 1700 1878

Segmental analysis Goodwill and non-operating intangible fixed assets 456 433

Goodwill 338 367

Corporate assets

Balance Sheet Property plant and equipment and other intangible fixed assets 1823 1950

Reconciliation of segmental working capital to the Balance Sheet

2009 2008

Fm

Segmental analysis Working capital 263 372

loint venture loan facility

Accrued interest net 24 28

Restructuring provisions 59 30

Deferred and contingent consideration 32

Government refundable advances 28
Other investments and loan to GKN Aerospace Services Structures Corp 12

Proceeds receivable from sale of loint venture

Corporate items 44 41

Balance Sheet Inventories Trade and other receivables Trade and other payables and Provisions 90 273

Country analysis

United

Kingdom Total

EmFm

2009

Management sales by origin 794 1327 729 1618 3674 4468

Goodwill other intangible assets property plant and

equipment and investments in joint ventures 318 677 330 948 1955 2273

2008

Management sales by origin 546 1338 880 1853 4071 4617

Goodwill other intangible assets property plant and

equipment and investments in joint ventures 185 799 394 1058 2251 2436
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Operating profit

The analysis of the components of operating profit is shown below

Trading profit

Sales by subsidiaries

Operating costs and other income

Change in stocks of finished goods and work in progress

Raw materials and consumables

Staff costs note 10

Reorganisation costs

Redundancy and other amounts

Impairment of plant and equipment

Depreciation of property plant and equipment ii

Impairment of plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Operating lease rentals payable

Plant and equipment

Property

Impairment of trade receivables

Amortisation of government grants

Net exchange differences on foreign currency transactions

Other costs

Reorganisation costs shown above reflect ongoing actions in the ordinary course of business to reduce costs improve productivity and

rationalise facilities in continuing operations

ii Including depreciation charged on assets held under finance leases of Li million 2008Li million

iii Research and development expenditure in subsidiaries was 83 million 2008 90 million

2009 2008

4223 4376

82

1756

1224

18

1737

1232

193 i65

11 10

13 i2

29 23

785 1007

4094 4175

Trading profit 129 20i
81
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Operating profit continued

iv Auditors remuneration

The analysis of auditors remuneration is as follows

All fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP the Companys auditors include amounts in respect of expenses All fees payable to

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been charged to the income statement except for those in relation to associated pension schemes which

are borne by the respective schemes those in respect of the rights issue which were charged to share premium and fees which relate to

directly attributable expenses on business combinations which have been capitalised

Restructuring and impairmentcharges

Joint joint

Subsidiaries ventures TotaJ Subsidiaries ventures Total

Em Em Em EmEm

Restructuring programmes

2008 programme 144 141 149 10 159

2004 programme

144 141 153 to 163

The Groups 2004 restructuring programme concluded in the first half of 2008 The 2004 programme charges in 2008 related to Orivetine In

response to the severe economic downturn in our automotive markets and in anticipation of activity reductions in both off-highway and aerospace

markets the Group commenced further restructuring in the final quarter of 2008

The 2008 programme restructuring actions comprise facility and operation closures permanent headcount reductions achieved through

redundancy programmes and the structured use of short-time working arrangements available through national or state legislation by

European Japanese and North American subsidiaries Where short-time working is utilised as the restructuring response to the severe

economic and activity downturn it is the most cost-effective option available at that time Employees subject to short-time working

arrangements are not engaged in any activity productive or non-productive for or on behalf of the Group Short-time working charges

represent the labour and associated costs borne by the Group in respect of these employees for the period of short-time work

2009

Em

2008

Em

0.7Fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the Companys annual financial statements 0.7

Fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and their associates for other services to the Group

Audit of the Companys subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 3.2 3.1

Total audit fees 3.9 3.8

Other services pursuant to legislation rights issue 1.1

other 0.1 0.1

Tax services 0.6 0.6

Corporate finance transaction services

Other services 0.1 0.1

Total non-audif fees 1.9 0.8

Fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and their associates in respect of associated pension schemes

Audit

Other services

Total fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and their associates 5.8 4.6

2009 2008
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Operating profit continued

2008 Restructuring programme

2009 2008

Em Lm

Goodwilt impairment

Tangible fixed asset impairments/reversals 125
Other asset write-downs

Impairments 12 129

Short-time working costs 24

Redundancy and post-emptoyment costs 86 14
Other reorganisation costs 22

Redundancy and other costs 132 20

Subsidiaries 144 149

Impairment reversal/impairment of joint ventures 10

Subsidiaries and joint ventures 141 159

2008 Restructuring programme analysis by segment
2009 2008

Redundancy Redundancy

5hort-time and other Short-time and other

Impairments working Costs Total Impairments working costs Total

Em Em Em Em Lw Lw Lw Lm

Driveline 19 63 81 25 33
Other Automotive 11 13
Powder Metallurgy 16 20 100 106

Aerospace 10

OffHighway 16 26

Corporate

24 108 141 139 18 159

Subsidiaries 12 24 108 144 129 18 149

joint ventures 10 10

In Driveline the closures of two facilities were announced in 2009 as part of the UK rationalisation programme with associated redundancy

pension and reorganisation charges of million being made Fixed asset impairments relating to this programme were charged in 2008 with

subsequent utilisation of some of these assets resulting in partial reversal in 2009 In Japan one facility closure was announced in 2009 as

part of facility rationalisation review with
activity transferred to another Japanese operation Impairments and reorganisation costs of

million were charged Elsewhere headcount reductions have been progressing mainly in Germany Spain France and Australia Short-time

working costs relate mainly to European and Japanese operations Closure of one joint venture facility was concluded in the year with another

joint venture sold The Groups investments in these joint ventures were written off in 2008 The sale of the latter joint venture enabled

partial reversal of the
prior year impairment charge to its net realisable value

In Other Automotive actions continue relating to the ongoing rationalisation of UK facility with charges incurred relating to redundancy and

pension costs

In Powder Metallurgy the closures of two facilities were announced in the year which combined with the completion of the closure previously

announced in 2008 resulted in million redundancy and reorganisation charge Redundancy costs of million were also charged in

relation to ongoing fixed cost reduction programmes across North American and European operations Short-time working costs relate mainly

to European operations

In OffHighway actions have been initiated in the period to concentrate/exit production for certain product categories in certain regions

and concentrate activities on one area of operation As consequence the closures of five facilities and rationalisation of sixth have been

commenced with an associated cost of million and impairments of9 million Redundancy charges of 11 million were also made in

respect of capacity and fixed cost reductions
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In Aerospace the closures of two facilities were announced one in the UK and one in North America with million charge made in

respect of redundancies product transfer costs and asset impairments further million redundancy charge was made for rationalisation

actions at other facilities

Restructuring cash outflow in respect of 2008 2004 and earlier periods restructuring plans amounted to 99 million 2008 28 million

On 10 October 2009 the sale of the Groups 50% share in hIm GKN Norinco Drive Shaft Company Ltd to the Groups joint venture partner was

completed The Groups equity interest in jilin was fully provided against in 2008 as joint venture restructuring charge This provision was

partially reversed in 2009 to reflect the realisable value The 2009 impairment reversal is shown as restructuring credit The profit above

represents the recycling of cumulative translation adjustments

Change in value of derivative and other financial instruments

2009 2008

Em

Forward currency contracts not hedge accounted 106 175

Embedded derivatives 29 43

Commodity contracts not hedge accounted

79 133

Net gains and losses on intra-group funding

Arising in year

Reclassified in year

76 124

lAS 39 requires derivative financial instruments to be valued at the balance sheet date and any difference between that value and the

intrinsic value of the instrument to be reflected in the balance sheet as an asset or liability Any subsequent change in value is reflected

in the income statement unless hedge accounting is achieved Such movements do not affect cash flow or the economic substance of the

underlying transaction In 2009 and 2008 the Group used transactional hedge accounting in limited number of instances

Amortisation of non-operating intangible assets arising on business combinations

2009 2008

Em

Marketing related

Customer related 20

Technology based

24 10

Profits and losses on sale or closures of businesses

2009 2008

Em

Profit on sale of
joint venture
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Net financing costs

2009 2008

Cm Em

Interest payable and fee expense

Short term bank other borrowings and government refundable advances 13 11

Loans repayable within five years 24 29

Loans repayable after five years 24 26

Bond buy-back premium

Borrowing costs capitalised

Finance leases

67 66

Interest receivable

Short term investments loans and deposits

Net investment hedges

AgustaWestland escrow receipt note

19

Net interest payable and receivable 64 47

Other net financing charges

Expected return on scheme assets 121 163

Interest on post-employment obligations 170 166

Post-employment finance charges 49

Unwind of discounts

50

114 50
85

The capitalisation rate on specific funding was 6.4% and on general borrowings was 6.1%
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The Group is required to estimate the income tax due in each of the jurisdictions in which it operates This requires an estimation of the

current tax liability together with an assessment of the temporary differences which arise as consequence of differing accounting and tax

treatments These temporary differences result in deferred tax assets or liabilities which are measured using substantively enacted tax rates

expected to apply when the temporary differences reverse Recognition of deferred tax assets and hence credits to the income statement

is based on forecast future taxable income and therefore involves judgement regarding the future financial performance of particular legal

entities or tax groups in which the deferred tax assets are recognised

The Group is subject to many different tax jurisdictions and tax rules as consequence of its geographic spread It is therefore subject to

tax audits which by their nature are often complex and can require several years to conclude The total accrual for income tax in any period

is therefore based on management judgement interpretation of country specific tax law and the likelihood of challenge of uncertain tax

positions and subsequent settlement Tax benefits are not recognised unless it is probable that the tax positions are sustainable As

amounts set aside in any period could differ from actual tax liabilities adjustments may be required in subsequent periods which may

have material impact on the Groups income statement and/or cash tax payments Payments in respect of tax liabilities for an accounting

period comprise payments on account and payments on the final resolution of open items with tax authorities and as result there can be

substantial differences between the charge in the income statement and cash tax payments Interest on provisions for uncertain tax

positions is where relevant provided for in the tax charge

Taxation

Tax expense
2009 2008

Analysis of charge in year

Current tax charge/credit

Current year charge 31 33

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses and other assets 44

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Net movement on provisions for uncertain tax positions 25

10

Deferred tax charge/credit

Origination and reversal of temporary differences excluding post-employment obligations 54 69

Tax in respect of postemployment obligations

Current year tax on change in value of derivative financial instruments

Other changes in unrecognised deferred tax assets 42 80

Changes in tax rates

Adjustments in respect of prior years

15

Total tax credit for the year 15 10

Tax in respect of restructuring impairments derivative and other financial instruments

and other net financing charges

Current tax credit

Deferred tax credit 26

26 11

Current tax on foreign currency gains and losses on intra-group funding

Current tax charge/credit 29

Details of the effective tax rate for the Group and the underlying events and transactions affecting this are given on page 24
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Taxation continued

2009 2008

Tax reconciliation Em

Profit loss before tax 54 130

Less share of post-tax earnings of
joint ventures 21

Profit toss before tax exctuding joint ventures 75 136

Tax charge/credit calculated at 28% 200828.5% standard UK corporate tax rate 21 28 39 29

Differences between UK and overseas corporate tax rates 10

Non-deductible and non-taxable items 11

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses and other assets 44 32

Other changes in unrecognised deferred tax assets 42 56 80 59

Changes in tax rates

Deferred tax credit/charge in respect of post-employment obligations

Current year tax charge/credit on ordinary activities 18 24

Net movement on provision for uncertain tax positions 25 33

Other adjustments in respect of prior years 11

Total tax charge/credit for the year 15 20 10

Tax in equity

2009 2008

Tax on items included in equity credit/charge Em

Deferred tax on post-employment obligations 14

Deferred tax on non-qualifying assets

Deferred tax on foreign currency gains and losses on intra-group funding

Current tax on foreign currency gains and losses on intra-group funding 29
87

17 23

Current tax

2009 2008

Em

Assets 13 17

Liabilities 79 115

66 98

Recognised deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method

2009 2008

Em

Deferred tax assets 71 52

Deferred tax liabilities 57 63

14 11
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Taxation continued

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by lAS 12

during the period are shown below

Assets Liabilities Total

Tax Fixed

Pensions losses Other assets Other

fm

At January 2009 44 27 87 166 11

Other movements 32 32
Included in the income statement 19 10 15

Included in equity 14 11

Subsidiaries acquired

Currency variations 12

At 31 December 2009 74 45 46 145 14

AtlJanuary2008 21 47 69 140 16 19

Included in the income statement 29 19 34

Included in equity

Other movements 11 11

Currency variations 20 37 63

At 31 December 2008 44 27 87 166 11

Deferred tax assets totalling 41 million 2008 14 million have been recognised relating to territories where tax losses have been

incurred in the year It is anticipated that future profitability arising from restructuring and other actions will result in their realisation

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in relation to certain taxable losses and other temporary differences on the basis that their future

economic benefit is uncertain The gross and tax values of these unrecognised assets together with any expiry dates where relevant are shown

below The tax value of the assets has been calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

2009 2008

Taxvalue Gross Expiry Taxvalue Gross Expiry

period fm period

Tax losses with expiry national 293 846 20102029 300 867 20092028

Tax losses with expiry local 41 491 20102029 44 532 20092028

Tax losses without expiry 105 349 66 202

Othertemporarydifferences 192 660 71 215

Unrecognised deferred tax assets 631 2346 481 1816

No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries except where the distribution of such profits is planned

If the earnings were remitted in full tax of 19 million 2008 28 million would be payable
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Taxation continued

Franked Investment Income Litigation

In September 2003 GKN fited ctaim in the High Court of Engtand and Wales the High Court in respect of various Advance Corporation

Tax payments made and Corporate Tax paid on certain foreign dividend receipts which in its view were tevied by HMRC in breach of GKNs

EU community law rights GKN joined Group Litigation Order GLO with several other claimants and test case was selected from the

members of the GLO to proceed to trial on representative basis

At the commencement of that trial in June 2004 the High Court referred the test case to the European Court ofiustice ECJ for guidance on

the issues raised In December 2006 the ECJ issued its guidance to the High Court and the test case returned to the High Court for the full trial

in July 2008 The High Court issued its judgment on 27 November 2008

Both parties appealed to the Court of Appeal which heard their pleadings in October 2009 and issued its judgment on 23 February 2010

The Courts judgment has referred many issues back to the ECJ for clarification but more importantly has held that claims are restricted to

six years from the date the disputed tax was paid The effect of this if ultimately upheld is to deny the vast majority of claims in the GLO

Given the importance of the matters at issue it is expected that appeals will ultimately be taken to the new Supreme Court and that this

process may take several more years to conclude GKN had successfully claimed and received in June 2009 an interim payment on account in

the High Court of million which is primarily interest attributable to the claim This interim payment is potentially refundable to HMRC as

result of the Court of Appeal judgment and has not therefore been recognised in the income statement in the year

The complexity of the case and uncertainty over the issues raised mean that it is not possible to predict with any reasonable degree of

certainty what the final outcome could be The range of possible outcomes is so wide that it is potentially misleading to quote any estimates

of the possible recoveries at this stage As result no contingent asset has been recognised and disclosed in these financial statements

Discontinued operations

In August 2008 the Group reached agreement with Finmeccanica regarding the 35 million deferred consideration placed into escrow in

November 2004 the date of disposal of the Groups 50% share of AgustaWestland Under the agreement the 35 million together with
89

accrued interest was shared equally As result 21 million was received of which million was recognised as interest and 18 million

recognised as profit on sale of discontinued operations Tax of million was charged against the
profit on sale In 2009 the prior year tax

charge was reversed following agreement of the non-taxable nature of the item with the fiscal authority
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Total basic and total diluted eps are 2.8p 2008 restated total basic and total diluted 10.4p Discontinued basic and discontinued

diluted eps are 0.4p 2008 restated discontinued basic and discontinued diluted 1.3p

The weighted average number of shares and resulting earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2008 has been restated for the

bonus issue inherent in the rights issue that was approved on July 2009

Adjusted performance measures

Management profit
before taxation

From 2009 onwards management reporting measures exclude the impact of other net financing charges Accordingly prior year information

has been re.presented

Earnings per share

2009 2008

Weighted

Weighted average Earnings

average Earnings number of
per

number of
per shares share

Earnings shares share Earnings restated restated

pence pence

Continuing operations

Basic eps 41 1271.7 3.2 122 1044.2 11.7

Dilutive securities 1.7

Diluted eps 41 1271.7 3.2 122 1045.9 11.7

2009 2008

Management profit before taxation 83 170

Other net financing charges 50

Restructuring and impairment charges 144 153

Amortisation of non-operating intangible assets arising on business combinations 24 10

Profits and losses on sale or closures of businesses

Change in value of derivative and other financial instruments 76 124

Impairment/reversal in respect of joint ventures 10

Income statement Profit/loss before taxation 54 130

Management earnings per share

2009 2008

Em

Management profit before taxation 83 170

Tax on management profit before taxation 11

Non-controtljng jnterests

Management earnings 70 167

Management basic eps pence 5.5 16.0

The Directors consider management earnings per share as calculated above gives useful additional indicator of underlying performance
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Dividends

Paid or proposed

in respect of Recognised

2009 2008 2009 2008

pence pence fm

2007 finat year dividend paid 9.2 pence per share restated to 6.2 pence per share 65

2008 interim dividend paid restated 3.0 pence per share 4.5 32

2008 final year dividend paid

2009 interim dividend paid

2009 final year dividend

4.5 97

The Directors have decided not to pay final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2009

The restated dividend per share represents the theoretical dividend per share that would have been paid had the bonus shares inherent in

the rights issue that was approved on July 2009 been in existence at the relevant dividend dates

10 Employees including Directors

2009 2008

Employee benefit expense

Wages and salaries 1021 1031

Social security costs 166 161

Post-employment costs 35 38

Equity-settled share-based payments

1224 1232

Short-time working expense of 24 million included in restructuring charges comprises wages and salaries 17 million and social security
91

costs million 2008 million wages and salaries

2009 2008

Average monthly number of employees including Executive Directors Number Number

By business

Driveline 16207 17967

Other Automotive 1125 1392

Powder Metallurgy 5552 6585

Aerospace 8958 7887

OffHighway 3291 4108

Corporate 182 208

Total 35315 38147
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10 Employees including Directors continued

Key management

The key management of the Group comprises GKN plc
Board Directors and the members of the Groups Executive Committee during the year

and their aggregate compensation is shown below Details of Directors remuneration are contained in the Directors remuneration report on

pages 52 to 62

2009 2008

Key management compensation

Salaries and short term employee benefits 5.6 5.5

Post-employment benefits 0.7 1.2

Termination benefits 0.5

Share-based and medium term incentives and benefits 1.0 0.8

7.8 7.5

Salaries and short term employee benefits comprises annual salary benefits in kind and amounts accrued in respect of short term variable

remuneration schemes Details of the Directors short term variable remuneration schemes are set out in the Directors remuneration report

Similarly the other members of key management participate in schemes based on the achievement of profit cash and covenant achievement

targets and which are payable in cash The amount outstanding at 31 December 2009 in respect of annual short term variable remuneration

was 1.4 million 2008 1.0 million Post-employment benefits represent the charge to trading profit under lAS 19 attributable to key

management arising in the year and the attributable cost of post-employment medical benefits Termination benefits include redundancy

pension augmentations and ex gratia payments arising in connection with loss of office and termination of employment with the Group

Share-based payments represents the annual charge attributable to key management in respect of their participation in the Groups share-

based remuneration arrangements details of the nature of these arrangements are set out in note 11 and in the Directors remuneration

report Total awards made or shares granted in the year to key management under these arrangements including adiustments made as

result of the rights issue were as follows

Executive Options 5089

Long Term Incentive Plan 1511

Bonus Co-Investment Plan 11

Profit Growth Incentive Plan 40

154474 options were exercised by key management during the year 2008 7141 whilst 1788592 options and awards lapsed 2008

1287264 No dividends were received in 2009 by key management 2008 0.1 million

2009

Weighted

average

Number of exercise

instruments price

000s pence

117.46

2008

Weighted

average

Number of exercise

instruments price

000s pence
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11 Share-based payments

The Group has granted options over shares to employees for number of years under different schemes Where grants were made after

November 2002 they have been accounted for as required by IFRS Share-based Payment Awards made before that date have not been

so accounted Ati options have been vatued at the date of grant by an independent third party using Monte Carto model which uses the

same principle as binomial model

Details of awards made in 2009 are set out below No new awards were made in 2008 Details of awards made since November 2002 that

impact the 2009 accounting charge are

Executive Share Option Schemes ESOS

Awards were made to Directors and certain senior employees in March 2003 under the 2001 scheme and in September 2004 April 2005

April2006 and August 2009 under the 2004 scheme In April 2007 awards were made to Directors under the 2004 scheme Under both

schemes options were granted with fixed exercise price equal to the market price at the date of grant and subject to meeting performance

conditions over three year period In the case of the 2001 scheme the performance condition was based on earnings per share eps growth

whilst under the 2004 scheme the condition is based on Total Shareholder Return TSR compared with that of comparator companies Under

the 2001 scheme only where the performance condition is not satisfied in full after the first three years retesting is carried out each year up

to six years from the date of grant Inputs to the valuation model for prior period awards were option price 163p to 380.3p volatility 31% to

38% expected dividend yield 3.3% to 6.2% risk-free interest rate 4.28% to 5.40% and expected terms of 6.4 years to 6.7 years

In respect of the 2009 awards which were made post the Groups rights issue the inputs to the valuation model were option price IIO.08p

to 113.24p volatility in the performance period 52.4% to 52.6% expected dividend yield 4.5% risk-free interest rates of 2.9% to 3.1% and

terms of to 6.5 years

Long Term Incentive Plans hIP
Awards were made to Directors and certain senior employees in March 2003 under the 2001 scheme and in September 2004 April2006 April

2007 and August 2009 under the 2004 scheme In April2005 awards were made to Directors under the 2004 scheme Under both schemes 93

options were granted subject to TSR performance over three year period compared with comparator group There is no retest facility under

either scheme Inputs to the valuation model for prior period awards were option price nil volatility 23% to 39% expected dividend yield

3.3% to 6.2% risk-free interest rate 4.05% to 5.40% and term of years to years 9.5 months

In respect of the 2009 awards which were made post the Groups rights issue the inputs to the valuation model were option price nil

volatility nil expected dividend yield 4.5% and term of years These awards were only made to main Board Directors

Profit Growth Incentive Plan PGIP

Awards were made in
April

2007 under the PGIP to certain senior employees excluding Directors Any benefit under the PGIP will be

deliverable dependent upon the extent to which
profit growth targets are satisfied by the Group over three year performance period the

Groups reported profit for the year prior
to the year of award forms the baseline for this performance measure The PGI is cash-based

incentive plan however for certain very senior employees the benefit is deliverable in shares the number of shares given below will be

released followingthe performance period if the minimum targeted profit growth is achieved maximum of twice the amount of shares

listed below will be released on achievement of the maximum profit target with one and half times the number being released for interim

performance No shares will be released and the awards will lapse if the minimum profit target is not achieved Release is also conditional

upon the satisfaction of personal shareholding requirement Any awards deliverable under the PGI will be satisfied from GKN ordinary

shares already in issue

The 2009 PGIP award is two year award that is entirely cash based and therefore not subject to the FRS requirements Similar to 2007

any benefit under this scheme will be delivered dependent upon the extent to which
profit growth targets are satisfied by the Group over

two year performance period

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility over period commensurate with the term of the awards The risk-free interest rate is

the rate obtainable from government securities over the expected life of the equity incentive
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11 Share-based payments continued

Following the capital reorganisation and rights issue completed in July 2009 adjustments were made to outstanding share-based options

and awards granted under the Groups incentive arrangements to reflect the dilutive effect of both transactions The adjustments were

based on the theoretical ex-rights price TERP formula and were designed to ensure that the value of outstanding options and awards

remained the same as the value of the options and awards when
originally granted The outstanding options and awards were multiplied by

TERP factor of 1.4816 and where applicable the exercise price of options was multiplied by factor of 0.6749 The adjustments were

made in accordance with the rules of the relevant schemes and where necessary were approved by HM Revenue Customs

Further details of the ESOS LTIP and PGIP schemes are given in the Directors remuneration report on pages 52 to 62

2009

Weighted

average

exerci5e

Number price

000s
pence

The weighted average share price during the period for options exercised over the year was 110.04p 2008 221.5p The total charge for

the year relating to share-based payment plans was million 2008 million all of which related to equity-settled share-based

payment transactions After deferred tax the total charge was million 2008 million

Liabilities in respect of share-based payments were not material at either 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008 There were no vested

rights to cash or other assets at either 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008

reconciliation of option movements over the year to 31 December 2009 is shown below

2008

Weighted

average

exercise

price

pence

Number

000s

Outstanding at January 7381 247.34 12113 251.53

Granted

Forfeited 3548 279.33 4252 265.35

Exercised 480 193.37

Outstanding at 21 July 3833 217.73

Post rights issue

Adjustment for rights issue 1839 146.97

Granted 12257 110.16

Forfeited 648 138.04

Exercised 185 110.04

Outstanding at 31 December 17096 121.32 7381 247.34

Exercisable at 31 December 4590 135.25 3334 189.22

For options outstanding at 31 December the range of exercise prices and weighted average contractual life is shown in the following table

2009 2008

contractual Contractual

weighted weighted

average average

Number remaining Number remaining

of shares life of shares life

Range of exercise price 000s years 0005 years

llOp180p 15492 8.160 3488 4.208

205p230p 1088 2.210 413 0.867

240p260p 516 7.250

300p385p 3480 6.297
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2009 2008

nl

An impairment test is comparison of the carrying value of the assets of business or cash generating unit CGIJ to their recoverable

amount Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value an impairment results During the year all goodwill was tested for

impairment

For the purposes of carrying out impairment tests the Groups total goodwill has been allocated to number of CGUs and each of these CGU5

has been separately assessed and tested The size of CGU varies but is never larger than primary or secondary reportable segment In

some cases the CGU is an individual subsidiary or operation

All of the recoverable amounts were measured based on value in use Detailed forecasts for the next five years have been used which

are based on approved annual budgets and strategic projections representing the best estimate of future performance In the case of

an individual CGU within the Groups Aerospace Propulsion Systems business vatue in use at 31 December 2009 was measured using

operating cash ftow projections covering the next ten years which incorporate the anticipated timing of volumes on current programmes

Management consider forecasting over this period to more appropriately reflect the length of business cycle of that CGUs programmes in

particular the growth of certain military programmes

Goodwill impairment losses

During 2009 goodwill impairment losses of million 2008 nil were recorded in relation to business within the Groups OffHighway

segment These impairments which arose as result of the cessation of production at European production facility and the strategic

decision to exit specific product market in North America were determined on value in use basis using pre-tax discount rates of 12h in

Europe 2008 13% and 13% in North America 2008 10%

12 GoodwilL and other intangible assets

Goodwill

Cost

Atijanuary 549 407

Subsidiary acquired

Currency variations 50 142

At31 December 507 549

Accumulated impairment

At January 182 127

Impairment losses

Currency variations 20 55

At 31 December 169 182

Net book amount at 31 December 338 367

The carrying value of goodwill at 31 December comprised

2009 2008

Reportable segment Business Geographical location

Driveline Driveline Americas 55 54

Driveline Europe 19 20

Powder Metallurgy Hoeganaes North America 21 24

Aerospace Aerostructures North America 31 35

Propulsion Systems North America 83 93

Propulsion Systems North America 37 42

OffHighway Wheels Italy 21 23

267 291

Other businesses not individually significant to the carrying value of goodwill 71 76

338 367

95
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12 Goodwill and other intangible assets continued

Key assumptions

In determining the recoverable amount of all CGUs it is necessary to make series of assumptions to estimate the present value of future

cash flows In each case these key assumptions have been made by management reflecting past experience and are consistent with relevant

external sources of information

Operating cash flows

The main assumptions within forecast operating cash flow include the achievement of future sales prices and volumes including reference to

specific customer relationships product lines and the use of industry relevant external forecasts of global vehicle production within Driveline

businesses and consideration of specific volumes on certain US military and civil programmes within Aerospace raw material input costs

the cost structure of each CGU and the ability to realise benefits from annual productivity improvements the impact of foreign currency rates

upon selling price and cost relationships and the levels of ongoing capital expenditure required to support forecast production

Pre-tax risk adjusted discount rates

Pre-tax risk adjusted discount rates are derived from risk-free rates based upon long term government bonds in the territory or territories

within which each CGU operates relative risk adjustment or beta has been applied to risk-free rates to reflect the risk inherent in each

CGU relative to all other sectors on average determined using an average of the betas of comparable listed companies

The range of pre-tax risk adjusted discount rates set out below has been used for impairment testing The range of rates reflects the mix of

geographical territories within CGU5 within the reportable segments

Driveline North and South America 13%24% 2008 10%24% Europe 12%13% 2008 12%15% and lapan and Asia Pacific region

countries 10%17% 2008 10%15%

Powder Metallurgy Europe 12% 2008 12% and North America 13% 2008 10%

Aerospace Europe 11k 200811% and North America 12% 2008 10
96 OffHighway Europe 12% 2008 13% and North America 13% 2008 10%

Long term growth rates

To forecast beyond the five years covered by detailed forecasts into perpetuity long term average growth rate has been used In each case

this is not greater than the published Oxford Economic Forecast average growth rate in gross domestic product for the next five year period in

the territory or territories where the CGU is primarily based This results in range of nominal growth rates from 1% to 9% 2008 1k to 7%
with most countries between 2% and 4% in both years

Goodwill sensitivity analysis

The results of the Groups impairment tests are dependent upon estimates and judgements made by management particularly in relation to

the key assumptions described above Sensitivity analysis to likely and potential changes in key assumptions has therefore been reviewed

At 31 December 2009 the date of the Groups annual impairment test the estimated recoverable amount of two individual CGUs within

the Groups Aerospace Propulsion Systems and Driveline Americas operations showed limited headroom with value in use exceeding

the carrying values by million and 23 million respectively The table below shows the discount rate long term growth rate and forecast

operating cash flow assumptions used in the calculation of value in use and the amount by which each assumption must change in isolation

in order for the estimated recoverable amount to exceed the carrying value

Change required

for the carrying

Assumptions used value to exceed

in calculation the recoverable

of value in use amount

Aerospace Driveline Aerospace Driveline

Pre-tax risk adjusted discount rate 12% 13%24% 0.3% points 0.7% points

Long term growth rate 3% 3%6% 0.6% points 1.1% points

Total pre-discounted forecast operating cash flows 319 million 828 million 4% 6%

At 31 December 2009 the estimated recoverable amount of two individual CGUs within the Groups Powder Metallurgy Hoeganaes and

OffHighway Wheels reportable segments exceeded their carrying value by 30 million and 18 million respectively The table below shows

the discount rate long term growth rate and forecast operating cash flow assumptions used in the calculation of value in use and the amount

by which each assumption must change in isolation in order for the estimated recoverable amount to equal the carrying value
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Assumptions used

in calculution

of value in use

Powder

Metallurgy Offftighway

Change required

for the carrying

value to exceed

the recoverable

amount

Powder

Metallurgy OffF-lighwuy

Other intangibte assets inctude development costs of 15 million 2008 16 million in respect of one aerospace programme with

remaining amortisation period of up to 10 years 2008 11 years and 70 million 2008 nit in respect of customer relationship asset

arising from one business combination with remaining amortisation period of years

The net book amount of assets arising on business combinations includes marketing related assets of million 2008 million

customer related assets ofLlO3 million 2008L45 million and technology based assets of Lii million 2008L15 million Computer

software under finance leases amounts to nil 2008LI million

12 Goodwill and other intangible assets continued

Pre-tax risk adjusted discount rate 13h 13Yo 2.5% points 3.5% points

Long term growth rate 3% 3% 3.8% points 5.6% points

Total pre.discounted forecast operating cash flows 217 million 100 million 24% 32%

Other than as disclosed above it is not considered that reasonably possible change in any of the key assumptions would generate

different impairment test outcome to the one included in this annual report

2009 2008

Assets Assets

arising on arising on

Development Computer business Development Computer business

Costs software combinations Total costs software combinations Total

Other intangible assets Em Em Em Em Em Em Em Em

Cost

Atijanuary 109 104 97 310 102 78 68 248

Subsidiaries acquired 84 84

Additions 12 15 13

Disposals 19 20

Currency variations 11 19 20 29 51

At31 December 101 99 170 370 109 104 97 310

Accumulated amortisation

AtiJanuary 44 82 31 157 39 61 12 112

Chargefortheyear 24 35 10 20

Disposals

Currency variations 15 25

At31 December 48 83 52 183 44 82 31 157

Net book amount at 31 December 53 16 118 187 65 22 66 153

97
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13 Property plant and equipment

2009 2008

Inctuded within Other tangible assets at net book amount are plant and equipment 1055 million 2008 1134 mitlion fixtures and

fittings 22 million 2008 26 million and motor vehicles million 2008 million The net book amount of assets under finance

teases is land and buildings million 2008 million and plant and equipment million 2008 million

Other Capital Other Capital

Land and tangible work in Land and tangible work in

buildings assets progress Total buildings assets progress Total

Lm Lm fm Lw

Cost

At January 696 3743 123 4562 521 2773 105 3399

Subsidiaries acquired 57 57

Additions 15 90 16 121 117 69 192

Capitalised borrowing costs

Disposals 84 86 100 101

Transfers 43 47 77 82

Currency variations 53 286 10 349 165 876 31 1072

At 31 December 660 3564 82 4306 696 3743 123 4562

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

At january 184 2581 2765 115 1822 1937

Chargefortheyear

Charged to trading profit

Depreciation 16 177 193 11 154 165

Impairments

Restructuring and

impairment/reversals 14 113 127

Disposals 75 76 96 97

Currency variations 14 202 216 45 587 632

At31 December 185 2485 2670 184 2581 2765

Net bookamount at 31 December 475 1079 82 1636 512 1162 123 1797
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14 Investments in joint ventures

2009 2008

Group share of results Em Em

Sales 245 241

Operating costs 222 221

Trading profit 23 20

Net financing costs

Profit before taxation 22 20

Taxation

Share of post-tax earnings before impairments 18 16

Impairment reversal/charge including tax on impairment of nil 10

Share of post-tax earnings 21

2009 2008

Group Provisions Group Provisions

share of for Net book share of for Net book

equity impairment amount equity impairment amount

Group share of net book amount Em Em Em Em Em Em

Atijanuary 129 10 119 100 100

Share of post-tax earnings of joint ventures 18 21 16 10

Utilisation of provision

Actuarial gains on post-employment

obligations including deferred tax

Dividends paid 15 15 24 24
Additions

Disposals

Currency 13 12 36 36

At31 December 113 112 129 10 119

2009 2008

Em Em

Non-current assets 86 97

Current assets 99 89

Current liabilities 61 54

Non-current liabilities 12 13

112 119

99

The joint ventures have no significant contingent liabilities to which the Group is exposed and nor has the Group any significant contingent

liabilities in relation to its interest in the joint ventures The share of capital commitments of the joint ventures is shown in note 29



GKN plc Annual Report 2009

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2009

15 Other receivables and investments

2009 2008

Cm

Other investments

Indirect taxes and amounts recoverable under emptoyee benefit plans 19 19

Other receivables

24 23

Other investments mainly comprise the Groups investment in GKN Aerospace Services Structures Corp GASS which is an entity in which

the Group has since 2003 had 100% share in the equity During 2009 the Li million provision against the investment was reversed

The investment is stated at cost GASS operates under Proxy Agreement with the United States Department of Defense developing high

technology classified products for the United States Airforce The Proxy Agreement currently places significant restrictions on the Groups

management and control of the business so that in accordance with lAS 27 it has been excluded from the consolidation and treated as

an investment In January 2010 clearance was obtained to commence the process to remove the significant restrictions on the Groups

management and control of GASS At the conclusion of this process GASS will be consolidated At 31 December 2009 under the accounting

policies of GASS the excluded net liabilities were million 2008 million and the operating profit for the year then ended was Li

million 2008 operating loss of Li million

The Group provided services to GASS during 2009 amounting to less than Li million 2008 nil GASS supplied goods to the Group during

2009 amounting to less than Li million 2008Li million Transactions between the Group and GASS are priced on an arms length basis

At 31 December 2009 Group subsidiary had 11 million receivable 2008 nil from GASS in respect of loan bearing interest at US Prime

Rate minus 2%

16 Inventories

2009 2008

Cmfm

Raw materials 266 315

Work in progress 188 242

Finished goods 109 161

563 718

Inventories of 59 million 2008 64 million are carried at net realisable value The amount of any write down of inventory recognised as

an expense in the period was Li million 2008 million
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17 Trade and other receivables

2009 2008

Cm

Government refundable advances fall due for repayment between 2014 and 2031 Non-current deferred and contingent consideration falls

due as follows onetwo years million and twofive years 22 million Non-current amounts owed to suppliers and customers fall due

Trade receivables 547 550

Amounts owed by joint ventures 15 11

Loan to GKN Aerospace Services Structures Corp 11

Other receivables 29 39

Prepayments 15 16

Indirect taxes recoverable 27 29

644 645

Provisions for doubtful debts against trade receivables

AtlJanuary

Charge for the year

Additions

Unused amounts reversed

Amounts used

Currency variations

At 31 December

Trade receivables subject to provisions for doubtful debts 13 15

Ageing analysis of trade receivables and amounts owed by joint ventures past due but not impaired

Upto3odaysoverdue 40 47

3160 days overdue 13

619odaysoverdue

More than 90 days overdue 11

Trade and other payables
2009 2008

Non- Non

Current current Current current

Cm Cm

18

101

Amounts owed to suppliers and customers 600 685

Amounts owed to joint ventures

Accrued interest 26 28

Government refundable advances 28

Deferred and contingent consideration 27

Payroll taxes indirect taxes and audit fees 43 43

Amounts due to employees and employee benefit plans 118 33 122 31

Government grants

Customer advances and deferred income 80 90

873 97 972 38

within two years
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One to two Two to five More than

years years five years

Em Em

Total

Em

Other borrowings include unsecured 350 million 2008 350 million 6314% bond maturing in 2019 tess unamortised issue costs of

million 2008 million unsecured 201 million 2008 325 million 7% bond maturing in 2012 less unamortised issue costs of nil

2008 nil and secured term loan of million 2008 12 million secured by way of fixed and floating charge on certain Aerospace

fixed assets

Notes

Denotes borrowings at fixed rates of interest until maturity All other borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are at variable

interest rates

ii The average interest rate on short term bank deposits was O.5% 2008 2.2% Deposits at 31 December 2009 had no fixed maturity

date 2008 no fixed maturity date

iii The interest rate on bank deposits was 0.85% deposits mature on April2010

iv Finance lease obligations gross of finance charges fall due as follows million within one year 2008fl million million in one to

five years 2008 million and million in more than five years 2008 million

million 2008 10 million of the Groups cash and cash equivalents are held by the Groups captive insurance company to maintain

solvency requirements and as collateral for Letters of Credit issued to the Groups principal external insurance providers These funds

19 Net borrowings

Analysis of net borrowings

Carrent

Within

one year

Non-current

Notes Em Em

Total

Em

2009

Other borrowings

350 million 63/4% 2019 unsecured bond 347 347 347

201 million 7% 2012 unsecured bond 201 201 201

Other secured US$ denominated loan

Other long term borrowings 12

Finance lease obligations iv

Bank overdrafts 28 28

Other short term bank borrowings 35 35

Borrowings 72 207 348 564 636

Bankbatancesandcash 132 132

Short term bank deposits ii 184 184

Cash and cash equivalents 316 316

Other financial assets bank deposits iii 20 20

Net borrowings 264 207 348 564 300

2008

Other borrowings

350 million 63/4% 2019 unsecured bond 346 346 346

325 million 7% 2012 unsecured bond 325 325 325

Other secured US$ denominated loan 10 12

Other long term borrowings 37 40 47

Finance lease obligations iv

Bank overdrafts 20 20

Other short term bank borrowings 67 67

Borrowings 97 39 334 352 725 822

Bank balances and cash 102 102

Short term bank deposits ii 12 12

Cash and cash equivalents 114 114

Net borrowings 17 39 334 352 725 708

therefore are not circulated within the Group on demand
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2009

Book Fair

value value

The foltowing methods and assumptions were used in estimating fair values for financial instruments

2008

Book Fair

value value

fm

Unsecured bank overdrafts other short term bank borrowings bank balances and cash and short term bank deposits approximate to book

value due to their short maturities For other amounts the repayments which the Group is committed to make have been discounted at the

relevant interest rates applicable at 31 December 2009 Bonds included within other borrowings have been valued using quoted closing

market values

20 Financial risk management

The Groups activities give rise to number of financial risks market risk credit risk and liquidity risk Market risk includes foreign currency

risk cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and commodity price risk The Group has in place risk management policies that seek to limit

the adverse effects on the financial performance Derivative financial instruments mainly forward foreign currency contracts are used to

hedge risk exposures that arise in the ordinary course of business

Risk management policies have been set by the Board and are implemented by the central Treasury Department that receives regular reports

from all the operating companies to enable prompt identification of financial risks so that appropriate actions may be taken The Treasury

Department has policy and procedures manual that sets out specific guidelines to manage foreign currency risks interest rate risk

financial credit risk and
liquidity

risk and the use of financial instruments to manage these

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases by operating subsidiaries in currencies other than the

subsidiaries functional currency These exposures are forecast on monthly basis by operating companies and are reported to the central

Treasury Department Under the Groups foreign currency policy such exposures are hedged on reducing percentage basis over number

of forecast time horizons

The main impact of foreign currency risk on the Groups results arises from the translation into sterling of the results of operations outside

of the UK The Groups largest exposures are the euro and the US dollar where 1% movement in the average rate impacts trading profit of

subsidiaries and joint ventures by 0.2 million and 0.7 million respectively

19 Net borrowings continued

Fair values

Borrowings other financial assets and cash and cash equivalents

Other borrowings 569 570 730 520

Finance lease obligations

Bank overdrafts and other short term bank borrowings 63 63 87 87

Bankbalancesandcash 132 132 102 102

Short term bank deposits and other bank deposits 204 204 12 12

300 301 708 498

Trade and other payables

Government refundable advances 28 28

Deferred and contingent consideration 32 32

60 60

103
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Trading

profit

Payables Derivative

and financial

receivables instruments

Em Em

0.3

5.3

The derivative sensitivity analysis has been prepared by reperforming the calculations used to determine the balance sheet values adjusted

for the changes in the individual currency rates indicated with all other cross currency rates remaining constant The sensitivity is fair value

change relating to derivatives for which the underlying transaction has not occurred at 31 December The Group intends to hold all such

derivatives to maturity The analysis of other items has been prepared based on an analysis of currency balance sheet

Analysis of net borrowings by currency

Cash and Other cash and

cash financial cash

Borrowings equivalents assets Total Borrowings equivalents Total

Em Em Em Em Em Em Em

Sterling 548 187 20 341 726 24 702

US dollar 24 18 27 15 12

Euro 17 36 19 10 35 25

Others 47 75 28 59 40 19

636 316 20 300 822 114 708

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk on fixed rate borrowings and cash flow interest rate risk on variable rate net borrowings

funds The Groups policy is to optimise interest cost in reported earnings and reduce volatility in the debt related element of the Groups

cost of capital This policy is achieved by maintaining target range of fixed and floating rate debt for discrete annual periods over defined

time horizon The Groups normal policy is to require interest rates to be fixed for 30% to 70% of the level of underlying borrowings forecast

to arise over 12 month horizon This policy remains suspended following Board decision in December 2004 after receipt of the original

sale proceeds on the sale of the GKN share in AgustaWestland given the absence of floating rate bank debt At 31 December 2009 86%

2008 83% of the Groups gross borrowings were subject to fixed interest rates

As at 31 December 2009 204 million 2008 12 million was in bank deposits of which 186 million 2008 12 million was on deposit

with banks in the UK

1% change in interest rates would have 2.5 million impact on net interest This
sensitivity flexes the interest rate of variable rate

borrowings assuming the level and currency mix at 31 December 2009 remains in place for 12 months

20 Financial risk management continued

Regarding financial instruments 1% strengthening of sterling against the currency rates indicated below would have the following impact

on operating profit

Euro 0.2

US dollar 0.2

Intra-group

funding

Era

3.5

0.5

2009 2008
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20 Financial risk management continued

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by counterparties to financial instruments In terms of

substance and consistent with the related balance sheet presentation the Group considers it has two types of credit risk operational and

financial Operational credit risk relates to non-performance by customers in respect of trade receivables and by suppliers in respect of other

receivables Financial credit risk relates to non-performance by banks and similar institutions in respect of cash and deposits facilities and

financial contracts including forward foreign currency contracts

Operational

As tier-one suppliers to automotive off-highway and aerospace original equipment manufacturers the Group may have substantial amounts

outstanding with single customer at any one time The credit profiles of such original equipment manufacturers are available from credit

rating agencies The failure of any such customer to honour its debts could materially impact the Groups results However there are many

advantages in these relationships In certain parts of the Group mainly Industrial Distribution Services within Driveline and OffHighway

there are greater proportion of amounts receivable from small and medium sized Customers

Credit risk and customer relationships are managed at number of levels within the Group At subsidiary level documented credit control

reviews are required to be held at least every month The scope of these reviews includes amounts overdue and credit limits At divisional

level debtor ratios overdue accounts and overall performance are reviewed regularly Provisions for doubtful debts are determined at these

levels based upon the customers ability to pay and other factors in the Groups relationship with the customer

At 31 December the largest five trade receivables as proportion of total trade receivables analysed by major reportable segment is as

follows

2009 2008

Driveline 46 48

Powder Metallurgy 20 20

OffHighway 35 32

Aerospace 64 54

The amount of trade receivables outstanding at the year end does not represent the maximum exposure to operational credit risk due to

the normal patterns of supply and payment over the course of year Based on management information collected as at month ends the

maximum level of trade receivables at any one point during the year was 642 million 2008 714 million

Financial

Credit risk is mitigated by the Groups policy of only selecting counterparties with strong investment graded long term credit rating

normally at least AA- or equivalent and assigning financial limits to individual counterparties

The maximum exposure with single bank for deposits is 61 million 2008 12 million whilst the maximum mark to market exposure

for forward foreign currency contracts at 31 December 2009 to single bank was nil 2008 nil The amounts on deposit at year end

represent the Groups maximum exposure to financial credit risk with Group indebtedness varying over the course of year in line with

normal financing and trading patterns
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20 Financial risk management continued

Capital risk management

The Groups objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the ability to continue as going concern in order to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain capital structure which optimises the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders return capital to

shareholders issue new shares or sell assets to reduce borrowings

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the ratio of gross borrowings to EBITDA

The Group seeks to operate at an EBITDA of subsidiaries to gross debt ratio of 2.5 times or less and the ratios at 31 December 2009 and

2008 were as follows

2009 2008

La

Gross borrowings 636 822

EBITDA 335 377

Gross borrowings to EBITDA ratio 1.9 times 2.2 times

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as part of its normal financing and trading cycles at times when peak borrowings are required

Borrowings normally peak in May and September following dividend and bond coupon payments The Groups policies are to ensure that

sufficient liquidity is available to meet obligations when they fall due and to maintain sufficient flexibility in order to fund investment and

acquisition objectives Liquidity needs are assessed through short and long term forecasts Committed bank facilities total 709 million of

which 350 million expire in July 2010 There were no drawings on these facilities at 31 December 2009 although 13 million was utilised

for Letters of Credit Committed facilities are provided through 12 banks

The Groups only external banking covenant requires an EBITDA of subsidiaries to net interest payable and receivable ratio of 3.5 times or

more The ratios at 31 December 2009 and 2008 were as follows

2009 2008

fm

EBITDA 335 377

Net interest payable and receivable 64 47

EBITDA to net interest payable and receivable ratio 5.2 times 8.0 times
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20 Financial risk management continued

Within One to two Two to five More than

one year years years five years

2009

Borrowings note 19 72 207 348 636

Contractuat interest payments and finance lease charges 39 39 78 114 270

Government refundable advances 53 56

Deferred and contingent consideration 24 36
Derivative financial instruments liabilities receipts 182 91 211 145 629

Derivative financial instruments liabilities payments 196 98 232 160 686

2008

Borrowings note 19 97 39 334 352 822

Contractual interest payments and finance lease charges 50 49 107 144 350

Derivative financial instruments liabilities receipts 319 111 220 211 861

Derivative financial instruments liabilities payments 373 133 269 260 1035

There is no significant difference in the contractual undiscounted value of other financial liabilities from the amounts stated in the balance

sheet and balance sheet notes

Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to changes in commodity prices particularly of metals which has significant impact on input costs and the overall

financial results The Group seeks to mitigate this exposure in variety of ways including medium term price agreements surcharges and

advance purchasing In rare circumstances and only in respect of certain specified risks the Group uses derivative commodity hedging

instruments The impact of such financial instruments in respect of the overall commodity price risk is not material No amounts were

outstanding under commodity contracts at 31 December 2009

Loans and Amortised

receivables cost

Held for trading

Derivatives

Financial Financial used for

assets liabilities hedging Total

Derivative financial instruments are the only category of financial asset and financial liability held at fair value For the purposes of IFRS

Maturity analysis of borrowings derivatives and other financial liabilities

Total

Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

107

2009

Other receivables and investments

Trade and other receivables 602 602

Derivative financial instruments 21 64 43

Other financial assets 20 20

Cash and cash equivalents 316 316

Borrowings 636 636

Trade and other payables 688 688

Provisions 35 35

942 1359 21 64 460

2008

Other receivables and investments

Trade and other receivables 600 600

Derivative financial instruments 62 184 130

Cashandcashequivalents 114 114

Borrowings 822 822

Trade and other payables 717 717

Provisions

718 1544 62 184 956

these are categorised as Level fair value measurement
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21 Derivative financial instruments

2009 2008

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current

Cm

Forward currency contracts

not hedge accounted 46 13 10 123 48

hedge accounted

Commodity contracts

not hedge accounted

Embedded derivatives 14 39 10 11

16 51 14 42 20 136 56

Forward foreign currency contracts commodity contracts and embedded derivatives are marked to market using published prices with

forward foreign currency contracts and commodity contracts being settled on net basis The amounts in respect of embedded derivatives

represent commercial contracts between European Aerospace subsidiaries and customers and suppliers outside the USA which are

denominated in US dollars

Hedge accounting

Cash flow hedges

The Group manages exposure to foreign currency fluctuations on outstanding purchase and sale agreements using forward foreign currency

contracts The Group has adopted transactional foreign currency hedge accounting in limited number of contracts The net value of forward

foreign currency contracts subject to hedge accounting was nil 2008 million liability The cash flows and profit impact will occur in 2010

to 2012 20082009 to 2012 million gain was recognised in equity during the year 2008 million loss in respect of contracts

outstanding at 31 December An accumulated loss of million 2008fl million accumulated gain was removed from equity during the

108
year and included in the income statement as million loss in cost of sales Cash flow hedging was 100% effective during 2009 and 2008

Net investment hedging

For the purposes of hedge accounting net investment hedging was 100% effective during 2008 The net investment hedging policy was

suspended in December 2008
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22 Provisions

Legal and

Restructuring Warranty environmental

Em Em

Restructuring

Restructuring provisions outstanding at 31 December 2009 relate primarily to the estimated future cash outftows in respect of redundancies

and onerous contracts predominantly leases arising from Group strategic restructuring programmes details of the charges in respect of

which are included in note Amounts are only set aside when irrevocable commitments exist at the balance sheet date and these invariably

reflect actual or constructive contractual arrangements which indicate the amount and most
likely timing of flows Utilisation of the provision

due in more than one year is expected as follows 17 million in 2011 million in 2012 and million from 2013

Warranty

Provisions set aside for warranty exposures either relate to amounts provided systematically based on historical experience under

contractual warranty obtigations attaching to the supply of goods or specific provisions created in respect of individual customer issues 109

undergoing commercial resolution and negotiation In the event of claim settlement will be negotiated with the customer based on supply

of replacement products and compensation for the customers associated costs Amounts set aside represent managements best estimate

of the likely settlement and the timing of any resolution with the relevant customer Utilisation of the provision due in more than one year is

estimated as million in 2011 and million in 2012

Legal and environmental

Legal provisions amounting to million 2008 million relate to management estimates of amounts required to settle or remove

litigation actions that have arisen in the normal course of business Further details are not provided to avoid the potential of seriously

prejudicing the Groups stance in law Amounts unused and reversed only arise when the matter is formally settled or when material

change in the litigation action occurs where legal advice confirms lower amounts need to be retained to cover the exposure

As consequence of primarily legacy activities small number of sites in the Group are subject to environmental remediation actions which

in all cases are either agreed formally with relevant local and national authorities and agencies or represent managements view of the likely

outcome having taken appropriate expert advice and following consultation with appropriate authorities and agencies Amounts charged

and carried reflect the current best estimates of the likely cost of remediation and inherent timings

Utilisation of the provision due in more than one year is estimated as million in 2011 and million from 2012

Other

Other provisions include claims provisions held within the Groups captive insurance company 12 million 2008 10 million provisions

held in respect of onerous contracts and leases million 2008 million non-beneficial lease rentals 32 million 2008 nil and long

service non-pension and other employee related obligations arising primarily in the Groups continental European subsidiaries 12 million

2008 12 million Claims provisions and charges are established in accordance with external insurance and actuarial advice Utilisation

of other provisions due in more than one year is expected as follows million in 2011 mitlion in 2012 million in 2013 million in

2014 and 25 million from 2015

Vacant leasehold property provisions and non-beneficial lease rentals included in Restructuring and Other provisions above amount to

35 million 2008 million

Other

Em

Total

EmEm

At January 2009 30 18 27 28 103

Charge for the year

Additions 107 21 137
Unused amounts reversed

Subsidiaries acquired 34 34
Amounts used 74 89

Currency variations

At 31 December 2009 59 30 24 58 171

Due within one year 37 19 17 11 84
Due in more than one year 22 11 47 87

59 30 24 58 171
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23 Share capital

Authorised Issued

2009 2008 2009 2008

Em Em Em Em

Ordinary shares of 50p each 450 372

Ordinary shares of lOp each 310 159

Deferred shares of 40p each 298 298

Total nominal value of shares 608 450 457 372

Authorised Issued

2009 2008 2009 2008

Number Number Number Number

Notes 0005 0005 0005 0005

Ordinary shares of 50p each

At January 900000 900000 743904 743699

Increase in authorised share capital 316000

Capital reorganisation ii 1216000 743904

Shares issued under share option schemes 205

At 31 December 900000 743904

Ordinary shares of lOp each

Atijanuary

Capital reorganisation ii 3104384 743904

Rights issue iii 846624-

Shares issued under share option schemes

At 31 December 3104384 1590528

Deferred shares of 40p each

Atijanuary

Capital reorganisation ii 743904 743904

At 31 December 743904 743904

At 31 December ordinary and deferred 3848288 900000 2334432 743904

Notes

An ordinary resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting held on May 2009 to increase the authorised share capital of the

Company from 450000000 to 608000000 by the creation of 316000000 ordinary shares of 50p each

ii special resolution was passed at General Meeting held on July 2009 to sub-divide each issued ordinary share of SOp into one

ordinary share of lOp and one deferred share of 40p and each unissued ordinary share of 50p into five ordinary shares of lOp The

deferred shares are not listed have no voting or dividend rights and only very limited rights on return of capital resolution to

approve the purchase and subsequent cancellation of the deferred shares will be put to shareholders at the 2010 Annual General

Meeting

iii On 22 July 2009 the Company issued 846623629 ordinary shares of lOp each by way of for rights issue at price of SOp per share

The rights issue generated net proceeds of 403 million after costs of 20 million
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23 Share capital continued

At the 2009 Annual General Meeting special resolution was passed enabling the Company to purchase up to maximum of 70.5 miltion

of its own ordinary shares representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2008 excluding shares held in

treasury for period ending on the earlier of the next Annual General Meeting or July 2010 provided that certain conditions relating to

purchase price are met special resolution passed at General Meeting held on July 2009 increased the maximum amount which can

be purchased to 155.2 million ordinary shares to reflect the capital reorganisation and rights issue The notice of the 2010 Annual General

Meeting proposes that shareholders approve resolution updating and renewing this authority Shares in the Company may also be

purchased by the GKN Employees Share Ownership Plan Trust

At 31 December 2009 there were 38199579 ordinary shares of lOp each and 38384253 deferred shares of 40p each total nominal value

19.2 million 2008 19.2 million held as treasury shares No shares were purchased in the open market during 2009 or 2008 total of

184674 ordinary shares of lOp each were transferred out of treasury during 2009 to satisfy the exercise of options by former employees

under share option schemes The remaining treasury shares which represented 4.2% 2008.2% of the called up share capital at the end

of the year have not been cancelled but are held as treasury shares and represent deduction from shareholders equity

During the year shares issued under the share option schemes generated less than million 2008 less than million

24 Acquisitions

On January 2009 the Group acquired the trade and assets of the wing component manufacturing and assembly operation of Airbus UK

which is located on the Airbus Filton site in the UK Filton

Fair value Fair

adjustments values

fm fm

Goodwill is attributable to the value of the assembled workforce expectation of winning future contracts with Airbus gaining customer

relationships with other customers and synergies No technological rights or marketing related assets were acquired

FRS

carrying

values at

acquisition

fm

Intangible assets order book

customer relationships 79 79

Property plant and equipment 48 57

Inventories 38 36

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Provisions post-employment obligations 20 20

other 34 34

Deferred tax

Cash and cash equivalents

86 38 124

Goodwill

Total fair value of consideration 132

Consideration satisfied by

Cash 94

Deferred and contingent consideration 32

Directly attributable costs

132
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24 Acquisitions continued

Fair vatue adjustments to Provisions other relate to non-beneficiat lease rentals The Group was apportioned ftoor area for the wing

component manufacturing and assembly operation out of the larger Airbus headlease The freeholder is third party and the full above

market rental cost of the apportioned Airbus headlease rental is required by covenant with the freeholder to be passed from Airbus to the

Group The Group is committed to the lease for the remaining seventeen year term of the headlease The provision has been discounted

The fair value of deferred and contingent consideration recognised upon acquisition includes million million undiscounted of

consideration contingent upon Filton achieving certain levels of sales in 2013 2014 and 2015 The undiscounted contingent consideration

payable ranges from nil to million

The acquisition date coincided with the first day of operations in 2009 During the year Filton contributed sales of 330 million and trading

profit of 40 million

25 Cash flow recondiliations

2009 2008

Cash generated from operations

Operating profit loss 39 86

Adjustments for

Depreciation impairment and amortisation of fixed assets

Charged to trading profit

Depreciation 193 165

Impairment

Amortisation 11 10

Amortisation of non.operating intangible assets arising on business combinations 24 10

Restructuring and impairment charges 127

Changes in fair value of derivative and other financial instruments 71 133

Amortisation of capital grants

Net profits on sale of fixed assets

Profits and losses on sale or closures of businesses

Charge for share-based payments

Movement in post-employment obligations 45 26

Change in inventories 133

Change in receivables 36 93

Change in payables and provisions 36 105

288 328

Movement in net debt

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 194 156

Net movement in other borrowings 93 79

Bond buy-back 124

Finance leases

Currency variations 24

Subsidiaries acquired and sold

Movement in year 408 202

Net debt at beginning of year 708 506

Net debt at end of year 300 708

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents per balance sheet 316 114

Bank overdrafts included within current liabilities borrowings 28 20

Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow 288 94
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2009 2008

Post-emptoyment obligations as at the year end comprise

Pensions funded 597 417

unfunded 345 348

Medical funded 13 18
unfunded 41 51

996 834

The Groups pension arrangements comprise various defined benefit and defined contribution schemes throughout the world The main

externally funded defined benefit pension schemes operate in the UK US and Japan In Europe funds are retained within certain businesses

to provide defined benefit pension benefits In addition in the US and UK number of retirement plans are operated which provide certain

employees with post-employment medical benefits

Defined benefit schemes measurement and assumptions

Independent actuarial valuations of all major defined benefit scheme assets and liabilities were carried out at 31 December 2009 The

present value of the defined benefit obligation the related current service cost and the past service cost were measured using the projected

unit credit method

The discount rates in the table above for the UK and Europe were referenced against specific iBoxx indices whilst the Citigroup liability index

was the reference point for the USA discount rate The reference for the UK discount rate was the yield as at 31 December on the iBoxx GBP

Corporate rated AA bonds with maturity of 15 years plus The reference for the European discount rate was the yield as at 31 December on

the iBoxx Euro Corporate rated AA bonds with maturity of 10 years plus of 5.1% adjusted to reflect the duration of liabilities For the USA

the discount rate matched the Citigroup liability index as at 31 December 2009 of 6.0%

The underlying mortality assumptions for the major schemes are as follows

United Kingdom

Such is the size and profile of the UK scheme that data on the schemes mortality experience is collected and reviewed annually The key

current year mortality assumptions for the scheme use PA92 Year of Birth tables with plus 2.5 year age adjustment to reflect actual

mortality experience for the scheme together with medium cohort projected improvement in longevity Using these assumptions male

aged 65 lives for further 19.8 years whilst male aged 40 is expected to live further 21 years after retiring at 65 The prior period

113

26 Post-employment obligations

Key assumptions were

UK Americas Europe ROW

2009

Rate of increase in pensionable salaries 4.25 3.5 2.50 3.5

Rate of increase in payment and deferred pensions 3.40 2.0 1.75 n/a

Discount rate 5.70 6.0 5.40 2.0

Inflation assumption 3.25 2.5 1.75 1.0

Rate of increases in medical costs

initial/long term 7.0/4.5 9.0/5.0 n/a n/a

2008

Rate of increase in pensionable salaries 3.9 3.5 2.50 3.5

Rate of increase in payment and deferred pensions 3.0 2.0 1.75 n/a

Discount rate 6.5 5.8 6.00 2.0

Inflation assumption 2.9 2.5 1.75 1.0

Rate of increases in medical costs

initial/long term 6.6/4.5 9.0/5.0 n/a n/a

valuations used the same mortality assumptions
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26 Post-employment obligations continued

Overseas

In the USA CL2009 tables have been used whilst in Germany the RT2005-G tables have again been used In the USA the longevity assumption

for mate aged 65 is that he lives further 19 years whilst in Germany for further 18.1 years The longevity assumption for US male

currently aged 40 is that he also lives for further 19 years once attaining 65 years with the German equivalent assumption being 18.2 years

These assumptions are based solely on the prescribed tables not on actual GKN experience

Assumption sensitivity analysis

The impact of one percentage point movement in the primary assumptions on the defined benefit net obligations as at 31 December 2009

is set out below

The 2009 past service credit of million largely relates to changes to life insurance arrangements in the USA whilst the charge of million

relates to augmentations arising in the UK on redundancy programmes The 2008 past service cost charge relates to augmentations arising

in the UK on redundancy programmes and additional charges in respect of continental European subsidiary

The 2009 settlement/curtailment credit arises from the closure of two pension schemes to future accrual in the USA together with the

impact of redundancy programmes in Japan The 2008 credit in settlements/curtailments was in respect of changes to freeze pension benefit

entitlements in Driveline and Powder Metallurgy businesses in the USA

UK Americas

Income Income

Liabilities statement Liabilities statement

Km Km

Europe

Income

Liabilities statement

Km Km

ROW

Income

Liabilities statement

Km KmKm

Discount rate 1% 341 4.2 40 0.1 43 0.2 0.2

Discount rate -1% 406 1.7 49 0.4 54 0.1 0.2

Rate of inflation 1% 324 24.8 32 2.5

Rate of inflation -1% 292 21.7 29 2.1

Rate of increase in medical costs 1%
Rate of increase in medical costs -la/n

1% underpin to Medium Cohort annual improvements in mortality for the UK scheme increases liabilities by 63 million

Defined benefit schemes reporting

The amounts included in operating profit are

Trading profit

Redandancy Restructuring

Employee and other and

benefit emptoyment impairment

expense amounts charges Total

Km Km Km Km

2009

Currentservicecost 34 34

Past service cost

Settlement/curtailments

22 23

2008

Current service cost 35 35

Past service cost

Settlement/curtailments 12 12

24 26
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26 Post-employment obligations continued

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are
2009

UK Americas Europe ROW Total 2008

Em Em Em Em Em Em

Present value of funded obligations 2429 318 20 33 2800 2444

Fair value of plan assets 1930 215 27 18 2190 2009

Net obligations recognised in the balance sheet 499 103 15 610 435

The contributions expected to be paid by the Group during 2010 to the UK schemes is 60 million and to overseas schemes 33 million

Total

Em

2843

20

34

170

362

158

78

Cumulative actuarial gains and losses recognised in equity are as follows

2009 2008

EmEm

AtiJanuary 144 242

Net actuarial gains/losses in year 190 386

At 31 December 334 144

Post-employment obligations

UK Americas Europe ROW

Movement in schemes obligations funded and unfunded during the year Em Em Em Em

At January 2009 2043 401 353 46

Subsidiaries acquired 20

Currentservicecost 20

Interest 129 21 19

Contributions by participants

Actuarial gains and losses 346 22

Benefits paid 123 15 17

Past service cost

Curtailments

Currency variations 40 32

At 31 December 2009 2440 355 352 39 3186

At January 2008 2264 270 268 24 2826

Current service cost 20 35

Interest 131 18 16 166

Contributions by participants

Actuarial gains and losses 258 22 10 244

Benefits paid
123 12 15 152

Past service cost

Curtailments 12 12

Currency variations 109 87 18 214

At 31 December 2008 2043 401 353 46 2843
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fm

At January 2009 1759 202 29 19 2009

Subsidiaries acquired

Expected return on assets 106 13 121

Actuarial gains and losses 152 21 172

Contributions by Group 32 15 51

Contributions by participants

Benefits paid 123 15 141

Currency variations 21 26

At 31 December 2009 1930 215 27 18 2190

At January 2008 2248 212 21 14 2495

Expected return on assets 144 17 163

Actuarial gains and losses 539 87 630

Contributions by Group 22 12 37

Contributions by participants

Benefits paid 123 11 137

Currency variations 59 74

At 31 December 2008 1759 202 29 19 2009

The defined benefit obligation is analysed between funded and unfunded schemes as follows

2009

UK Americas Europe ROW Total 2008

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Funded 2429 318 20 33 2800 2444

Unfunded 11 37 332 386 399

2440 355 352 39 3186 2843

The fair value of the assets in the schemes and the expected rates of return were

UK Americas Europe ROW

Long term Long term Long term Long term

rate of rate of rate of rate of

return return return return

expected Value expected Value expected Value expected Value

2009

Equities inc Hedge Funds 7.8 696 8.5 143 5.70

Bonds 5.3 1054 4.2 67 1.35

Property 6.6 82

Cash/short term mandate 0.5 67 3.2

Other assets 5.7 31 5.1 27 1.25

1930 215 27 18

2008

Equities inc Hedge Funds 8.0 667 8.5 125 5.6

Bonds 5.3 912 5.5 70 1.6

Property 6.8 80

Cash/short term mandate 2.0 74 4.4 1.1

Other assets 6.5 26 5.6 29 0.9

1759 202 29 19

26 Post-employment obligations continued

Movement in schemes assets during the year

UK Americas Europe ROW Total

fm
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26 Post-employment obligations continued

The expected return on ptan assets is btended average of projected tong term returns for the various asset classes Equity returns are

developed based on the selection of the equity risk premium above the risk-free rate which is measured in accordance with the yield on

government bonds Bond returns are selected by reference to the yields on government and corporate debt as appropriate to the plans

holdings of these instruments all other asset classes returns are determined by reference to current experience

The actual return on plan assets was 293 million 2008 467 million negative

History of experience gains and losses

117

UK Americas Europe ROW

2009

Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets

Amount 152 21

Percentage of scheme assets 7.9% 9.8% 3.7%

Experience gains/losses on scheme liabilities

Amountem

Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 0.3% 1.7%

Present value of scheme liabilities 2440 355 352 39
Fair value of scheme assets 1930 215 27 18

Deficit 510 140 325 21

2008

Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets

Amount 539 86
Percentage of scheme assets 30.6% 43.1% 21.0%

Experience gainsf losses on scheme liabilities

Amount

Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 0.3% 0.5% 1.4%

Present value of scheme liabilities 2043 401 353 46
Fair value of scheme assets 1759 202 29 19

Deficit 284 199 324 27

2007

Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets

Amount 21

Percentage of scheme assets 0.9% 4.8% 7.1%

Experience gains/losses on scheme liabilities

Amount

Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 0.3% 1.6% 1.4%

Present value of scheme liabilities 2264 270 268 24
Fair value of scheme assets 2248 212 21 14

Deficit 16 58 247 10

2006

Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets

Amount 35 15

Percentage of scheme assets 1.6% 7.6% 4.5%

Experience gains/losses on scheme liabilities

Amount 15

Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 0.6% 6.7%

Present value of scheme liabilities 2375 301 277 23
Fair value of scheme assets 2187 196 19 13

Deficit 188 105 258 10
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26 Post-employment obligations continued

History of experience gains and losses continued

UK Americas Europe ROW

2005

Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets

Amount 187

Percentage of scheme assets 9.7% 0.7% 5.0% 14.7%

Experience gains losses on scheme liabilities

Amount 22

Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 0.9% 0.9% 1.8% 3.0%

Present value of scheme liabilities 2381 316 284 23

Fair value of scheme assets 1915 170 20 14

Deficit 466 146 264

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates number of defined contribution schemes outside the United Kingdom The charge to the income statement in the year

was 13 million 2008 14 million

27 Contingent assets and liabilities

Aside from the unrecognised contingent asset referred to in note in respect of Franked Investment Income there were no other material

contingent assets at 31 December 2009

At 31 December 2009 the Group had no contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees 2008 13 million In the case of

certain businesses performance bonds and customer finance obligations have been entered into in the normal course of business

28 Operating lease commitments minimum lease payments

The minimum lease payments which the Group is committed to make at 31 December are
2009 2008

Vehicles Vehicles

plant and plant and

Property equipment Property equipment

Em Em

Payments under non-cancellable operating leases

Within one year 30 10 27 12

Later than one year and less than five years 82 18 69 23

After five years 118 55

230 30 151 38

29 Capital expenditure

Contracts placed against capital expenditure sanctioned at 31 December 2009 so far as not provided by subsidiaries amounted to 84 million

2008 84 million and the Groups share not provided by joint ventures amounted to million 2008Li million

30 Related party transactions

In the ordinary course of business sales and purchases of goods take place between subsidiaries and joint venture companies priced on an

arms Length basis Sales by subsidiaries to joint ventures in 2009 totalled 62 million 2008 74 million The amount due at the year end

in respect of such sales was 14 million 2008 LII million Purchases by subsidiaries from joint ventures in 2009 totalled million

2008 Lii million The amount due at the year end in respect of such purchases was nil 2008 million

At 31 December 2009 Group subsidiary had Li million receivable 2008 nil from joint venture in respect of loan facility bearing

interest at six month LIBOR plus 1%

31 Post-balance sheet event

In February 2010 the Group announced its intention to exit its OffHighway axles operations In 2009 the axles operations reported trading

loss of million over 30% of the OffHighway trading loss for the year All exit options are being explored The results of this business will

be reported and disclosed separately in 2010
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Independent Auditors Report to the Members of GKN plc

We have audited the Company financial

statements of GKN ptc for the year ended

31 December 2009 which comprise the

Balance Sheet and the retated notes The

financial reporting framework that has been

apptied in their preparation is applicabte law

and United Kingdom Accounting Standards

United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice

Respective responsibilities of

Directors and auditors

As explained more fully
in the statement of

Directors responsibilities on page 63 the

Directors are responsible for the preparation

of the Company financial statements and

for being satisfied that they give true and

fair view Our responsibility is to audit the

Company financial statements in accordance

with applicable law and International

Standards on Auditing UK and Ireland

Those standards require us to comply

with the Auditing Practices Boards Ethical

Standards for Auditors

This report including the opinions has been

prepared for and only for the Companys

members as body in accordance with

Chapter of Part 16 of the Companies Act

2006 and for no other purpose We do not

in giving these opinions accept or assume

responsibility for any other purpose or to any

other person to whom this report is shown

or into whose hands it may come save where

expressly agreed by our prior
consent in

writing

Scope of the audit of the financial

statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about

the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements sufficient to give reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are

free from material misstatement whether

caused by fraud or error This includes an

assessment of whether the accounting

policies are appropriate to the Companys

circumstances and have been consistently

applied and adequately disclosed the

reasonableness of significant accounting

estimates made by the Directors and

the overall presentation of the financial

statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the Company financial

statements

give true and fair view of the state of

the Companys affairs as at 31 December

2009

have been properly prepared in

accordance with United Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

and

have been prepared in accordance with

the requirements of the Companies Act

2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed

by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

the part of the Directors remuneration

report to be audited has been properly

prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006 and

the information given in the Directors

report for the financial year for which

the Company financial statements are

prepared is consistent with the Company

financial statements

Matters on which we are required to

report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the

following matters where the Companies Act

2006 requires us to report to you if in our

opinion

adequate accounting records have not

been kept by the Company or returns

adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us

or

the Company financial statements and

the part of the Directors remuneration

report to be audited are not in agreement

with the accounting records and returns

or

certain disctosures of Directors

remuneration specified by law are not

made or

we have not received all the information

and explanations we require for our

audit

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Group

financial statements of GKN plc for the year

ended 31 December 2009

Roy Hodson

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Birmingham

24 February 2010

Is
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Balance Sheet of GKN plc

At 31 December 2009

2009 2008

fm

The financial statements on pages 120 to 122 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24 February 2010 They were

signed on its behalf by

Notes

Fixed assets

Investment in subsidiaries at cost 3569 3567

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries 10 49

Current liabilities Amounts due within one year

Amounts owed to subsidiaries 2188 2640

2188 2640

Net current liabilities 2178 2591

Total assets less current liabilities 1391 976

Net assets 1391 976

Capital and reserves

Share capital 457 372

Share premium account 29

Profit and loss account 925 575

1391 976

Sir Kevin Smith William Seeger Directors
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Notes to the Financial Statements of GKN plc

Significant accounting policies and basis of preparation

The separate financiat statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 They have been prepared under

the historical cost convention except where other measurement bases are required to be applied and in accordance with applicable

United Kingdom Accounting Standards and law In accordance with FRS revised 1996 and FRS the Company has taken advantage of

the exemptions not to prepare cash flow statement and not to disclose transactions with related parties As the consolidated financial

statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS the Company is exempt from the disclosure requirements of FRS 29 Other new

accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board and effective from January 2009 have had no impact on the financial

statements of the Company

The principal accounting policies are summarised below They have been applied consistently in both years presented

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less provision for impairment

Treasury shares

GKN shares which have been purchased and not cancelled are held as treasury shares and deducted from shareholders equity

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant The Company has no employees Equity-settled share-

based payments that are made available to employees of the Companys subsidiaries are treated as increases in equity over the vesting

period of the award with corresponding increase in the Companys investments in subsidiaries based on an estimate of the number of

shares that will eventually vest

Profit and loss account

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is

established Current tax is recognised in the profit and loss account unless items relate to equity

Dividends

The annual final dividend is not provided for until approved at the Annual General Meeting whilst interim dividends are charged in the period

they are paid

Profit and loss account

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year

The
profit

for the year ended 31 December 2009 was 10 million 2008 151 million

Auditors remuneration for audit services to the Company was 0.7 million 2008 0.7 million
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Fixed asset investments

2009 2008

Cm

At January 3567 3565

Additions share-based payments

Additions preference shares 403

Redemption preference shares 403

At31 December 3569 3567

Principal subsidiary and joint venture companies the investments in which are hetd through intermediate holding companies are shown on

pages 124 and 125

AtlJanuary2009
575

Rights issue 338

Profit for the year 10

Share-based payments

Transfers 338 338

At31 December2009 925

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders funds

AtiJanuary 2009 976

Net proceeds from rights issue 403

Profit for the year
10

Share-based payments

At 31 December 2009 1391

Details of the rights issue share capital share premium and dividends paid by GKN plc are disclosed in notes and 23 to the Group

financial statements

Reserves
Profit

Other and loss

reserves account

Los
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005t

fm

Consolidated income statements

Sales continuing subsidiaries 4223 4376 3869 3634 3648

Trading profit 129 201 277 251 229

Restructuring and impairment charges 144 153 31 74 98
Amortisation of non-operating intangible assets arising on

business combinations 24 10

Profits and losses on sale or closures of businesses

Change in value of derivative and other financial instruments 76 124 10 33 33

Operating profit/loss 39 86 221 203 98

Share of post-tax earnings of continuing joint ventures 21 24 17 10

Net financing costs 114 50 46 38 35

Profit/loss before taxation from continuing operations 54 130 199 182 73

Taxation 15 10 14

Profit/loss after taxation from continuing operations 39 120 198 177 59

Share of post-tax earnings of joint ventures

Profit on disposal of joint ventures after taxation 13

Profit/loss after taxation from discontinued operations 13

Profit/loss for the year 34 107 198 177 59

Less profit attributable to non-controlling interests

Profit/loss attributable to equity shareholders 36 109 196 177 55

Dividend per share

Consolidated balance sheets condensed

Goodwill 338 367 280 244 241

Other intangible assets 187 153 136 112 54

Property plant and equipment 1636 1797 1462 1354 1364

Investments in joint ventures 112 119 100 83 81

Inventories 563 718 552 470 467

Trade and other receivables and investments 668 668 593 544 587

Trade and other payables 970 1010 868 772 819

Provisions 171 103 96 119 135

2363 2709 2159 1916 1840

Net borrowings 300 708 506 426 65

Current tax net 66 98 102 93 109

Deferred tax net 14 11 19 51 112

Derivative financial instruments net 43 130 21 22

Post-employment obligations 996 834 331 561 885

Assets less liabilities held for sale excluding borrowing 30

Net assets 972 928 1196 908 901

Management profit before taxation and earnings per
share exclude the impact of restructuring and impairment costs profits and losses on sale or closures of businesses umortisution of

non-operating intangible assets arising on business combination change in value of derivative and other financial instruments other net financing charges and discontinued operations

As restated for separate presentation of amottisation of non-operating intangibles

As restated for reclassification of the trading results of the UK cylinder liner manufacturing operation within the caption profits and losses on sale or closures of businesses

As restated in 20052008 for the bonus issue inherent in the rights issue that was approved on luly 2009

As reported

As adjusted

Management profit
before taxation 83 170 258 234 226

Earnings per share

3.2 11.7

5.5 16.0

3.0

18.8 16.9

23.5 203

9.1 8.6

gt
5.2

16.6

8.2
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Principal Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

At 31 December 2009

Automotive

Driveline

Europe

GKN Automotive Ltd England

GKN Driveline Birmingham Ltd England

GKN Driveline Walsall Ltd England

GKN Driveline SAFrance

GKN Driveline Deutschland GmbH Germany

GKN Driveline Trier GmbH Germany

GKN Gelenkwellenwerk Kaiserslautern GmbH Germany

GKN Driveline Bruneck AG Italy

GKN Driveline Firenze SpA Italy

GKN Driveline Polska Sp o.o Poland

GKN Driveline Slovenija d.o.o Slovenia

GKN Driveline Espana SASpoin

GKN Driveline Legazpi SA Spain

GKN DrivelineVigoSASpain

GKN Driveline Zumaia SA Spain

GKN Eskisehir Automotive Products Manufacture and Sales A.S

Turkey

Americas

GKN do Brasil Ltda Brazil

Transejes Transmisiones HomocinØticas de Colombia SA 49%
Colombia

GKN Driveline Celaya SA de CV Mexico

GKN Driveline Villagran SA de CV Mexico

GKN Driveline Uruguay SA Uruguay

GKN Driveline Bowling Green Inc USA

GKN Driveline North America Inc USA

Rest of World

Unidrive Pty Ltd 60% Australia

GKN Driveline Torque Technology Shanghai Co Ltd China

GKN Driveshaft Chongqing Ltd 34.5% China

Shanghai GKN Drive Shaft Company Ltd 50% China

GKN Driveline India Ltd 97% India

GKN Driveline Torque Technology KKJopan

GKN Driveline Utsunomiya Ltd Japan

GKN ITEKT Ltd 49% Japan

Viscodrive Japan KKJapan

GKN Driveline Malaysia Sdn Bhd 68.4% Malaysia

GKN Driveline Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore

GKN Driveline Korea Ltd South Korea

Taiway Ltd 36.25% Taiwan

GKN Driveline Thailand Ltd Thailand

GKN Driveline JTEKT Manufacturing Ltd 51% Thailand

GKN JTEKT Thailand Ltd 49% Thailand

Industrial and Distribution Services

GKN Service International GmbH Germany

Other companies in Europe

Other Automotive

GKN Zhongyuan Cylinder Liner Company Ltd 59% China

Chassis Systems Ltd 50% England

GKN AutoStructures Ltd England

Emitec Gesellschaft fur Emissionstechnologie mbH 50% Germany

Emitec Produktion Eisenach GmbH 50% Germany

Emitec Inc 50% USA

Other companies

GKN Freight Services Ltd England

GKN Driveline International GmbH Germany

GKN Japan Ltd Japan

Export and representation companies in Europe and USA

Research and Product Development centres in Germany USA and

Japan

Powder Metallurgy

Hoeganaes

Hoeganaes Corporation Europe GmbH Germany

Hoeganaes Corporation Europe SA Romania

Hoeganaes Corporation USA

Sinter Metals

Europe

GKN Sinter Metals Holdings Ltd England

GKN Sinter Metals Components GmbH Germany

GKN Sinter Metals Engineering GmbH Germany

GKN Sinter Metals Filters GmbH Radevormwald Germany

GKN Sinter Metals GmbH Bad BrUckenau Germany

GKN Sinter Metals GmbH Bad Langensalza Germany

GKN Sinter Metals GmbH Radevormwald Germany

GKN Sinter Metals Holding GmbH Germany

GKN Sinter Metals SpA Italy

Americas

GKN Sinter Metals de Argentina SAArgentina

GKN Sinter Metals Ltda Brazil

GKN Sinter Metals St Thomas Ltd Canada

GKN Sinter Metals LLC USA

Rest of World

GKN Danyang Industries Company Ltd China

GKN Sinter Metals Private Ltd India

GKN Sinter Metals Cape Town Pty Ltd South Africa
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Aerospace

Europe

Composite Technology and Applications Ltd 49% England

GKN Aerospace Services Ltd England

GKN CEDU Ltd England

GKN Aerospace La PacaudiŁre SAS France

GKN Holdings Deutschland GmbH Germany

Americas

GKN Aerospace Transparency Systems do Brasil Ltda Brazil

ASTECH Engineered Products Inc USA

GKN Aerospace Bandy Machining Inc USA

GKN Aerospace Chem-tronics Inc USA

GKN Aerospace Cincinnati Inc USA

GKN Aerospace Monitor Inc USA

GKN Aerospace Muncie Inc USA

GKN Aerospace New England Inc USA

GKN Aerospace North America Inc USA

GKN Aerospace Precision Machining Inc USA

GKN Aerospace Transparency Systems Inc USA

GKN Westland Aerospace Inc USA

Rest of World

GKN Aerospace Engineering Services Pty Ltd Australia

GKN Aerospace Transparency Systems Thailand Ltd Thai/and

OffH ighway

Europe

GKN Walterscheid Belgium BVBA Belgium

GKN Walterscheid Service Distribution A/S Denmark

GKN Wheels NagbeI A/S Denmark

GKN OffHighway Ltd England

GKN Walterscheid Getriebe GmbH Germany

GKN Walterscheid GmbH Germany

GKN FAD SpA Italy

GKN Geplasmetal SASpain

Americas

GKN Armstrong Wheels Inc USA

GKN Rockford Inc USA

GKN Walterscheid Inc USA

Rest of World

GKN Wheels Liuzhou Company Ltd China

Matsui-Walterscheid Ltd 40% Japan

Corporate

Europe

GKN United Kingdom plc England

GKN Holdings plc England

GKN Industries Ltd England

GKN UK Investments Ltd England

lpsley Insurance Ltd Isle of Man

Gate Capital Oersey Ltd Jersey

Americas

GKN America Corp USA

Rest of World

GKN China Holding Co Ltd China

The issued share capitals of the 149 companies which at

31 December 2009 comprised the GKN Group are held indirectly

by GKN
plc through intermediate holding companies which are

registered or incorporated in England USA Germany and China

Certain intermediate holding companies do not prepare consolidated

financial statements

The percentage of the share
capital

held by GKN is indicated where

companies are not wholly owned

Of the Group subsidiary sales of 4223 million 99.9% related

to subsidiaries whose financial statements are audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP auditors of the parent Company

hi1

iii
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Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting on Thursday

May 2010 will be held at the Cavendish

Conference Centre 22 Duchess Mews

London WiG 9DT commencing at

2.00 pm The notice of meeting together

with an explanation of the resolutions to

be considered at the meeting is contained

within the AGM circular

GKN website and share price

information

Information on GKN including this and prior

years annual reports half year reports

results announcements and presentations

together with the GKN share
price updated

every 20 minutes is available on GKNs

website at www.gkn.com The latest GKN

share
price is also available within the UK

from the Financial Times Cityline service by

telephoning 09058 171690 Calls are charged

at 75p per minute

Shareholding enquiries and

information

Administrative enquiries relating to

shareholdings should be addressed to GKNs

registrar Equiniti see inside back cover for

contact details Correspondence should refer

to GKN and include the shareholders full

name address and if available the or 11

digit reference number which can be found

on GKN share certificates

By visiting Equinitis Shareview website at

www.shareview.co.uk shareholders can view

information on their shareholdings and recent

dividends obtain guidance on transferring

shares and receiving shareholder documents

electronically update their personal details

including changing address details and set

up new dividend mandate or change their

existing mandate Shareholders wishing to

register for Shareview will need their or 11

digit reference number which can be found

on GKN share certificates

Share dealing service

telephone dealing service has been

arranged with Stocktrade which provides

simple way of buying or selling GKN shares

Full details can be obtained by telephoning

0845 601 0995 44 131 240 0414 from

outside the UK and quoting reference Low

Co139

Also the Equiniti Group offers telephone

and Internet dealing service for UK residents

to buy or sell GKN shares Further details

can be obtained from www.shareview

co.uk/dealing or by telephoning 0845 603

7037 Equiniti Financial Services Ltd is

authorised and regulated by the UK Financial

Services Authority The registered details of

the provider are available from the above

number

Please note that the value of shares can fall

and you may get back less than you invest If

you are in any doubt about the suitability of

an investment you should seek professional

advice

Dividend reinvestment plan DRIP
Under the DRIP shareholders can use their

cash dividends to buy additional shares in

GKN Shareholders who would like to receive

details of the DRIP should contact the Share

Dividend Team at Equiniti see inside back

cover or visit the Shareview website www
shareview.co.uk

GKN single company ISA

Equiniti operates single Company ISA in

which GKN shares can be held in tax efficient

manner Full details and an application form

can be obtained by telephoning Equinitis ISA

Helpline on 0845 300 0430 or by visiting the

Shareview website www.shareview.co.uk

Investors should note that the value of any

tax benefit will vary according to individual

circumstances and the tax rules relating to

lSAs may change in the future If you are in any

doubt you should seek professional advice

GKN American Depositary Receipts

GKN has sponsored Level American

Depositary Receipt ADR programme for

which The Bank of New York Mellon acts as

Depositary Each ADR represents one GKN

ordinary share The ADR5 trade in the US

over-the-counter OTC market under the

symbol GKNLY When dividends are paid to

shareholders the Depositary converts such

dividends into US dollars net of fees and

expenses and distributes the net amount

to ADR holders For enquiries The Bank

of New York Mellon can be contacted by

telephone on i-888-BNY-ADRS toll-free

for US residents or 1-201-680-6825 for

international residents via their website at

www.adrbnymellon.com or by email enquiry

to shrrelations@bnymellon.com

Receipt of shareholder documents

To enable the Company to reduce costs and

its impact on the environment shareholder

documents are only sent in hard copy to

those shareholders who have made an

election to receive documents in this form

Shareholders who have not elected to receive

documents in hard copy will receive letter

at the time of their publication advising that

they are available electronically usually on

GKNs website Alternatively shareholders

can elect to be notified of the publication of

documents by email Shareholders who wish

to register for email notification can do so via

the GKN or Shareview websites see inside

back cover

Unsolicited mail

GKN is obliged by law to make its share

register publicly available and as

consequence some shareholders may have

received unsolicited mail If you wish to

limit the amount of such mail you should

contact the Mailing Preference Service whose

address is FREEPOST 29 L0N20771 London

W1E OZT Alternatively they may be contacted

by telephone on 020 7291 3310 via their

website at www.mpsonline.org.uk or by email

addressed to mps@dma.org.uk

Shareholders are advised to be wary of any

unsolicited advice offers to buy shares at

discount or offers of free Company reports

These are typically from overseas based

brokers who target UK shareholders

offering to sell them what are often worthless

or high risk shares in US or UK investments

These operations are commonly known as

boiler rooms If you receive any unsolicited

investment advice

make sure you obtain the correct name of

the person and organisation

check that they are properly authorised

by the Financial Services Authority by

consulting the FSA register of regulated

firms at www.moneymadeclear.fsa.gov

uk If you deal with an unauthorised

firm you would not be eligible to receive

payment under the Financial Services

Compensation Scheme

report any suspicions to the FSA by

calling 0845 606 1234 and

if the calls persist hang up
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Taxation

In July 2009 the Company completed capital reorganisation and rights issue further details can be found on page 42 guide to the general

tax position of shareholders in relation to the rights issue is given in the prospectus dated 18 lune 2009 and is available on GKNs website

The adjusted 31 March 1982 base value of one GKN ordinary share held immediately before the capital reorganisation and rights issue was

45.501p The adjusted base value immediately after the capital reorganisation and rights issue was 47.955p

The market values of GKN ordinary share and Brambles Industries plc Brambles ordinary share on August 2001 the first day of trading in

Brambles shares to be used in the allocation of the base cost of GKN ordinary shares acquired since March 1982 following the demerger of the

industrial services businesses are GKN ordinary shares 282.5p 43.943224% and Brambles ordinary shares 36O.375p 56.056776%

Where shares are disposed of in the open market capital gain may result if the disposal proceeds exceed the sum of the base cost The

calculations required to compute chargeable gains may be complex and shareholders are advised to consult financial adviser if they are in any

doubt as to their personal tax position

Shareholder analysis

Holdings of ordinary shares at 31 December 2009

Number million

Holdings

1500 6906 27.4 1.4 0.1

5011000 4304 17.1 3.2 0.2

10015000 10136 40.2 23.9 1.5

500150000 3265 13.0 35.9 2.2

50001100000 108 0.4 7.5 0.5

100001500000 208 0.8 50.3 3.2

5000011000000 77 0.3 56.3 3.5

above 1000000 196 0.8 1412.0 88.8

25200 100 1590.5 100

Shareholder type

Individuals 22311 88.5 56.5 3.5

Institutions 2573 10.2 1475.3 92.8

Other corporates 316 1.3 58.7 3.7

25200 100 1590.5 100

fli

127

Shareholders 5hares

Number

In addition GKN held 38.2 million ordinary shares in treasury as at 31 December 2009
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Subject Index

Accounting policies
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audit information
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Cash flow
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Contact Details

GKN plc Registrar

P0 Box 55 Equiniti

lpsley House Aspect House

Ipsley Church Lane Spencer Road

Redditch Lancing

Worcestershire B98 OTL West Sussex BN99 6DA

Tel 44 01527 517715 let 0871 384 2962

Fax 4401527 517700 44 121 415 7039 from outside UK

Fax 0871 384 2100

London Office 44 1903 698403 from outside UK

50 Pall Mall

London SW1Y 5JH www.equiniti.com

Tel 44 020 7930 2424 www.shareview.co.uk

Fax 44 020 79303255

inform ation@gkn.com

www.gkn.com

Registered in England No.4191106

This annual report is available on GKNs website

This annual report is printed on HannoArt Silk comprising fibres

sourced from sustainable forest reserves and bleached without the

use of chlorine The production mill for this paper operates to EMAS

ISO 14001 environmental and ISO 9001 quality standards
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